
 

1 

 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Regular Board Meeting, Board of Trustees 

District Office, 1000 Yulupa Avenue 
November 14, 2017 

 

AGENDA                                  
        
The Rincon Valley Union School District complies with ADA requirements and upon request, 
will attempt to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making meeting 
material available in appropriate alternative formats (pursuant to Government Code Section 
54953.2).  Anyone requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in the meeting should 
contact the Rincon Valley Union School District at 542-7375, 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
1. OPEN SESSION              5:00 p.m. 
 
2. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON CLOSED 
 SESSION ITEMS 
 This time is reserved for citizens, employees, and representatives of school groups 
 to address the Board on items that are on the closed session agenda. Persons 
 addressing the Board are requested to state their names and whether or not they are a 
 resident of the district. The Board President reserves the right to limit comments from 
 the public as well as limit the total number of minutes used on any one topic.   
 
3. CLOSED SESSION:  Items discussed in closed session are confidential in nature 

and may not be discussed by participants outside of this session.  Any action 
taken by the Board during closed session shall be reported upon in open 
session. 

 
3.1 Conference with the Board’s labor negotiator, Tony Roehrick, regarding 

Gov. Code 54957.6): 
  

- Negotiations with Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ Association (represented 
certificated employees) 

 

- Negotiations with California School Employees Association (CSEA) 
Chapter #284 

  
3.2 Personnel issues, Gov. Code 54957  
 
3.3 Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation, Gov. Code 54956.9 

  -One potential case 
 
The purpose of this Board Meeting is to hear, discuss, or deliberate on matters that are on the 
approved agenda.  This agenda has been carefully planned to reflect the goals and vision of 
our district.  The agenda is available on line 72 hours before the Board Meeting and posted at 
each school site, as required by law 
 



 

2 

 

 
4. OPEN SESSION:  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,         6:00 p.m. 
 CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
5. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION DECISIONS 
 
6. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS/ADDITIONS 
 
7. AGENDA AND CONSENT ITEM APPROVAL 
 (Consent Items a Board Member wishes to discuss will be  
 moved to the Action Item section) 
 

7.1  Minutes of October 19, 2017 Regular Board Meeting 
  
7.2 Public Self-Insurer’s Annual Report 
 The Board will receive the Redwood Empire Schools Insurance Group’s annual 
 report to the Department of Industrial Relations indicating the amount of 
 RESIG’s total liabilities reported for workers’ compensation claims for 2016-17. 

 
7.3    Termination of Solar Power Purchase Agreement dated April 1, 2016 

This letter terminates the Solar Power Purchase Agreement between Rincon 
Valley Union School District and SolarCity Corporation for the Village Elementary 
School project. 
 

7.4     Termination of Solar Power Purchase Agreement dated April 4, 2016 
This letter terminates the Solar Power Purchase Agreement between Rincon 
Valley Union School District and SolarCity Corporation for the District Office 
project. 

 
7.5     Resolution #11-17-10,Signature Authorization on Business Clearing   

Account #0130014196,  Cafeteria Account #0130012109, and RVUSD 
Revolving Fund Account  #1130024100. Taxpayer Identification Number 

 68-0262005 
This Resolution retires Barbara Ziesche’s signature authorization from the   
following Checking Accounts and adds Margarita Vasquez-Sanchez. 

 Business Clearing 

 Cafeteria  

 RVUSD Revolving Fund   
 

7.6 Resolution #11-17-11,Signature Authorization on the Child Development 
Checking Account #0131023186. Taxpayer Identification Number 
68-0262005 
This Resolution retires Barbara Ziesche’s signature authorization from the Child 

Development Checking Account and adds Margarita Vasquez-Sanchez. 
 
 
 



 

3 

 

7.7 Strategic Plans for Operations Departments 
 Board of Trustees will approve the strategic plans that support the District 

Operations Departments’ purpose statements.  
 

7.8    Approval of Purchase Orders 
    These are purchase orders dated October 2, 2017 through November 5, 2017. 
 

7.9     Approval of Warrants: 
10/06/17 - 1595617 – 1595703 
10/25/17 - 1598534 – 1598605 
11/03/17 - 1600617 – 1600675 

   
8. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CALENDAR 
  
    RVUTA Negotiations   November 16, 8:00 a.m. – 4:00 pm. 
       District Office 
 

    Thanksgiving Break   November 20- 24 

 

   Agenda Setting    November 30, 8:00 a.m. 
       District Office 
 

    Site Visits     November 30, 9:00 – 12:00 
 
        Winterfest- Spring Creek   December 5 and 6 
       6:00 – 8:00 p.m. 

 
     Winter Concert    December 13, 6:30 – 8:30 p.m.  
     Rincon Valley Charter School  Matanzas Gym 
 
      Winter Concerts    December 18, Location TBD 
      Sequoia and Whited   6:00 – 7:00 p.m. 
      Austin Creek and Honor  7:30 – 8:30 p.m. 
 
      Winter Concerts    December 19, Location TBD 
   Binkley and Madrone   6:00 – 7:00 p.m. 
      Village and Matanzas   7:30 – 8:30 p.m. 
 

    Orchestra Concerts   December 20, Binkley 
     Binkley and Madrone    5:45 – 6:45 p.m.  
     Matanzas and Village    6:45 – 7:45 p.m. 
     Sequoia, Whited, Austin Creek, Honor 7:45 – 8:45 p.m.   
 
      RVEF     December 11, 7:00 – 8:00 
       District Office 
 
 



 

4 

 

      Board Study Session   December 12, 3:30 – 5:00 
       District Office 
 

     Regular Board Meeting   December 12 
      Annual Organizational Meeting 6:00 p.m., District Office 
 
 9. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

This time is reserved for citizens, employees, and representatives of school groups 
 to address the Board on items that are not on the agenda.  By law, the Board 
 cannot take action upon or discuss items that are not on the approved agenda, but 
 welcomes your comments.  Persons addressing the Board are requested to state 
 their names and whether or not they are a resident of the district. The Board President 
 reserves the right to limit comments from the public as well as limit the total number of 
 minutes used on any one topic.  

  
If you wish to address the Board on any item on the agenda, please make your request 
at the time the item is being discussed.  Persons wanting to address the Board will be 
recognized and requested to state their name and whether or not they are a resident of 
the district.  The Board President will also reserve the right to limit comments as well as 
limit the total number of minutes used on any agenda item.   

 
10.      SUPERINTENDENT’S COMMENTS, LEGISLATIVE UPDATE, CORRESPONDENCE 
 
11. AWARDS AND SPECIAL RECOGNITION       
   

11.1 Classified Employee of the Month - October 
 Recommend Approval of the Resolution for Linda Warden 

Classified Employee of the Month of October, 2017 
 

11.2 Certificated Employee of the Month - October 
 Recommend Approval of the Resolution for Tayler Hockett 

Certificated Employee of the Month of October, 2017 
 

 11.3 Special Recognition:  Members of the RVUSD Transportation Department 
The Board will recognize members of the Rincon Valley Union School District 
Transportation Department for their outstanding work with the Office of 
Emergency Services during the recent wild fires. 

 
12. INFORMATION         
 
 Program Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

5 

 

12.1   School-Connected Organizations Authorizations 
Parent Club representatives from the following sites will present their school 
connected organization reports for 2017-2018:   

13.1 (a) Austin Creek  13.1 (e) Sequoia 
 13.1 (b) Binkley   13.1 (f)  Village 
 13.1 (c) Madrone   13.1 (g) Whited 
 13.1 (d) Spring Creek Matanzas 13.1 (h) RVCS 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
 Instruction 

 
12.2 Curriculum and Instruction Report 

Dr. Metzger will report on the following: 
a. CAASPP Results 

--Dr. Terry Metzger 
 

 12.3    Student Services Update  
  Mrs. Myhers will report on the following: 

a. Status of Students and Families following wild fires 
--Mrs. Cathy Myhers 
   

 Fiscal 
 
 12.4 Facility Plan for 2018 
  Dr. Pandolfo will discuss the district’s facility plan for 2018. 
  --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 
 Governance 
 
 12.5 California Dashboard Local Indicators 

Board of Trustees will discuss the California Dashboard local indicators to be 
reported to the state. 

  --Dr. Terry Metzger 
 

12.6 Post Fire Update 
Board of Trustees will discuss the district’s post fire remediation plan for 
reopening our schools. 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
 12.7 Board Policy Review – First Reading 

Board of Trustees will discuss the following October 2017 CSBA policy updates:  
  --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 
  Adopt Revised 
  BP 0400, Comprehensive Plans 
  BP/AR 0460, Local Control and Accountability Plan 
  BP 0500, Accountability 



 

6 

 

  BP/AR 1113, District and School Web Sites 
  BP 3280, Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property 
  AR 3515.6, Criminal Background Checks for Contractors 
  BP 4140/4240/4340, Bargaining Units 
  BP/AR 5113.1, Chronic Absence and Truancy 
  BP/AR 5117, Interdistrict Attendance  
  AR 5125.2, Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts 
  BP 5131.6, Alcohol and Other Drugs 
  BP/AR 6020, Parent Involvement 
  AR 6112, School Day 
  BP 6153, School-Sponsored Trips 
  BP 6170.1, Transitional Kindergarten 
  AR 6173.1, Education for Foster Youth 
  BP/AR 6173.2, Education of Children of Military Families  
   
  Adopt New 
  AR 5113.11, Attendance Supervision 
  BP/AR 5113.12, District School Attendance Review Board 
 
  Delete 
  BP/AR 0520.2, Title I program Improvement Schools 
  BP 0520.3, Title I Program Improvement Schools 
  
13. ACTION 
  

Fiscal 
 

13.1 Annual Accounting of Developer Fees, Resolution #11-17-08 
The Board of Trustees will consider approving Resolution #11-17-08, annual 
accounting of developer fees for 2016-17, determining that the District has levied 
school facility fees pursuant to Government Codes 66001 (d) and 66006 (b). 

 --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 
13.2 Appointment of Citizens’ Oversight Committee Member 

Board of Trustees will consider approving the appointment of Mr. Joe Ruppe to 
serve on the Citizens’ Oversight Committee as a community member at large for 
a two-year term. 

  --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 
 13.3 Resolution #11-17-12, Lease-Leaseback Best Value Methodology 

Board of Trustee will consider approving Resolution #11-17-12, adopting lease-
leaseback best value methodology. 
--Dr. Joe Pandolfo 

 
 
 
 



 

7 

 

 Human Resources 
 

13.4 Resolution #11-17-09, Employees’ Use of Personal Necessity Leave for 
Fire-Related Absences 
Board of Trustees will consider approving Resolution #11-17-09, which allows 
qualified Classified and unrepresented Employees to use personal necessity 
leave for fire-related absences. 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
13.5 MOU Regarding Employees’ Use of Personal Necessity Leave for Fire-

Related Absences 
Board of Trustees will consider ratifying this Memorandum of Understanding 
between Rincon Valley Union School District and Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ 
Association, which allows qualified unit members to use personal necessity leave 
for fire-related absences. 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
 Governance 
 

13.6  School-Connected Organizations Authorizations 
The Board will consider authorizing the following organizations as a school-
connected organization for 2017-18: 
 14.6 (a) Austin Creek  14.6 (e) Sequoia 
 14.6 (b) Binkley   14.6 (f) Village 
 14.6 (c) Madrone   14.6 (g) Whited 
 14.6 (d) Spring Creek Matanzas 14.6 (h) RVCS 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
 13.7 Rincon Valley Charter School Renewal 

Board of Trustees will consider approving the application for the Rincon Valley 
Charter School Renewal, December 11, 2017 – December 11, 2022. 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 

14. PERSONNEL          
 

14.1 Certificated Management – New Hire 

 Donald Armstrong, Interim Principal, Binkley, effective January 8 – March 16, 
2018 

 
14.2 Certificated – Leave of Absence Request 

 Caitlyn Jackson, Counselor, District, effective January 8 – June 1, 2018 
 

14.3 Certificated – Leave of Absence Extension 

 Alexa O’Rourke, SDC/SELP Teacher, Matanzas, extension from November 
27, 2017 – January 7, 2018  

 
 



 

8 

 

14.4 Classified – New Hires 

 Dania Benavides-Torres, Day Care Assistant, Sequoia, effective November 8, 
2017 

 Marie Coleman, Student Services Office Manager, District Office, effective 
November 8, 2017 

 Karen Roberts, Noon Duty I, Whited, effective November 13, 2017 

 Enrique Revilla, Sp. Ed. Inst. Asst. III, Matanzas, effective November 13, 2017 
 

14.5 Classified – Resignations 

 Adiam Asgedom, Food Service Cook, Binkley, effective October 26, 2017 

 Elaine Enos, Day Care Assistant, Sequoia, effective October 26, 2017 

 Sandi Rojas, Office Manager, Village, effective December 1, 2017 

 Wanda “Wendy” Schwartz, Science Facilitator, Sequoia, effective December 6, 
2017 

 
14.6 Classified – Leave of Absence Request  

 Meggan Rains, Sp. Ed. Inst. Asst. II, Matanzas, effective December 4, 2017 – 
February 23, 2018 

   
15. CSEA / RVUTA COMMENTS        
 
16. BOARD OF TRUSTEE COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR 

INFORMATION 
 
17. NEXT BOARD MEETING AGENDA ITEMS 

 Annual Organization 
 Technology Report 
 ELA/Math 
 Annual Accounting of Development Fees 
 Professional Development 
 Approval of Single School Plans 
 Science Program 
 First Interim Financial Report 17-18 
 Quarterly Update Construction Schedule 
 Report on Site Visits  
 LCAP Review and Update 
 RVCS Charter Renewal 

 
18. ADJOURN 



 

1 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Regular Board Meeting, Board of Trustees 

District Office, 1000 Yulupa Avenue 
October 19, 2017 

(Rescheduled from October 10, 2017) 
 

MINUTES 
 
Present:              Mrs. Carol Lynn Wood 
         Mrs. Cynthia Evers 
         Mr. Chris Rafanelli  
         Mr. Mike Cook  
         Mr. Jeff Gospe 
 
Administrators:       Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 

      Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent, Business  
      Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum 

         Mrs. Cathy Myhers. Assistant Superintendent of Student Services 
          
Others:        Interested Staff and Community Members 
 
1. OPEN SESSION               
 Mrs. Wood called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m. 
 
2. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON CLOSED 
 SESSION ITEMS 
 None   
 
3. CLOSED SESSION:   
 Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mrs. Evers seconded to recess to closed session to discuss 

the following:  Unanimous. 
 

3.1 Conference with the Board’s labor negotiator, Tony Roehrick, regarding 
Gov. Code 54957.6): 

  
- Negotiations with Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ Association (represented 

certificated employees) 
 

- Negotiations with California School Employees Association (CSEA) 
Chapter #284 

  
3.2 Personnel issues, Gov. Code 54957  
 
3.3 Conference with Legal Counsel –Anticipated Litigation, Gov. Code 54956.9 

  -One potential case 
 
 
 



 

2 

4. OPEN SESSION:  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,     
 CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Mr. Cook moved and Mrs. Evers seconded to adjourn closed session and return to open 
session at 5:50 p.m.:  Unanimous. 

 
5. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION DECISIONS 
 Mrs. Wood announced that no action was taken in closed session. 
 
6. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS/ADDITIONS 
 None 
 
7. AGENDA AND CONSENT ITEM APPROVAL 

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve the agenda and following 
consent items:  Unanimous. 

 
7.1 Minutes of September 12, 2017 Regular Board Meeting 

   
7.2 Williams Settlement Act 

Quarterly Uniform Complaint Report Summary, July 1 – September 30, 2017. 
 

7.3 MOU Between Alliant International University, Inc. A California Benefit 
Corporation and Rincon Valley Union School District 
This is an agreement to place Interns who are or will be enrolled in the Teacher 
Credential Program, the MA/PPS:  School Psychology Program or School 
Counseling Program through the California School of Education at Alliant 
International University and will be serving their Practicum or Internship in the 
District. 

 
7.4 Agreement between Rincon Valley Union School District and 360 Degree 

Customer, Inc. for a Speech Therapist Professional Services 
 
7.5 Agreement between Rincon Valley Union School District and 360 Degree 

Customer, Inc. for a Registered Nurse Professional Services 
  
7.6 Approval of Purchase Orders 

  These are purchase orders dated September 5, 2017 - October 1, 2017. 
 

7.7 Approval of Warrants: 
 9/8/17  - 1588723 – 1588789 
 9/15/17 - 1590260 – 1590356 
 9/20/17 - 1591002 – 1591071 
 9/27/17 - 1593263 – 1593318 
 10/04/17 - 1594275 – 1594340 
 
 
 
  



 

3 

8. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CALENDAR 
 Mrs. Wood announced the following calendared items: 
 

October 21 Helping Hands Resource Fair 
 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 noon, Matanzas 

 
October 25 and 26 IBB Training, District Office 
 8:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. 
 
October 24, 26, 27 RVCS Student Led Conferences 
 
October 27 - 28 RVCS Bandwagon Music Festival-Analy 
  
October 31 Halloween Festivities 
 
November 2 Agenda Setting, 8:00 a.m., District Office 
 Site Visits – 9:00 a.m. – 12 noon 
 End of 1st Trimester 
 
November 3 Teacher Workday /Non-student day 
 
November 10 Veterans Day Holiday 
 
November 13 Rincon Valley Education Foundation Meeting 
 7:00 p.m., District Office   
 
November 14  Regular Board Meeting  
 District Office, 6:00 p.m. 

 
9. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

None 
 
10.      SUPERINTENDENT’S COMMENTS, LEGISLATIVE UPDATE, CORRESPONDENCE 
 Dr. Roehrick commented on the following: 

 Mrs. Myhers was asked to introduce the new Rincon Valley Partnership Program 
Manager, Denise Reich. 

 The CDE State Superintendent announced that the State is willing to work with 
districts affected by the fires by providing waivers regarding attendance and class 
size. 

  
11. INFORMATION 
  
 Program Reports 
 

11.1 School Closure and Fire Update 
 Staff reported on the school closures and fire update.   

Dr. Roehrick reported that district office staff have been in since Monday, 
October 9 to assess the status of employees, families, and schools.  The 



 

4 

mandatory evacuation in the Austin Creek and Sequoia area was lifted on 
Wednesday afternoon, October 18.  This allows the district to request staff to 
return to sites on Monday, October 23 to prepare for students to return on 
Tuesday, October 24.  Principals met on Wednesday, October 18 to receive 
direction from the district.  Office managers will report to principals on Friday, 20th 
and will attend a training with counselors to give them tools to use when students 
return.   
 
Dr. Pandolfo reported on facilities and financial implications. 

 Transportation department assisted with emergency relief and moved bus 
fleet for safe keeping. 

 Maintenance crew removed trees, limbs, and clean-up within a couple 
days after the first fires. 

 Maintenance, custodians, and technology crew cleaned debris at sites.  
 Classrooms were wiped down; a county checklist of cleaning requirements 

was followed. 
 Filters changed and air purifiers installed in all rooms. 
 State waivers available for lost instruction days and ADA reporting. 

 
Dr. Metzger reported on the impact on curriculum and RVEF efforts to raise 
funds for our Rincon Valley community. 

 Survey sent to certificated staff asking for their status following the fires 
and whether or not they need help. 

 Guidelines sent to teachers 
 Counseling team in place 
 Balance academics and social-emotional needs 
 RVEF collecting donations for district families  

 
Mrs. Myhers reported on the impact on our families and our steps to support 
students and staff once they return. 

 Known at this time- 80 families have lost their homes 
 Counselors scheduled at every site for extra support 
 Training in place for office managers, transportation, extended care, food 

service  
 SCOE social-emotional support assigned to sites  
 Students with asthma have been identified 
 Air quality is being monitored every day 
 Reviewed McKinney-Vento Act (Homeless) 

 
A discussion took place regarding the status of the Oak Park property purchase 
and how it relates to the fires.  A discussion was held concerning the possibility 
the property could be used for temporary housing for our families as this disaster 
will be a multi-year problem. The district does not own the property yet and is not 
able to do anything at this time.  Two houses on the property were not damaged.  
The clubhouse, field, and electrical pole were burned. 

  
 



 

5 

  Public Comment 
  Mr. Glen Ghilotti, Engineering Contractor, not a resident of the district 

Mr. Ghilotti offered to assist the district with preparing the Oak Park Property 
(infrastructure) for temporary housing if the district is in a position to do so. 

     
11.2 Transportation Report 

Dr. Pandolfo, introduced Mrs. Sandi Pettey, Transportation Supervisor, who 
reported on the District’s transportation services.  The Board reviewed a list of 
current routes and fleet information.  The department is finalizing the installation 
of the Z-Pass.  The dispatch position has greatly improved safety when the 
manager is on break or providing support coverage for the full day. There is a 
national shortage of school bus drivers.  Van routes are being expanded to 
transport students. The District has an interest in exploring ways to make the 
position more attractive.   The department’s safety record is excellent! 
 
Dr. Pandolfo commended the transportation department for their support during 
the first week of the fires helping with the evacuation efforts.  In addition, the bus 
fleet needed to be moved from potential threat of fire more than once.   

   
 11.3 Rincon Valley Education Foundation Report 

Mrs. Katie Ruppe, Director, originally was going to report on the Rincon Valley 
Education Foundation goals for 2017-18.  However, with the recent fires, these 
goals will be adjusted.  At this time, the Education Foundation is assisting with 
disaster relief efforts by collecting donations for our families and employees who 
have lost their homes.  These donations will be distributed at the “Helping Hands 
Resource Fair” on October 21. 

 
 Instruction 
 

11.4 Curriculum and Instruction Update 
 Dr. Metzger reported on the District’s Middle School programs.  The RVCS 
“refresh” committee met several times during 2016-17.  While the committee 
made many recommendations to the Board, the following three academic actions 
have specifically been implemented: 

 Strengthen Project-Based Learning and cross-curricular integration 
throughout the instructional program 

 Review and amend the report card and allow the GPA calculation to 
improve articulation with local high schools 

 Examine curriculum adoption options to support core instruction 
 

The Board reviewed the new report cards.  Teachers gave a lot of input and 
parent response is positive.   

 
 11.5 Student Services Update 
  Mrs. Myhers gave an update on the following: 

a. Rincon Valley Partnership 
 



 

6 

On July 1, 2017, the Rincon Valley Union School District began the day-
to-day administration of the Rincon Valley Partnership.   Denise Reich,  
new Program Manager, has quickly become a strong leader for the 
program.  The Rincon Valley Partnership (RVP) consists of 2 Preschool 
Speech Programs, 5 Preschool Special Day Class Programs and 9 
Primary Special Day Class Programs.    

 Mrs. Reich reported that teachers feel welcomed at their sites. RVP 
students are interacting and participating with their general education 
peers in school activities.  The current RVP staff have been very 
collaborative and flexible.  A new program was added this year and some 
classrooms were moved.  Significant progress has been made in our 
collaborating with private preschools to be able to offer a continuum of 
options to our preschool students.  We are looking into the possibility of 
opening a district operated preschool program this spring.   A new mascot 
will be selected soon.  The Board will set a date to visit classrooms. 

b. Parent University 
Due to the recent fires, the Parent University scheduled for October 21 
has been postponed and replaced with a “Helping Hands Resource 
Fair.”  The Rincon Valley Education Foundation has partnered with 
Student Services to put on this fair.  Donations will be received from 9 
– 10 a.m.  Invited families will come from 10-12.  In addition to 
donations, resources such as insurance, legal, food service, and job 
opportunities will be available. 

 
Fiscal 
 
11.6 Bond Rating Agency Reports- Moody’s and S & P Global 
 Board of Trustees reviewed the bond rating report from Moody’s and S & P 

Global. The District credit worthiness was rated very highly by both rating 
agencies.  Factors that could lead to an eventual downgrade of this rating were 
listed as material loss of reserves, and reduction in the number of interdistrict 
transfer students.  However, due to the fires, investors do not want to buy bonds 
right now.  The county has to assess how many parcels sustained damage in 
Rincon Valley.  The District has to wait until it receives this information from the 
county before going forward with the sale of bonds.   

  
Human Resources 
 
11.7 Highly Qualified Teachers 

Dr. Roehrick reported that all RVUSD teachers are highly qualified.  The Board 
received a list of the number of teacher evaluations scheduled for the current 
year.   Our evaluation system has been modified in recent years to ensure there 
is adequate time for administrators to conduct evaluations deeply and to build in 
time to discuss results from formal and informal observations.     This system is 
good for new teachers, but not as much for our veteran, highly effective teachers.  
Consequently, the District and RVUTA share an interest to move towards a new 
rubric that serves as the basis for teacher evaluation.   



 

7 

 
11.8 Strategic Plan Update for Operations Departments 
 Board of Trustees reviewed and discussed the strategic plans to support the 

District Operations Departments’ purpose statements.  These plans provide an 
opportunity to more formally address the needs of the District to better serve the 
students and staff.  This will be a two-year plan due to the impact the fires have 
had on the District and staff.   

 
Governance 
 
11.9 Progress on 2016-17 Single Plan for Student Achievement Goals and 2017-

18 Goals 
Dr. Roehrick reported on the progress made toward meeting the 2016-17 Single 
Plan for Student Achievement goals, which are aligned to the District LCAP.  The 
actions found to consistently be most effective for the various goals include: 

1. Goal 1, ELA:  SIPPS instruction in grades K-3 and using student 
assessment data to guide instruction. 

2. Goal 2, Math:  Increased professional development in NY Math and 
MTSS processes for students not meeting standards. 

3. Goal 3, English learners:  Purposeful instructional strategies. 
4. Goal 4, School Climate:  Strengthening school-based MTSS, monitoring 

attendance and social-emotional programs such as Restorative 
Practices 

The template for the 2017-18 site-based Single Plan for Student Achievement 
has been developed and individual schools are developing their plans.  These 
plans will come to the Board for approval in December. 

 
11.10 Rincon Valley Charter School Renewal – Application Review 
 Board of Trustees reviewed the application to be submitted for the Rincon Valley 

Charter School renewal. The current application expires on December 11, 2017.  
The District has established a Renewal Committee to develop an application to 
the Governing Board to extend the Charter School through December 11, 2022.   

         The Renewal Committee worked with the charter school law firm, YM&C to 

ensure the renewal application meets all State and Federal regulations that 
govern charter schools.  The Renewal committee recommends the Board to 
review Element 9: Financial and Programmatic Audit.  The programmatic audit 
is not a legal requirement for the Charter School.  After discussion, the 
programmatic audit will be removed from the charter.   

 The Board also discussed “instructional minutes” to align with Santa Rosa City 
middle schools.  We can change the affirmation to include increasing the 
instructional minutes.  This will also need to be negotiated with RVUTA. 

 The renewal application will be brought back to Governing Board at its 
 November14 regular meeting for approval.  Following approval by the RVUSD 
 Governing Board, the renewal application will be forwarded to the California 
 Department of Education. 
 



 

8 

   
11.11 Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ Association Initial “Sunshine” Collective 

Bargaining Agreement Proposal with the Rincon Valley Union School 
District 2017-2018 

 Mrs. Horgan thanked the district for their compassion and announced RVUTA’s 
Collective Bargaining Agreement openers for 2017-18.  There were no 
comments from the public.   

 
11.12 Rincon Valley Union School District’s Initial “Sunshine” Collective 

Bargaining Agreement Proposal with the Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ 
Association 2017-2018 

 Dr. Roehrick announced the district’s collective Bargaining Agreement openers 
for 2017-18.  There were no comments from the public.   

  
12. ACTION           
  
 Fiscal 
 

12.1   Resolution #10-17-07, Declaring an Emergency Under Public Contract Code 
Section 22035 and 22050 
Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mrs. Evers seconded to approve Resolution #10-17-07 
Declaring an Emergency Under Public Contract Code Section 22035 and 22050 
for the Rincon Valley Union School District. 5 ayes, 0 noes, 0 abstentions. 
 

Roll Call Vote: 
Mrs. Wood  aye 
Mrs. Evers  aye 
Mr. Rafanelli  aye 
Mr.Gospe  aye 
Mr. Cook  aye 

 
12.2    Prequalification resolutions for Prime Contractors and Mechanical, 

Electrical and Plumbing Contractors (MEPs) 
 Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve the following 

prequalification resolutions: Unanimous. 
 12.2a Resolution #10-17-05, Prime Contractors 
 12.2b Resolution #10-17-06, Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing Contractors 

 
Human Resources 
 
12.3 Certificated Job Description – Home Study Coordinator 
 Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve a certificated job 

description for the position of Home Study Coordinator:  Unanimous. 
  
12.4 Certificated Salary Schedule – Home Study Coordinator 
 Mrs. Evers moved and Mr.Gospe seconded to approve the certificated salary 

schedule for the position of Home Study Coordinator:  Unanimous. 
  



 

9 

 
13. PERSONNEL 

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve the following personnel items:  
Unanimous. 
       
13.1 Certificated Management – Leave of Absence Request 

 Kelly Lister, Principal, Binkley, effective January 8 – March 16, 2018 
 

13.2 Certificated – Leave of Absence Request 
 Larkin O’Leary, Teacher, RVCS – Sequoia, effective November 3, 2017 – 

June 1, 2018 
 Lea Yap, Teacher, Binkley, January 16 – March 16, 2018 
 Chris Lister, Teacher, RVCS – Sequoia, effective April 30 – June 1, 2018 

 
13.3 Classified – New Hires 

 Roseanne Doyle, Day Care Assistant, Village, effective September 13, 2017 
 Josephine Hoover, Day Care Assistant, Madrone, effective September 14, 

2017 
 John O’Neill, Noon Duty I, Austin Creek, effective September 18, 2017 
 Maggie Ng, Instructional Assistant, Austin Creek, effective September 19, 

2017 
 Alapaki Peniata, Campus Supervisor, RVCS – Sequoia, effective September 

25, 2017 
 Araceli Arroyo, Noon Duty I, Whited, effective October 3, 2017 
 Maithe Carrillo, Day Care Assistant, Madrone, effective October 5, 2017 
 Elaine Enos, Day Care Assistant, Sequoia, effective October 5, 2017 
 Abbey Rodgers, Sp. Ed. Instr. Assistant II, District, effective October 5, 2017 
 Stephanie Kiernan, Noon Duty I, Whited, effective October 6, 2017 

 
13.4 Classified – Resignations 

 Jaime Pimental, Student Services Office Manager, District Office, effective 
September 29, 2017 

 Ed Hootstein, Sp. Ed. Inst. Assistant II, Sequoia, effective October 13, 2017 
 Kelsey Poore, Bus Driver, District, effective October 13, 2017 

 
14. CSEA / RVUTA COMMENTS  

CSEA:  Mr. Hagle commented on how proud he is to work for RVUSD and to see how 
well they cared for their staff during the recent devastation due to fires. 
 
RVUTA:  Mrs. Perry commented on how proud RVUTA is of the district’s support and 
communication during the recent devastation due to fires.  CTA has provided a grant for 
allocations to teachers.  Applications are already submitted.   

 
15. BOARD OF TRUSTEE COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR 

INFORMATION 
 

15.1 Board/Superintendent Site Visits went well. Saw student engagement and setting 
routines. 



 

10 

  
Mr. Rafanelli:  Commended the district and staff for the work they have done throughout 
the recent devastation due to fires. 
 
Mrs. Evers:  Impressed with cabinet meetings held to organize communication and 
support. 

 
16. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 Annual Accounting Developer Fees -Resolution  
 Professional Development Update 
 Strategic Plans – Operations Deparments 
 J-13A Waiver  
 CAASP Follow-up 
 GATE Identification 
 ELA/Math 
 RVCS Renewal/Budget 
 Facility Plan 2018 
 School-Connected Organization Authorizations 
 Housing / Oak Park Property 
 Budget Committee Meeting Schedule 
 Board Policies 

 
17. ADJOURN 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mrs. Evers seconded to adjourn the meeting at 8:52 p.m.:  
Unanimous. 



















 

3055 Clearview Way, San Mateo, CA 94402   T (650) 963-5100   (888) SOL-CITY   WWW.SOLARCITY.COM 

 
 
September 18, 2017 
 
 
Rincon Valley Union School District 
1000 Yulupa Avenue 
Santa Rosa, CA 95405 
Attn: Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent, Business 
 
RE:  Termination of Solar Power Purchase Agreement dated April 1, 2016 (the “Agreement”) 
 
 
 This letter is to memorialize our mutual agreement to terminate the Solar Power Purchase 
Agreement between Rincon Valley Union School District and SolarCity Corporation, for the 
District Office project located at 1000 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95409, as of the date that 
is ten days after the date of this written notice.  This mutual termination letter recognizes there is 
no further liability on either party’s part.  The District is not a defaulting party and, as such, no 
termination payments will be required. 
 
 By signing this letter, each of the parties below acknowledges and agrees with the 
termination of the Agreement. 
 
Acknowledged and Agreed: 
 
 
SOLARCITY CORPORATION 
 
 
By:       
 
Name:       
 
Title:       
 
 
Rincon Valley Union School District 
 
 
By:       
 
Name:       
 
Title:       
 



 

3055 Clearview Way, San Mateo, CA 94402   T (650) 963-5100   (888) SOL-CITY   WWW.SOLARCITY.COM 

 
 
September 18, 2017 
 
 
Rincon Valley Union School District 
1000 Yulupa Avenue 
Santa Rosa, CA 95405 
Attn: Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent, Business 
 
RE:  Termination of Solar Power Purchase Agreement dated April 4, 2016 (the “Agreement”) 
 
 
 This letter is to memorialize our mutual agreement to terminate the Solar Power Purchase 
Agreement between Rincon Valley Union School District and SolarCity Corporation, for the Village 
Elementary School project located at 900 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95405, as of the date that is 
ten days after the date of this written notice.  This mutual termination letter recognizes there is no further 
liability on either party’s part.  The District is not a defaulting party and, as such, no termination 
payments will be required. 
 
 By signing this letter, each of the parties below acknowledges and agrees with the termination of 
the Agreement. 
 

 
Acknowledged and Agreed: 
 
 
SOLARCITY CORPORATION  
 
 
By:       
 
Name:       
 
Title:       
 
 
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
By:       
 
Name:       
 
Title:       
 



 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO.  11-17-10 
 

Signature Authorization on Business Clearing Account # 0130014196, Cafeteria Account 
# 0130012109, and RVUSD Revolving Fund Account # 1130024100 

Taxpayer Identification Number 68-0262005 
 
 

WHEREAS, a Business clearing account, Cafeteria clearing account, and Revolving 
fund checking accounts exists with Exchange Bank;  

 
and 

 
WHEREAS, one of the authorized signatures on this account is no longer an  
employee of the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is desired to have current employees named in the authorized signature  
group; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following signatures be retired: 
Barbara Ziesche, former Account Technician 
 
 
AND FURTHERMORE, BE IT RESOLVED that any two (2) signatures from the  
following group are authorized on this account: 

Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent, Business 
  Krystle Johnson, Director of Fiscal Services 

   Margarita Vasquez-Sanchez, Account Technician  
    
 

PASSEDAND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Rincon Valley Union School 
District this 14th day of November 2017 by the following vote: 

 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
     Clerk of the Board of Directors 
Rincon Valley Union School District  
 



 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO.  11-17-11 
 

Signature Authorization on Child Development Checking Account #0131023186 
Taxpayer Identification Number 68-0262005 

 
 

WHEREAS, a Child Development clearing checking account exists with Exchange 
Bank;  

 
and 

 
WHEREAS, one of the authorized signatures on this account is no longer an  
employee of the Child Development Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is desired to have current employees named in the authorized signature  
group; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following signatures be retired: 
Barbara Ziesche, former Account Technician 
 
 
AND FURTHERMORE, BE IT RESOLVED that any two (2) signatures from the  
following group are authorized on this account: 

Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent, Business 
  Krystle Johnson, Director of Fiscal Services 

   Margarita Vasquez-Sanchez, Account Technician  
   Joy Lindeman, Director Afterschool Programs 
 

PASSEDAND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Rincon Valley Union School 
District this 14th day of November 2017 by the following vote: 

 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
     Clerk of the Board of Directors 
Rincon Valley Union School District  
 



 

 

Rincon Valley Union School District 

2017‐18 Business Department Strategic Plan 
 
GOAL #1: The RVUSD Business Department maintain excellent customer service. 
 

Objective: 

1.1 Gain understanding of the level of customer service provided to the District 

1.2 Identify areas that need improvement 

A.  Conduct a baseline survey to Principals, Office Managers to determine current level of customer 

Service. 

B. Analyze data 

1.3 Develop procedures to address these areas  
1.4 Attend a District presentation on customer service 

Actions/Success Indicator:   

A. Survey sent by November 1, 2017 

B. Attend customer service training by November 1,  2017 

C. Discuss takeaways of customer service presentation at staff meeting 

D. Report on results by December 1, 2017 

E. Develop collaborative plan to improve customer service based on data by January 1, 2018 

 
GOAL #2: The RVUSD Business Department will increase efficiencies through documentation and the better use 
of technology. 
 
Objective: 
2.1 Desk Manuals will include use operating procedures and how to utilize software on each employee’s desk 

2.2 Update Business Office web page  
2.3 Review work to see if any documents can be stored electronically for retention and eliminate duplicate copies 

Actions/Success Indicator: 

A. Desk manuals will be created by each person by July 1, 2018, and be maintained, revised, and 

updated annually 

B. Business office staff will meet and evaluate current Business Office Web by December 1, 2017, and 

make suggestions for improvements 

C. Web site will be updated by July 1, 2018 and reviewed annually to ensure that the proper forms and 

information is current.  

D. Warehouse, and individual desk files will be reviewed by January 1, 2018 to ensure we are in 

compliance with Retention Policies, consolidate duplicate copies, and secure confidential files 

GOAL #3: The RVUSD Business Department will continue to learn and adopt current best practices. 

 

Objective: 

3.1 Continue Professional Development at the County Office/CASBO 

3.2 Review list of courses in Target Solutions with Director of Fiscal Services by November 1, 2017 and develop a 

professional development plan to complete courses by June 30, 2018 

Actions/Success Indicator: 

A. Business Office will continue to be present at County Office workshops and trainings 



 

 

B. By December 1, 2017, every member of the depart will have identified three assignments in Target 

Solution (including one to improve software skills) and will have completed these courses June 30, 

2018. 

C. The Business Office will continue to meet monthly after County DBUG meetings to disseminate 

pertinent information 

GOAL #4: The RVUSD Business Department will improve esprit de corp 

Objective: 

4.1 Improve communication within the Business Office 

4.2 Build and foster Business Office team relationships and morale 

4.3 Celebrate Success 

 

Actions/Success Indicator: 

A. The Business Office will continue to meet monthly to discuss any updates, changes, significant 

deadlines, etc 

B. The Business Office will have team outings (one in December and one in July) each year to celebrate 

and acknowledge the Department’s hard work. 

C. Collaboratively set norms that we will agree to work by.   



 

 

Rincon Valley Union School District 

2017‐18 Custodial Department Strategic Plan 
 
Goal #1 
The RVUSD Custodial Department will achieve and maintain excellent customer service. 
Objective: 

1.1  Gain understanding of the level of customer service provided to the School Sites 

1.2 Identify areas that need improvement 

A. Conduct a baseline survey to pertinent stakeholders to determine current level of customer 

Service. 

B. Analyze data 

1.3 Develop procedures to address areas needing attention including 
1.12   Attend a District presentation on customer service 

1.13   Report feedback to custodial by DIstrict and site 

Actions/Success Indicator   

A. Survey sent by November 1st 

B. Report on results by Jan. 1st 

C. Attend customer service training by March 1, 2018 

D. Feedback meeting with employee documented monthly by supervisor to measure 

improvement 

Goal #2 
The RVUSD Custodial department will increase efficiencies through the better use of technology. 
Action 

2.1 Staff to attend computer training for basic skill technology training   

2.2 Learn how to use/interpret the new electronic work order ticket system 

2.3 Learn how to use/interpret the electronic facility use request system 

 

Actions/Success Indicators 

A. Training for the new system will be completed by December 1, 2017 

B. New systems will be on‐line by January 1, 2018 

C. Comprehension will be determined by use of system with supervisor. 

Goal #3 

The RVUSD Custodial Department will continue to learn and adopt current best practices. 

Action 

3.1 Finalize training curriculum and use for monthly meetings 

3.2 Implement monthly Meetings  

Success Indicators 

A.  By March 1, 2018 the custodial curriculum will be finalized 

B. By June 30, 2018 the depart will have had 10 monthly meetings plus one additional inservice 



 

 

 

Goal #4 

The RVUSD Custodial Department will improve esprit de corp 

 

Objective 

4.1 Build and foster Custodial team relationships and morale 

4.2 Celebrate Success 

 

Actions/Success Indicators 

A. The Custodial Department will have a team outing each year to celebrate and acknowledge the 

Department’s hard work. 



 

 

Rincon Valley Union School District 

2017‐18 Food Service Department Strategic Plan 
 
Goal #1 
The RVUSD Food Service Department will achieve and maintain excellent customer service. 
Objective: 

1.1  Clearly Identify who the food service customers are 

1.2 Gain understanding of the level of customer service provided 

1.3 Identify areas that need improvement 

A.  Conduct a baseline survey to pertinent stakeholders to determine current level of customer 

Service. 

B. Analyze data 

1.4 Develop procedures to address these areas including 
1.12   Attend a training on customer service 

1.13  Have food manager supervisor conduct short on‐site  surveys and report back to 

individual     staff to provide feedback to improve service 

Actions/Success Indicator   

A. Survey sent by November 1st 

B. Report on results by Jan. 1st 

C. Attend customer service training by March 1, 2018 

D. Feedback meeting with employee documented weekly by supervisor 

Goal #2 
The RVUSD Food Service department will increase product marketing and brand recognition through 
the use of outreach programs. 
Action 

2.1 4.2Cooks and cashiers will promote the monthly food promotions and develop commitment from 

staff  to making it a fun event. 

2.2 Supervisor and staff will attend parent and/or school events to further promote food service 

department such as Parent University. 

 

Actions/Success Indicators 

A. Survey sent by January 1st 

B. Report results to individual staff to provide feedback to improve promotion. 

C. Increased student participation in food service program 

 

Goal #3 

The RVUSD Food Service Department will continue to learn and adopt current best practices. 

Action 

3.1 Finalize training curriculum and use for monthly meetings 



 

 

3.2 Implement monthly meetings  

Success Indicators 

A.  By June 30th, the depart will have had 10 monthly meetings, with 2 additional staff 

development days with 100% attendance rate. 

B. By March 1st the Food Service curriculum will be finalized 

 

Goal #4 
The RVUSD Food Service department will improve esprit de corp 
 
Objective: 

4.1 Build a foster Food Services team relationships and morale. 

4.2 Celebrate Success 

 

Actions/Success Indicators 

A. Food Services will have team outings each year to celebrate and acknowledge the 

Department’s hard work. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Rincon Valley Union School District 

2017‐18 Maintenance Department Strategic Plan 
 
Goal #1 
The RVUSD Maintenance Department will achieve and maintain excellent customer service. 
Objective: 

1.1  Gain understanding of the level of customer service provided to the District 

1.2 Identify areas that need improvement 

A.  Conduct a baseline survey to pertinent stakeholders to determine current level of customer 

Service. 

B. Analyze data 

1.3 Develop procedures to address these areas including 
1.12 Attend a District presentation on customer service 

1.13 Have maintenance supervisor review work tickets weekly and report back to individual 

staff to provide feedback to improve service 

Actions/Success Indicator   

A. Survey sent by October 1st 

B. Report on results by Jan. 1st 

C. Attend customer service training by March 1, 2018 

D. Feedback meeting with employee documented weekly by supervisor 

Goal #2 
The RVUSD Maintenance department will increase efficiencies through the better use of technology. 
Action 

2.1 Implement new electronic work order ticket system 

2.2 Implement an electronic facility use request system 

2.3 Develop maintenance web page  

Actions/Success Indicators 

A. Training for the new system will be completed by December 1, 2017 

B. New systems will be on‐line by January 1, 2018 

C. Monthly reports will be run and reviews with key personnel starting in February 

D. Web page will be on‐line by December 1, 2017 

Goal #3 

The RVUSD Maintenance Department will continue to learn and adopt current best practices. 

Action 

3.1 Finalize training curriculum and use for tailgate meetings 

3.2 Implement weekly Tailgate Meetings  

Success Indicators 

A.  By June 30th, the depart will have had 40 tailgate meetings 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
2017‐18 Information Technology Department Strategic Plan 

 
Goal #1: The Rincon Valley I.T. Department will achieve and maintain excellent customer 
service. 
 
Objective: 
1.1 Improve communication with end users. 
1.2 Evaluate the prioritization of work tickets. 
1.3 Identify areas of improvement. 
1.4 Utilize professional development opportunities. 
 
Action/Success Indicator: 

A. All work tickets should be completed within 48 hours. If this is not feasible, then a 
response should be added to the work ticket explaining why it will take longer, as well 
as, a realistic timeline for completion. 

B. Identify high need staff members and develop a criterion, which outlines prioritization 
levels based on equipment and number of users affected. 

C. Meet with site administrators to discuss site specific issues and develop a 
response/preventative maintenance plan to resolve issues. 

D. Plan and implement professional development on customer service. 
E. Create distribution material to better inform sites about I.T. department projects. 

 
Goal #2: The Rincon Valley I.T. Department will become more efficient in time utilization. 
 
Objective: 
2.1 Lower work ticket completion times. 
2.2 Develop methods to become better organized. 
2.3 Identify staffing needs per site. 
 
Action/Success Indicator: 

A. Identify trouble spots in the ticketing process and revise where appropriate. 
B. All work tickets should be completed or at minimum responded to within 48hours. 
C. Evaluate inventory to increase ticket response times. 
D. Establish appropriate times for shop maintenance and cleaning. 
E. Analyze work tickets by site to better allocate staff resources. 

 
Goal #3: The Rincon Valley I.T. Department will improve espirit de corps. 
 
Objective: 
3.1 Improve inter‐office communication. 
3.2 Increase collaboration and morale. 
3.3 Foster individual success. 



Action/Success Indicator: 
A. Implement weekly meetings to discuss issues in the district, as well as, and questions or 

concerns needing to be addressed. 
B. Utilize Technology and Customer Service professional development opportunities. 
C. Create bi‐annual events that encourage teamwork and recognize individual successes. 

 
Goal #4: Collaborate with field resources to increase productivity and minimize technology 
downtime to increase child productivity. 

 
Objective: 
4.1 Improve communication with field resources. 
4.2 Analyze utilization of technology spaces for 21st century learning. 
4.3 Empower field resources to provide expanded technology support to site personnel.  

 
Action/Success Indicator: 

A. Maintain weekly communications with field resources to understand site specific needs. 
B. Establish a technology committee to evaluate the district’s technology program and 

make recommendations to achieve 21st century learning objectives. 
C. Provide professional development opportunities and expand the responsibilities of field 

resources to better meet the day‐to‐day needs of their specific site. 
D. Meet face‐to‐face monthly with field resources to provide professional development 

opportunities, identify issues, and expand understanding of the Information Technology 
department’s purpose statement. 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2017‐18 Transportation Department Strategic Plan 
 

Goal #1:  The Rincon Valley Transportation Department will achieve and maintain excellent customer 

service. 

 

Objective: 

1.1 Gain understanding of the level of customer service provided to the District. 

1.2 Identify areas that need improvement 

A. Conduct a baseline survey to the Principals, Teachers, randomly chosen 3 Special Needs       

families and 5 Regular Ed families. 

B. Analyze data 

1.3 Develop procedures to address these areas including 
1.4 Attend a District presentation on customer service. 

 

 Action/Success Indicator: 

A. Survey sent by November 1 , 2017 

B. Discuss takeaway of customer service presentation at monthly drivers meeting 

C. Report on results by December 1,2017 

D. Develop Collaborative plan to improve  customer service based on data by January 1,2018 

 

Goal #2:  The RVUSD Transportation Department will increase efficiencies through documentation and 

better use of technology. 

 

Objective: 

2.1  Implement new Zpass student/bus tracking software 

2.2   Develop Transportation web page.  

2.3  Driver handbook will include laws, regulations, and district policy 

 

 Actions/Success Indicators: 

A. Driver Handbooks will be maintained, revised, and updated annually to ensure that new 

laws and policies are current 

B. Zpass will be on‐line and training completed by Jan.1, 2018 

C. Web site will be up dated by December 1, 2018  and reviewed annually to ensure that the 

proper forms and information is current 

 

Goal  #3:      The  RVUSD  Transportation  Department  will  continue  to  learn  and  adopt  current  best 

practices. 

Action 

 

Objective: 

3.1  Continue driver safety training at monthly drivers meetings 

3.2  Continue to provide opportunities for drivers to receive their mandatory 10 hours of in‐service 

training per year.  

 

Success Indicator: 

  Drivers are current with all required certificate, in‐service training hours, DOT physicals, and First 

Aid training. 



 

Goal #4 The RVUSD Transportation Department will improve spirit de corp. 

 

Objective: 

4.1  Improve communication within the transportation Department 

4.2  Build and foster Transportation team relationships and morale 

4.3  Celebrate Success 

Actions/Success Indicator: 

A. The drivers will meet monthly to discuss any updates, changes. 

B. The  Transportation Department will  have  a  recognition  event  each  year  to  celebrate  and 

acknowledge the Department’s hard work. 

C. Collaboratively set norms that you will agree to work by.  































Dear Board of Trustees: 
 
I am beyond thrilled to introduce Linda Warden as the October Classified Employee of the 
Month. This is Ms. Linda’s 3rd year as custodian at Whited and 13th year working in the Rincon 
Valley District. Ms. Linda is exceptional. When we first started working together, it was instantly 
clear how hard-working and dedicated she is. Within minutes, she began organizing and 
creating systems to help things run more effectively and efficiently. Within hours she began 
connecting and building relationships with staff, students and families. The whole Whited 
community loves Ms. Linda. She cares deeply about helping others and always shares her 
positive vibe with everyone around her. She is pulled in a million different directions daily, yet 
when someone asks for help, she gives that person her full attention as if it is the only thing on 
her plate. Ms. Linda is a problem solver. When she sees or hears about a problem, she comes 
up with solutions and quickly puts them into action. Students know they can go to Ms. Linda. 
She has a gift for connecting with kids, and regularly volunteers to mentor students who need a 
positive adult connection. When students ask for help getting their lunchboxes off of the roof, or 
tell her that the toilet is plugged up with an apple (again), she is patient, kind and gently finds 
opportunities for teachable moments.  
 
I feel the best way to demonstrate Ms. Linda’s character is through sharing a few stories. Ms. 
Linda is becoming well known throughout the district for her ability to transform a standard adult 
restroom into a Zen oasis. She was motivated by the idea of providing a more pleasant space 
for our nursing mother teachers. On her own time and with her own money, she acquired items 
including a small fountain, peaceful wall hangings, plants, and even added soft music to the 
room.  
 
A while back I received a letter from a community member who had met Ms. Linda. His car had 
broken down near our parking lot. He came to the office to see if he could borrow a tool from our 
custodian. She was busy with another task but quickly came to his aid. Ms. Linda was just 
finishing her day and was headed to an appointment, but still offered this man a ride to the 
hardware store and then brought him back to the school. The letter stated he was blown away 
by how she went above and beyond the way he typically saw how others treat strangers. He 
said if he hadn’t recently retired from his business, he would try to steal her to be one of his 
employees, and that he would never forget her kindness. 
 
Another story that demonstrates what an amazing person Ms. Linda is involves one of our 
Whited Eagles with special needs. Ms. Linda heard that one of our students, who happens to 
have a wheelchair, was having a hard time while typing. Ms. Linda figured out she needed a 4 
inch stool for the specific chair she was using at a table for keyboarding. Ms. Linda measured, 
acquired the materials on her own and made the small square stool to put under this child’s 
chair so that her feet would be placed on a solid surface while she typed.  
 
When I asked Ms. Linda’s other colleagues what makes her so special, they had a lot to share, 
so here are their feelings: 



● She loves what she does and is dedicated the the Whited School staff and students. 
● Linda takes pride in her work and likes to be thorough. She invites feedback and is 

willing to problem solve to make things better.  
● She has a fun sense of humor, and gets involved in school events and creates school 

spirit. She is fun to be around. 
● She goes the extra mile without being asked. 
● Linda is amazing! We both get to school at the same time and greet each other at 6:15. 

She is so cheerful and happy every single morning! Her happy smile and positive 
attitude help me start my day off on the right foot. 

● She makes our school a happy place. 
● Her charisma is what makes her loved by all the children and staff at Whited. 
● She always goes beyond expectations and makes every single person feel good and 

she’s able to get a smile or laugh out of people. When I got really sick last year, she 
looked for recipes that would help me recover.  

● She always has an incredibly patient attitude toward kids who make mistakes. 
● She is a delight to chat with and brings smiles and joy during her cleaning visits. 
● She helps at all of the events and parents love working with her, too. 
● Linda truly loves the children. 
● She texts me during the summer so I can know when my classroom is ready. 
● She connects with students and allows them to be helpers. 
● She plays her guitar at Family Reading Night. 
● She always helps right away and does it with a smile.  
● Linda is always so cheerful and available on the other end of the radio. Even with the 

worst calls, she responds with, “Of course I will take care of that”! 
● She helps the kindergarteners as they perform in the community at the Friends’ House. 
● She makes our school beautiful everywhere and even created a zen restroom for us. 
● Kids love working with her, so a clean-up consequence is a win-win for all.  
● She helps give our 6th graders opportunities for community service.  
● Ms. Linda made the Garden Club shed into a dream house, by organizing it and making 

tool holders and glove dryers. She also helped set up and organize Garden Club sheds 
at other schools in the district on her own time.  

● She is regarded as a friend as well as a co-worker.  
 
For these reasons and a million more, I am pleased to announce Linda Warden, our October 
employee of the month. 
 
Beth Acosta 
Whited Principal 



October 10, 2017 

 

Dear Board Members & Dr. Roehrick, 

 

I am so glad to be able to honor Mr. Tayler as the October certificated employee of the month. A 

couple years ago Sequoia didn’t really know what it meant to have a counselor on campus on a 

regular basis. My vision for a counselor was someone on campus 1 or 2 days a week, they pulled 

kids, they checked in with me and that’s what I knew of counseling at the time. And then came 

Tayler. In his plaid shirt. Everyday. And those first few weeks, he walked around a lot, met staff 

and students and learned the pulse of Sequoia. I remember talking to another teacher at the 

time saying, “You know, I like him. I’m not sure what he does all day, but I like him!” Now, of 

course I know what he does all day. And for certain, every person on campus would say that we 

feel extremely lucky to have Tayler as part of our team. Our entire staff sees everyday how he 

connects with students, staff and families. Not only does he work with individual students, he 

works with students in friendship groups, he created a “different styles of learning” group, a 

game room at recess, he checks in with students before school, eats lunch with them, he really 

creates a safe place for kids to be while at school. I know personally that I trust him completely 

to look for the best in every person and every situation, to connect with and gain the trust of 

students, families and teachers. And also always important, he has a really good sense of humor 

which is so important doing the work he does and the work we do with kids.  

 

When I asked staff what they thought about Tayler and his contribution to our school, 

overwhelming they said that he was calm, has an easy demeanor, and one said, “Walking Zen.” 

But they also said that he’s insightful, reasonable, and comes from a strengths-first perspective. 

Even though we are usually bringing him our most challenging kiddos, he is always optimistic 

and looks for ways to build on the strengths of each child. Tayler is always willing to partner 

with teachers and families to help every child grow and be successful. He is kind-hearted and 

approachable and takes his time with everyone he encounters. He’s selfless with kids, willing to 

give them his time and energy so they feel important and heard. But he’s selfless with staff also, 

always asking about your weekend or how you’re doing and never mention much about himself. 

Meanwhile, he was probably biking 50 miles, or sliding down Mt. Shasta, literally, or trying to 

fly to another country for a bike ride over the weekend. But we’d never know any of that because 

he’s always putting others first. I think one teacher said it the perfectly; Tayler is a champion for 

every kid. He’s really the best and we are glad we have him.  

 

 

Moving on to Middle School... 

 

 The students see Mr. Tayler as this cool dude that hangs out on campus.  One of the first things 

you notice about Tayler is that he is completely approachable.  You’ll find him hanging in the 

quad area talking with a student, or running a Restorative Circle in a classroom, or facilitating 

the game room at lunch time with a bunch of squirrelly, fart-obsessed, 7th grade boys. 



Regardless of where he is or who he is talking to, the students feel completely comfortable with 

him.  Tayler has a gift for developing trust with both students and staff alike.  

 

When our middle schoolers act like middle schoolers, Tayler is so even keeled--there is nothing 

they can say that throws him.  He always has a thought-provoking question or suggestion for 

their comments.  When life throws a curveball at a student, Tayler is always there to listen and 

support them.   When hormones throw our students for a loop, Tayler is always there to tenderly 

help them put into perspective the mountain they’ve made out of the mole hill.  And when 

students are struggling to get their work in, Tayler takes them under his wing and provides an 

afterschool space for them to work and get caught up. 

 

Being our cross country coach, Tayler also gets a good number of our students out running each 

week after school. In his first year coaching last year, his team won first place and brought home 

the coveted banner.  His team looks to be on track for finishing strong this year as well.  What’s 

most impressive about Tayler and his cross country team isn’t the fact that he has fast runners, 

which he does, it’s that some of Tayler’s runners are students you would never have envisioned 

running on a cross country team.  Students that have very real, very difficult personal struggles. 

But there they are running and sweating with Tayler and the team.  They are there because Mr. 

Tayler cares about them.  He supports them, he pushes them, he makes them run even when 

they don’t want to, but most importantly, he makes them see that they are worth something, that 

they matter, that they are important.  

 

Our team at RVCS-S truly appreciate Tayler with his calm manner, logical approach, and helpful 

insight in supporting student needs.  He calms down the kids, he calms down the parents, he 

calms down the staff.  Personally, I feel so lucky to have Tayler as one of our family.  I appreciate 

his expertise, professionalism, and his ability to see what students really need.  I have learned so 

much from him.   I also appreciate that Tayler has a middle school sense of humor. On our 

campus, evidently pranks are part of the job description and Tayler can often be found in the 

middle of one. If rubber bands, glitter, frozen firebirds, stink bombs, or fruit flies were involved, 

you can just about guarantee that Tayler was either the perpetrator or the victim.  When a prank 

ensues, he’s often deftly playing dumb, avoiding radio contact, or as is often the case, hiding 

from Iris. 

 

Pranks and plaid aside, Sequoia and RVCS-Sequoia are so incredibly fortunate to have Tayler in 

our lives.  He’s a champion for every kid.  He’s a champion for every staff member.  He’s simply 

a champion. 

 

Congratulations Tayler! 

 

Brooklynn Clark & Amy Wiese 







Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 

 
 

Meeting Date:       November 14, 2017 
 

Agenda Item:         Information Item 12.1 
 

Subject:                  School-Connected Organizations Authorizations 
 

Submitter:           Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 
 

Background: Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 1230 School-Connected 
Organizations encourages good relations and communication with each of 
our parent club organizations.  Each parent club will be presenting 
information about their club for your authorization.  This month we will 
hear from the parent groups.  Please note that several of the parent groups 
have submitted their 2015 IRS documents.  This is because the 2016 file 
date is in December and their organization has not yet filed for the most 
current year.  Each of these groups has committed to filing for 2016 and 
will submit their document once they have done so.   

 
 Sequoia’s packet is missing Attachment #2 and #3.  These will be provided 

as soon as they are submitted or will be available at the meeting. 
 

Highlights:  N/A 

Challenges:   N/A  

Analysis:            N/A  

Next Steps:             The Governing Board will be asked to approve each school’s Parent 
Organization document later in the agenda. 

 
 
Attachments:   Austin Creek Parent Club Authorization 

Binkley Parent Club Authorization 
Madrone Parent Teacher Association Authorization 
Sequoia Parent Teacher Association Authorization 
Spring Creek Matanzas Parent Teacher Association Authorization 
Village Parent Club Authorization 
Whited Parent Teacher Association Authorization 
RVCS Parent Club Authorization 

 
 
Fiscal Impact: While there is no fiscal impact to the District, each group provides a 

significant fiscal contribution to the individual school sites. 
 
Recommendation:         For discussion only 



































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: November 14, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 12.2 

Subject: CAASPP Results 

Submitter:  Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum  

 
Background: This item is a follow-up to our California Assessment of Student Performance and 

Progress (CAASPP) discussion in September 2017. At that time, state and county 
data was not available. The graphs included in the November Board packet show 
the comparison of state, county, and district results for ELA and Math. 

Highlights: RVUSD outperformed the state and county in almost every category. English 
Learner performance in Math was slightly lower than the county and state 
(California = 12%, Sonoma County = 12%, RVUSD = 11%). 

Challenges:  The California Department of Education (CDE) reported in October that, 
statewide, there were no significant improvements in results from 2016 to 2017. 
While RVUSD did see many area of improvement, we are continuing the work of 
aligning classroom instruction and instructional materials with the state standards 
(and therefore, the tests). It is a long process. 

Analysis: As reported by CDE, “It is important to note that [unlike the previous test 
reporting system] the English learner (EL) group contains only current English 
learners. Once English learners become fluent, they are reclassified as fluent 
English proficient and are no longer counted in the EL group. To better determine 
the progress of ELs, it is recommended to view the California School Dashboard 
which uses multiple measures to determine the progress of English learners.” 

Next Steps: We are reviewing CAASPP results in the context of the CA School Dashboard, 
which is currently being updated and scheduled to be made public on November 
27, 2017. If the Dashboard is released on time, we will discuss the district results 
in December. 

Attachments: Graphs comparing state, county, and district results for 2017 ELA and Math 
CAASPP. 

 
Fiscal Impact: N/A   
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



CAASPP
Overall Performance Results

A comparison of 2017 results for:

California, Sonoma County, and 

Rincon Valley



Standard Not Met
Standard Nearly

Met
Standard Met Standard Exceeded

California 28% 23% 28% 20%

Sonoma County 26% 25% 30% 18%

Rincon Valley 18% 23% 34% 25%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%
P

er
ce

n
t 

o
f 

St
u

d
en

ts
 a

t 
A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

Le
ve

ls

2017 SBAC English Language Arts 
Summative Assessment- All Grades

2017 CAASPP ELA Overall Results 
Achievement Level Distributions 

State, County, District Comparison



Standard Not Met
Standard Nearly

Met
Standard Met Standard Exceeded

California 36% 27% 20% 18%

Sonoma County 34% 29% 22% 15%

Rincon Valley 24% 28% 27% 21%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%
P

er
ce

n
t 

o
f 

St
u

d
en

ts
 a

t 
A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

Le
ve

ls

2017 SBAC Mathematics
Summative Assessment- All Grades

2017 CAASPP Mathematics Overall Results 
Achievement Level Distributions 

State, County, District Comparison



Hispanic White ED SWD EL RFEP All

California 37% 64% 36% 14% 12% 58% 48%

Sonoma County 34% 62% 32% 15% 14% 53% 49%

Rincon Valley 40% 67% 39% 19% 15% 57% 59%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%
P

er
ce

n
t 

 a
t 

St
an

d
ar

d
 M

et
 o

r 
A

b
o

ve

2017 CAASPP ELA Overall Results 
Percent of Subgroups at Standard Met or Standard Exceeded

State, County, District Comparison

2017 SBAC ELA- All Grades
Percent of Subgroups At Standard Met or Standard Exceeded



Hispanic White ED SWD EL RFEP All

California 25% 53% 25% 11% 12% 41% 38%

Sonoma County 23% 49% 22% 11% 12% 33% 37%

Rincon Valley 29% 56% 27% 18% 11% 41% 48%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%
P

er
ce

n
t 

 a
t 

St
an

d
ar

d
 M

et
 o

r 
A

b
o

ve

2017 CAASPP Math Overall Results 
Percent of Subgroups at Standard Met or Standard Exceeded

State, County, District Comparison

2017 SBAC Math- All Grades
Percent of Subgroups At Standard Met or Standard Exceeded



Grade 3 Grade 4 Grade 5 Grade 6 Grade 7 Grade 8 All

California 44% 45% 47% 47% 49% 49% 49%

Sonoma County 43% 44% 45% 48% 50% 49% 49%

Rincon Valley 61% 49% 55% 62% 79% 68% 59%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

P
er

ce
n

t 
 a

t 
St

an
d

ar
d

 M
et

 o
r 

A
b

o
ve

2017 CAASPP English Language Arts/Literacy Overall Results 
Percent of Grade Level at Standard Met or Standard Exceeded 

State, County, District Comparison

2017 SBAC ELA- Percent of Grade Level at 
Standard Met or Standard Exceeded



Grade 3 Grade 4 Grade 5 Grade 6 Grade 7 Grade 8 All

California 47% 40% 34% 37% 37% 36% 38%

Sonoma County 45% 39% 32% 36% 38% 36% 37%

Rincon Valley 63% 45% 40% 46% 46% 40% 48%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

P
er

ce
n

t 
 a

t 
St

an
d

ar
d

 M
et

 o
r 

A
b

o
ve

2017 Math Overall Results 
Percent of Grade Level at Standard Met or Standard Exceeded 

State, County, District Comparison

2017 SBAC Math - Percent of Grade Level at 
Standard Met or Standard Exceeded



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: November 14, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 12.3 

Subject: Student Services Update –Status of students and families following wild fires. 

Submitter:  Mrs. Cathy Myhers, Assistant Superintendent for Student Services  

 
Background: The community response to the families impacted by the October wildfires has 

been amazing.  The Rincon Valley Union School District staff have collaborated 
with outside agencies and individuals to identify support and resources for our 
families.  We have 112 students who lost a home during the wildfires.  New 
students are continuing to enroll as families find housing within our boundaries.  If 
available, numbers of new students will be shared at the Board Meeting.   

Highlights:  *A Resource Fair was held on 10/21 where students and families were able to 
come and accept donations of clothing, personal items, toys and gift cards.  RVEF 
has been a strong partner and has collected gift card donations to provide to our 
families who lost homes.    

 *On 10/23 when students returned to school, we were able to offer additional 
counseling resources at each school and comfort dogs.   Each school had an 
assigned mental health support staff member for the entire week when school 
resumed.   

 *The RVEF has continued to work closely with our student services department, as 
we have distributed gift cards that were donated by the Redwood Credit Union.   

  

Challenges: The challenges have been in coordinating all of the donations that we have 
received.  We are working quickly to get them out to families.   There are many 
groups who have generously provided items to us including school supplies, 
personal items and backpacks.     

Analysis:  This wildfire event has changed our community.  We are all working to support 
our staff and students right now, and we do not know what type of support will be 
needed as we move forward.  The generosity of the community has been a 
wonderful gift for our families.  School staff will be updated throughout the year 
on what to look for with students who may express the feelings of loss in different 
ways.   

Next Steps: On 12/2 a second, smaller resource event will be held at Whited School.  This 
event is by invitation only and focuses on our families who lost homes in the fires 
and specifically those who did not have insurance. 

 The RVEF has created a Secret Santa sign up for families who were impacted by 
the fires.  Families can sign up or school staff can sign up a family who they know 
needs the support.  Items will be given to the families before Winter Break.  



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 
Attachments: None at this time   
 
Fiscal Impact: None at this time   
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: November 14, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 12.4 

Subject: Facility Plan 2018 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent for Business  

 
Background: The board customarily reviews the District’s construction schedule and provides 

input to staff. 

Highlights: The District has or is virtually complete with construction at Matanzas, as well as 
phase I work at Binkley and Madrone.  Work is currently underway at Village. 

Challenges: The costs of construction were increasing significantly and the impact of the wild 
fire on pricing, although unknown, will not be positive. 

Analysis: The District has successfully completed major upgrades and additions every year 
since Measure F passed by the voters. 

Next Steps: Review the schedule for discussion 

Attachments: Facility Schedule 
 
Fiscal Impact: The Facility Program is estimated to cost approximately $57M in total 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Facility Work 
New Construction/Modernization Schedule 
 

2015 

Matanzas Elementary Modernization 

RVCS Matanzas New Construction 

Binkley Elementary, New Kinder Classroom 

Madrone Elementary, New Kinder Classroom 

Austin Creek Science Portable, Gym Repair (2014) 

 

2016 

Madrone Phase I: New Construction, Modernization 

Binkley Phase I:  New Construction, Modernization 

Spring Creek, Matanzas and Sequoia Play Structure 

Sequoia Lunch Area 

Austin Creek Electronic Entry System 

 

2017 

Binkley and Madrone Phase I completion 

Village Phase I, New Construction, Modernization 

Matanzas Phase III (Final) 

Matanzas South Wing Roof 

Spring Creek New Entryway, Sealcoat and Striping, Roof Repair (2), Window Repairs, Carpet 

Sequoia Seal Coating, Striping and Pavement Repair, Storm Drain Repair 

Austin Creek Seal‐Coat and Stripe Parking Lot and Play Area 

 

2018 

Austin Creek, Spring Creek, Whited, Sequoia Air Conditioning 

Village Phase I Completion 

Village Phase II 

Madrone Entryway Hardscape and Landscaping 

Binkley Entryway Hardscape and Landscaping 

Madrone Entryway? 

 

2019 

Whited New Construction, Modernization 

Spring Creek Portable Replacement, modernization 

Repurpose RVP Building 

 

2020 

Sequoia New Construction, Modernization 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: November 14, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 12.5 

Subject: California Dashboard Local Indicators 

Submitter:  Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum  

 
Background:  

California’s new accountability system was unveiled in Spring 2016. While the old system resulted in 
single score per school/district, the new system measures both status and change in each of the Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF) priority areas, which are each addressed in our Local Control 
Accountability Plan (LCAP). The updated California School Dashboard is scheduled to be released to 
the public November 27, 2017 and will include local indicators for the first time. Below are our 
submissions for the local indicators.  

Highlights:  

Priority 1 (for 2016-17): Williams Act  
 Number/percentage of misassignments of teachers of English learners, total teacher 

misassignments, and vacant teacher positions: 0  
 Number/percentage of students without access to their own copies of standards-aligned 

instructional materials for use at school and at home: 0  
 Number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the “good repair” standard (including 

deficiencies and extreme deficiencies): 0  
 
Priority 2: Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks (2016-17) 
 
Rating Scale (lowest to highest): 1 – Exploration and Research Phase; 2 – Beginning Development; 3 
– Initial Implementation; 4 – Full Implementation; 5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability 
 
Progress in providing professional learning for 

teaching to the recently adopted academic 
standards and/or curriculum frameworks 

1 2 3 4 5 

ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA    XX  
ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards)   XX   
Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for 
Mathematics 

  XX   

Next Generation Science Standards  XX    
History-Social Science XX     

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

 
Progress in implementing policies or programs 
to support staff in identifying areas where they 
can improve in delivering instruction aligned to 
the recently adopted academic standards and/or 
curriculum frameworks (e.g. collaborative time) 

1 2 3 4 5 

ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA   XX   
ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards)   XX   
Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for 
Mathematics 

 XX    

Next Generation Science Standards  XX    
History-Social Science XX     
 

Progress implementing each of the following 
academic standards adopted by the State Board 

of Education 

1 2 3 4 5 

Career Technical Education  XX    
Health Education Content Standards   XX   
Physical Education Model Content Standards   XX   
Visual and Performing Arts    XX  
World Language XX     

 

 
 

Progress in making instructional materials that 
are aligned to the recently adopted academic 

standards and/or curriculum frameworks 

1 2 3 4 5 

ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA  XX    
ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards)  XX    
Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for 
Mathematics 

   XX  

Next Generation Science Standards XX     
History-Social Science XX     

Success at engaging in the following activities 
with teachers and school administrators 

1 2 3 4 5 

Identifying the professional learning needs of 
groups of teachers or staff as a whole  

  XX   

Identifying the professional learning needs of 
individual teachers  

   XX  

Providing support for teachers on the standards they 
have not yet mastered  

 XX    



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Priority 3: Parent Engagement (2016-17): Decision-making and Participation 
 
For the 2016-17 school year, the Rincon Valley Union School District sought to put into place the 
infrastructure at each school to ensure parents have ongoing opportunities to provide their input into 
school and district decision-making.  A specific action was placed into the LCAP to assess the 
existence at each school of parent advisory and decision-making groups such as site councils, 
parent organizations (PTO/PTA), and English Learner Advisory Councils (ELAC).  Upon 
collecting data for this action, the District determined that each school has a functioning site council 
and a parent organization.  Those schools with at least 50 or more English learners also have a 
functioning ELAC. 
 
For the 2016-17 school year, the Rincon Valley Union School District expanded its use of a social-
emotional program, Restorative Practices.  In order to ensure our families understood this relatively 
new program, the District set a goal of providing a site-based parent training for each school.  All of 
the expected trainings were held during Fall 2016.  While the District did not ask parents to sign in, 
an informal head count was made each time.  This data reveals that each school had at least 25 
parents attend their training. 
 
The District chose these measures because they are aligned to the District’s parent involvement 
strategy woven into its LCAP.  The District, working with teachers, principals, and parent groups, 
determined to embed Priority 3 LCAP goals, actions, and services through three lenses: 

1. Parents as decision-makers 
2. Parents as participants 
3. Parents as learners 

 
Priority 6 (for 2015-16 and/or 2016-17):  School Climate 
The California Healthy Kids Survey was last administered in the fall of 2015. At that time, 82% of 
5th graders and 80% of 7th graders reported feeling safe at school "all" or "most" of the time. 
RVUSD administers a local student survey annually. In 2016-17, 82% of elementary students and 
87% of middle school students reported feeling safe at school "always" or "often." In addition, 79% 
of elementary students and 76% of middle school students reported that they are "always" or "often" 
happy to be at this school.  

Challenges:  N/A   

Analysis:   For the Fall 2017 update, submission of the local indicator information results in a 
status of “Met” for each category.  

Next Steps:  Once the Dashboard has been updated and released, we will provide trustees with 
the current status/information, our analysis, and next steps.  

Attachments: Approved Performance Standards for Local Indicators  
 
Fiscal Impact: None   
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 



Approved Performance Standards 
 
The SBE approved performance standards for all local performance indicators. The 
approved standards are below.  
 
Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum-Aligned Instructional 
Materials, and Safe, Clean and Functional School Facilities (Priority 1) 
Standard: LEA annually measures its progress in meeting the Williams settlement 
requirements at 100 percent at all of its school sites, as applicable, and promptly 
addresses any complaints or other deficiencies identified throughout the academic year, 
as applicable; and provides information annually on progress meeting this standard to 
its local governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting of the local governing board 
and to stakeholders and the public through the Dashboard. 
 
Implementation of State Academic Standards (Priority 2) 
Standard: LEA annually measures its progress implementing state academic standards 
and reports the results to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting of 
the local governing board and to stakeholders and the public through the Dashboard.   
 
Parent Engagement (Priority 3) 
Standard: LEA annually measures its progress in: (1) seeking input from parents in 
decision making and (2) promoting parental participation in programs, and reports the 
results to its local governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting of the local 
governing board and to stakeholders and the public through the Dashboard.   
 
School Climate (Priority 6) 
Standard: LEA administers a local climate survey at least every other year that provides 
a valid measure of perceptions of school safety and connectedness, such as the 
California Healthy Kids Survey, to students in at least one grade within the grade 
span(s) that the LEA serves (e.g., K-5, 6-8, 9-12), and reports the results to its local 
governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting of the local governing board and to 
stakeholders and the public through the Dashboard.   
 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: November 14, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 12.6 

Subject: Post Fire Update 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

 
Background: On Monday, October 9, 2017, the greater Santa Rosa community was faced with a 

significant natural disaster as several fires raged through our community.  One 
result is that our RVUSD schools closed for eleven school days. 

Highlights: The purpose of this information item is for each department to provide information 
as to our status since reopening our schools. 

Dr. Roehrick will report on the impacts on student enrollment and district staff.  

Dr. Pandolfo will report on the facility remediation plan that the District 
implemented to prepare our facilities for students and staff, as well as the financial 
implications including state waivers and the delay of selling bonds. 

Dr. Metzger will report on the efforts to adjust instruction and support teachers in 
making those adjustments. 

Mrs. Myhers will report on our student report efforts (resources and emotional), as 
well as other agency donations and offers of assistance.  

Challenges: The impacts from the wildfires are much greater than simply re-opening our 
schools.  Moving forward is likely to take years for our collective recovery from 
the significant emotional and financial impacts that impact our ability to provide 
effective instruction. 

Analysis: These events are unprecedented and the toll on our families and employees has 
been significant.   We need to be attentive the merging needs of our community.  

Next Steps: Continue to assess our steps to support our students, families, and employees as we 
recover. 

Attachments: RVUSD Enrollment: October 6, October 27, and November 3, 2017 
      RVUSD Facility Remediation Plan for Re-opening School Post Tubbs Fire 
 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Indeterminate  
   
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 









Rincon Valley Union School District 
Facility Remediation Plan for Re-opening School Post Tubbs Fire 

October 2017 
 

 
 
Beginning late Sunday night, October 8, 2017 a series of wild fires erupted throughout 
Sonoma and Napa counties.  By the time the fires ran their course, tens of thousands of 
acres were burnt, more than six thousand structures were lost, and forty-four individual 
lives were lost.  This single event was the largest natural disaster in California’s history.  
The facilities in the Rincon Valley Union School District (RVUSD) were fortunately 
spared.  However, the District was closed for eleven schools days due the fires’ proximity 
and subsequent cleanup efforts. 
 
The Sonoma County Office of Emergency Services (OES) assessed the conditions of the 
public schools throughout the county.  In the Santa Rosa area, one school was destroyed, 
Hidden Valley Satellite.  Three elementary schools were in determined to be within burn 
zones: Hidden Valley (Santa Rosa City), Riebli (Mark West), and Schaefer (Piner-
Olivet).  Riebli and Schaefer remain closed, while Hidden Valley has re-opened. 
 
The Sonoma County Office of Education, and our insurer, Redwood Empire School 
Insurance Group, provided the following guidelines for cleaning schools that were outside 
of the burn zones. 
 

1. Clean all surfaces - wipe down thoroughly. 
2. Air filters should be replaced or blown out. 
3. Ash on sidewalks should be washed away. 
4. Vacuum all carpets. 
5. Log all products used. 
6. Log all costs for products used. 
7. Log all custodial time spent. 
8. Be sure to have custodians and work crews wear facemasks during clean up. 

 
District operational employees returned to work on Wednesday, October 18 to begin the 
cleaning process.  This provided three days before all other employees returned to work 
on Monday, October 23 and school resumed for students on Tuesday, October 24.  
District operational managers Daniel Hebel (Maintenance and Operations) and Allison 
Smith (Custodial and Food Service) and Deputy Superintendent Business Dr. Joe 
Pandolfo oversaw the cleanup process.  During the three days prior to most employees 
returning, all facilities had been cleaned to the standards required by the organizations 
noted above.  Site administrators were also critical through their own inspections and  
ensured any overlooked area was identified and resources were provided to resolve the 
issue. 
 



The week prior, on Wednesday, October 11, maintenance staff removed all of the debris 
created by the windstorm that fueled the fires.   Several fallen trees and limbs were 
removed from campuses across the district.   
 
In addition to cleaning the facilities to the required standards, the District took the extra 
step of purchasing and placing into each classroom, office, and workroom, HEPA filter 
air purifiers.  These systems have been very effective in removing additional air particles 
that standard HVAC filters do not capture. 
 
As direct result of the District’s remediation plan, schools re-opened as scheduled on 
Tuesday, October 24.   
 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: November 14, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 12.7 

Subject: Board Policy Review – CSBA October 2017 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

 
Background: The District contracts with the California School Boards Association (CSBA) for 

Policy services.  CSBA, through their GAMUT portal, provides four updates per 
year of recommended changes to Board Policy and Administrative Regulations.  
The policies and administrative regulations this month represent the October 2017 
CSBA update.  

 
Highlights: Behind this cover sheet is CSBA’s summary of the changes included in each 

policy and administrative regulation.  This will allow trustees to easily identify the 
changes that are included.   

Challenges: N/A  

Analysis: Changes to these documents reflect new laws and regulations and ensures the 
district is compliant with these new requirements.  

Next Steps: The attached documents, with any recommended changes, will return in December 
for Board adoption. 

Attachments: CSBA Update Guidesheet, October 2017 
 Recommended Board Policy and Administrative Regulations 
  
 
Fiscal Impact:   None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
October 2017 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education 
should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 

 
BP 0400 - Comprehensive Plans 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to include the local control and accountability plan (LCAP) as a comprehensive plan of the 
district and to emphasize the need for consistency among the documents that set direction for the district. 

 
BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy and regulation updated to delete references to 5 CCR 15497.5 (repealed) which formerly contained 
the LCAP template. The LCAP template continues to be approved by the State Board of Education and is 
available on the California Department of Education (CDE) web site. Policy also adds a definition of 
"numerically significant student subgroups" whose needs must be addressed in the LCAP. Regulation also 
deletes requirement to use the state's Academic Performance Index (API) as a measure of student 
achievement, as the API has been replaced by a new state accountability system.  

 
BP 0500 - Accountability 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to reflect the new state accountability system (the California School Dashboard), which 
consists of both state and local indicators to assist districts in identifying strengths and areas in need of 
improvement in each priority area addressed by the LCAP. 
 

BP/AR 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools 
(BP/AR deleted) 

Policy and regulation deleted as federal program improvement requirements have been suspended for the 
2017-18 school year and will, beginning in the 2018-19 school year, be replaced by a new system of 
comprehensive and targeted improvement established by the Every Student Succeeds Act. 

 
BP 0520.3 - Title I Program Improvement Districts 
(BP deleted) 

Policy deleted as federal program improvement requirements have been suspended for the 2017-18 school 
year and will, beginning in the 2018-19 school year, be replaced by a new system of comprehensive and 
targeted improvement established by the Every Student Succeeds Act. 

 
BP/AR 1113 - District and School Web Sites 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to (1) clarify the district's responsibility to make district and school web sites accessible to 
individuals with disabilities; (2) reflect laws prohibiting web site operators from using web site information 
to amass a profile about a student, engage in targeted advertising to students, or sell or disclose a student's 
information, including NEW LAW (AB 2799, 2016) which prohibits such activities for web sites used 
primarily for preschool and prekindergarten purposes; and (3) clarify options related to posting student 
photographs on district and school web sites together with their names. Regulation updated to (1) add section 
on "Design Standards," including standards for web site accessibility to individuals with disabilities; (2) 
reflect NEW LAW (AB 2257, 2016) which requires posting a prominent, direct link to the current board 
meeting agenda or to an integrated agenda management platform, effective January 1, 2019; and (3) clarify 
requirements related to posting copyrighted material. 
 



POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
October 2017 

Page 2 of 4 
 
 
BP 3280 - Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to delete the requirement to first offer surplus property to a charter school with at least 80 
students. Material regarding the appointment of the district advisory committee expanded to specify the 
circumstances under which the district is not required to appoint a committee, including the exception for the 
sale, lease, or rental of excess property to be used for teacher or other employee housing pursuant to NEW 
LAW (AB 1157, 2017). Policy expands section on "Use of Proceeds" to reflect additional legal requirements, 
and deletes the authority (repealed) to use the proceeds from the sale of surplus property for any one-time 
general fund purpose provided that the district adopted a plan and made certain certifications to the State 
Allocation Board. 

 
BP 3513.4 - Drug and Alcohol Free Schools 
(BP added) 

New policy prohibits the possession, use, or sale of drugs or alcohol by any person on district property and 
addresses enforcement and discipline for violations of this policy. Policy also reflects NEW LAW 
(Proposition 64, 2016) which prohibits any person from possessing, smoking, or ingesting cannabis on 
school grounds while children are present. 

 
AR 3515.6 - Criminal Background Checks for Contractors 
(AR revised) 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 949, 2017) which requires criminal background checks for 
sole proprietors who contract with the district to provide specified services, if they will have contact with 
children, and provides that it is the responsibility of the district to prepare and submit the fingerprints of the 
sole proprietor to the Department of Justice. Regulation also reorganized to clarify criminal background 
check requirements applicable to entities contracting for construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or repair 
of a school facility.  

 
BP 4140/4240/4340 - Bargaining Units 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 285, 2017) which prohibits districts from deterring or discouraging 
employees from becoming or remaining members of an employee organization. Policy also reflects NEW 
LAW (AB 119, 2017) which requires districts to provide employee organizations with specified contact 
information for new employees in the bargaining unit and to give employee organizations access to new 
employee orientations (limited in scope to onboarding sessions where newly hired employees are advised of 
their employment status, rights, benefits, duties, responsibilities, or any other employment-related matters). 

 
BP/AR 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to reflect the inclusion of a chronic absence indicator in the California School Dashboard 
effective in the fall of 2018, add examples of interventions for attendance problems, and delete section on 
"School Attendance Review Board" since that material is now covered in BP/AR 5113.12 - District School 
Attendance Review Board. Regulation updated to delete references to 5 CCR 15497.5 (repealed), which 
formerly contained the LCAP template that is now available on the CDE web site, and to delete section on 
the appointment and general duties of attendance supervisors, now covered in AR 5113.11 - Attendance 
Supervision. 

 
AR 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision 
(AR added) 

New regulation addresses the appointment of a district attendance supervisor and reflects NEW LAW (AB 
2815, 2016) which expresses the Legislature's intent that the attendance supervisor fulfill specified duties. 



POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
October 2017 

Page 3 of 4 
 
 
BP/AR 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board 
(BP/AR added) 

New policy and regulation are for use by districts that have established their own local school attendance 
review board (SARB), and reflect the basic purposes, functions, and operations of the SARB. 

 
BP/AR 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 99, 2017) which makes a number of changes to the school district 
of choice program, including (1) requiring a participating district to register as a school district of choice with 
the Superintendent of Public Instruction and the county board of education by July 1, 2018; (2) expanding 
the factors that must not be considered by districts in the selection process; and (3) revising the requirements 
for annually reporting the disposition of transfer requests. Regulation updated to reflect provisions of AB 99 
related to public announcements regarding the program, priorities for admission, and the timeline for 
notification of a student's provisional acceptance or rejection. Regulation also reflects NEW LAW (SB 344, 
2017) which gives the county board in a class 1 county, as defined, 60 calendar days to decide an appeal 
when a district denies a transfer under an interdistrict attendance agreement. Section on "Transfers Out of the 
District" moved from BP to AR, and revised to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2659, 2016) which provides that a 
district must not prohibit the transfer of a child of a military family to any district that approves the transfer. 

 
AR 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts 
(AR revised) 

Regulation updated to clarify the circumstances under which the district may withhold a student's grades, 
diploma, and/or transcripts until the student's parents/guardians have paid for the damages to or loss of district 
property willfully caused by the student. Regulation also clarifies the student's due process rights, as well as 
the requirement to continue to withhold the grades, diploma, and/or transcripts when such a student transfers 
from one district to another. 

 
BP 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to reflect the goals and purposes of the federal Student Support and Academic Enrichment 
Grants program, as established by the Every Student Succeeds Act. Policy also deletes material on drug and 
alcohol master plans and county primary prevention programs, since the related laws repealed on their own 
terms. 

 
E 5131.63 - Steroids 
(E deleted) 

Exhibit deleted since the California Interscholastic Federation provides the sample agreement that student 
athletes and parents/guardians must sign to promise that the student will not use steroids or banned dietary 
supplements. 
 

BP/AR 6020 - Parent Involvement 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy and regulation updated to reflect requirements for parent involvement in schools receiving federal 
Title I, Part A funding, as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act, including expanding activities to 
include engagement of family members. Policy also reflects parent involvement as a state priority that must 
be addressed in the district's LCAP.   

 
 
 
 



POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
October 2017 

Page 4 of 4 
 
 
AR 6112 - School Day 
(AR revised) 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 99, 2017) which permits districts to maintain kindergarten or 
transitional kindergarten classes for different lengths of time during the school day, either at the same or 
different school sites. Regulation also reflects provision of AB 99 which allows districts to schedule classes 
in an early college high school or middle college high school so that students attend classes for at least 900 
minutes during any five school day period or 1,800 minutes during any 10 school day period. 

 
BP 6153 - School-Sponsored Trips 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 341, 2017) which eliminates the prohibition against the use of 
district funds to pay for the expenses of students participating in field trips or excursions to another state, to 
the District of Columbia, or to a foreign country. 

 
BP 6170.1 - Transitional Kindergarten 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 99, 2017) which permits districts to maintain transitional 
kindergarten classes for different lengths of time during the school day, either at the same or different school 
sites, provided that the length of the school day complies with legal requirements related to the minimum and 
maximum length of the school day. 

 
AR 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth 
(AR revised) 

Regulation updated to reflect the Every Student Succeeds Act, which amends the definition of a foster youth's 
"best interest" and requires districts and child welfare agencies to come to an agreement as to how 
transportation will be provided to enable foster youth to attend their school of origin.   

 
BP/AR 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to reflect the Every Student Succeeds Act, which provides that military-connected students 
will be assigned a national identification number to facilitate monitoring of their academic progress and 
requires districts to issue an annual report card that includes state achievement results for such students. 
Policy also adds optional language on collaborating with the military's school liaison officers and providing 
staff development related to the educational rights of military-connected students. Regulation updated to add 
material regarding the transfer of course credits, exemption from local graduation requirements when a 
student transfers after the completion of the second year of high school, and use of the uniform complaint 
procedures for allegations of noncompliance by the district, pursuant to NEW LAW (AB 365, 2017). 
Regulation also reflects NEW LAW (SB 455, 2017) which provides that a student will be deemed to meet 
district residency requirements if his/her parent/guardian is transferred or is pending transfer to a military 
installation within the state, and NEW LAW (AB 2659, 2016) which provides that districts must not prohibit 
the transfer of a military-connected student out of the district regardless of whether the district has an 
interdistrict transfer agreement with another district. 
 

 



Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0400(a) 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLANS 
 
 
The Governing Board believes that careful planning is essential to effective implementation 
of district programs and policies. Comprehensive plans shall identify cohesive strategies for 
school improvement, provide stability in district operations, and be aligned to ensure 
consistency among district approaches for student academic growth and achievement. 
 
Comprehensive plans adopted by the district shall include the local control and accountability 
plan (LCAP) and other plans required by law or determined by the Board to be in the best 
interest of the district. Such plans may describe anticipated short- and long-term needs, 
measurable outcomes, priorities, activities, available resources, timelines, staff 
responsibilities, and strategies for internal and external communications regarding the plan. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education) 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 
(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 
(cf. 3543 - Transportation Safety and Emergencies) 
(cf. 4141.6/4241.6 - Concerted Action/Work Stoppage) 
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 
 
The process for developing comprehensive plans shall include broad participation of school 
and community representatives. Committees may, and when required by law shall, be 
appointed to assist in the development of such plans. District comprehensive plans are 
subject to review and approval by the Board. 
 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
(cf. 9130 - Board Committees) 
 
School-level plans may be developed to meet the unique circumstances of individual school 
sites, provided that they are consistent with law, Board policies, district administrative 
regulations, the district vision, the LCAP, and other districtwide plans. School plans shall be 
subject to review and approval of the Superintendent or designee, except when law or Board 
policy requires Board approval of the plan. 
 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
 
Comprehensive plans shall be available to the public, and shall be reviewed and updated at 
regular intervals as specified within the plan or required by law. 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 



 BP 0400(b) 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLANS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
32280-32289  School safety plans 
35035  Powers and duties of the superintendent 
35291  Rules (power of governing board) 
39831.3  Transportation safety plan 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
56195-56195.10  Comprehensive local plans for special education 
56205-56208  Requirements for special education plan 
64001  Single school plan for student achievement, consolidated application programs 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
560  Civil defense and disaster preparedness plans 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6312  Local educational agency plan 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: October 2017 



Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0460(a) 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
 
 
The Governing Board desires to ensure the most effective use of available funding to 
improve outcomes for all students. A comprehensive, data-driven planning process shall be 
used to identify annual goals and specific actions and to facilitate continuous improvement of 
district practices. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
 
The Board shall adopt a districtwide local control and accountability plan (LCAP), based on 
the template adopted by the State Board of Education, that addresses the state priorities in 
Education Code 52060 and any local priorities adopted by the Board. The LCAP shall be 
updated on or before July 1 of each year and, like the district budget, shall cover the next 
fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years.  (Education Code 52060, 52064; 5 CCR 15494-
15497) 
 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
 
The LCAP shall focus on improving outcomes for all students, particularly those who are 
"unduplicated students" or are part of any numerically significant student subgroup that is at 
risk of or is underperforming. 
 
Unduplicated students include students who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals, 
English learners, and foster youth, as defined in Education Code 42238.01 for purposes of 
the local control funding formula.  (Education Code 42238.02) 
 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
 
Numerically significant student subgroups include ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically 
disadvantaged students, English learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and 
homeless students, when there are at least 30 students in the subgroup or at least 15 foster 
youth or homeless students, or as otherwise defined by the Superintendent of Public 
Instruction (SPI).  (Education Code 52052) 
 
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall review the single plan for student achievement (SPSA) 
submitted by each district school pursuant to Education Code 64001 to ensure that the 
specific actions included in the LCAP are consistent with strategies included in the SPSA.  
(Education Code 52062) 
 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
 
 



 BP 0460(b) 
 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN  (continued) 
 
 
The LCAP shall also be aligned with other district and school plans to the extent possible in 
order to minimize duplication of effort and provide clear direction for program 
implementation. 
 
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 
 
Any complaint that the district has not complied with legal requirements pertaining to the 
LCAP may be filed pursuant to AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.  (Education 
Code 52075) 
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
Plan Development 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall gather data and information needed for effective and 
meaningful plan development and present it to the Board and community. Such data and 
information shall include, but not be limited to, data regarding the number of students in 
student subgroups, disaggregated data on student achievement levels, and information about 
current programs and expenditures. 
 
The Board shall consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, 
employee bargaining units, parents/guardians, and students in developing the LCAP. 
Consultation with students shall enable unduplicated students and other numerically 
significant student subgroups to review and comment on LCAP development and may 
include surveys of students, student forums, student advisory committees, and/or meetings 
with student government bodies or other groups representing students.  (Education Code 
52060; 5 CCR 15495) 
 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 4140/4240/4340 - Bargaining Units) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
Public Review and Input 
 
The Board shall establish a parent advisory committee to review and comment on the LCAP. 
The committee shall be composed of a majority of parents/guardians and shall include at 
least one parent/guardian of an unduplicated student as defined above.  (Education Code 
52063; 5 CCR 15495) 
 
 



 BP 0460(c) 
 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN  (continued) 
 
 
Whenever district enrollment includes at least 15 percent English learners, with at least 50 
students who are English learners, the Board shall establish an English learner parent 
advisory committee composed of a majority of parents/guardians of English learners.  
(Education Code 52063; 5 CCR 15495) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall present the LCAP to the committee(s) before it is 
submitted to the Board for adoption, and shall respond in writing to comments received from 
the committee(s).  (Education Code 52062) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify members of the public of the opportunity to 
submit written comments regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed to be 
included in the LCAP.  The notification shall be provided using the most efficient method of 
notification possible, which may not necessarily include producing printed notices or sending 
notices by mail.  All written notifications related to the LCAP shall be provided in the 
primary language of parents/guardians when required by Education Code 48985.  (Education 
Code 52062) 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
As part of the parent and community engagement process, the district shall solicit input on 
effective and appropriate instructional methods, including, but not limited to, establishing 
language acquisition programs to enable all students, including English learners and native 
English speakers, to have access to the core academic content standards and to become 
proficient in English.  (Education Code 305-306) 
 
The Board shall hold at least one public hearing to solicit the recommendations and 
comments of members of the public regarding the specific actions and expenditures proposed 
to be included in the LCAP. The public hearing shall be held at the same meeting as the 
budget hearing required pursuant to Education Code 42127 and AR 3100 - Budget.  
(Education Code 42127, 52062) 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
 
Adoption of the Plan 
 
The Board shall adopt the LCAP prior to adopting the district budget, but at the same public 
meeting. This meeting shall be held after the public hearing described above, but not on the 
same day as the hearing. 
 
The Board may adopt revisions to the LCAP at any time during the period in which the plan 
is in effect, provided the Board follows the process to adopt the LCAP pursuant to Education 
Code 52062 and the revisions are adopted in a public meeting.  (Education Code 52062) 
 



 BP 0460(d) 
 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN  (continued) 
 
 
Submission of Plan to County Superintendent of Schools 
 
Not later than five days after adoption of the LCAP, the Board shall file the LCAP with the 
County Superintendent of Schools.  (Education Code 52070) 
 
If the County Superintendent sends, by August 15, a written request for clarification of the 
contents of the LCAP, the Board shall respond in writing within 15 days of the request.  If 
the County Superintendent then submits recommendations for amendments to the LCAP 
within 15 days of receiving the Board's response, the Board shall consider those 
recommendations in a public meeting within 15 days of receiving the recommendations.  
(Education Code 52070) 
 
Monitoring Progress 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board, at least annually in accordance with 
the timeline and indicators established by him/her and the Board, regarding the district's 
progress toward attaining each goal identified in the LCAP.  Evaluation shall include, but not 
be limited to, an assessment of district and school performance reported on the California 
School Dashboard. Evaluation data shall be used to recommend any necessary revisions to 
the LCAP. 
 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 
Technical Assistance/Intervention 
 
When it is in the best interest of the district, the Board may submit a request to the County 
Superintendent for technical assistance, including, but not limited to:  (Education Code 
52071) 
 
1. Assistance in the identification of district strengths and weaknesses in regard to state 

priorities, and review of effective, evidence-based programs that apply to the district's 
goals 

 
2. Assistance from an academic expert, team of academic experts, or another district in 

the county in identifying and implementing effective programs to improve the 
outcomes for student subgroups 

 
3. Advice and assistance from the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence 

established pursuant to Education Code 52074 
 
 
 
 



 BP 0460(e) 
 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN  (continued) 
 
 
In the event that the County Superintendent requires the district to receive technical 
assistance pursuant to Education Code 52071, the Board shall review all recommendations 
received from the County Superintendent or other advisor and shall consider revisions to the 
LCAP as appropriate in accordance with the process specified in Education Code 52062. 
 
If the SPI identifies the district as needing intervention pursuant to Education Code 52072, 
the district shall cooperate with any action taken by the SPI or any academic advisor 
appointed by the SPI, which may include one or more of the following: 
 
1. Revision of the district's LCAP 
 
2. Revision of the district's budget in accordance with changes in the LCAP 
 
3. A determination to stay or rescind any district action that would prevent the district 

from improving outcomes for all student subgroups, provided that action is not 
required by a collective bargaining agreement 

 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
305-306  English language education 
17002  State School Building Lease-Purchase Law, including definition of good repair 
33430-33436  Learning Communities for School Success Program; grants for LCAP implementation 
41020  Audits 
42127  Public hearing on budget adoption 
42238.01-42238.07  Local control funding formula 
44258.9  County superintendent review of teacher assignment 
48985  Parental notices in languages other than English 
51210  Course of study for grades 1-6 
51220  Course of study for grades 7-12 
52052  Numerically significant student subgroups 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
52302  Regional occupational centers and programs 
52372.5  Linked learning pilot program 
54692  Partnership academies 
60119  Sufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials; hearing and resolution 
60605.8  California Assessment of Academic Achievement; Academic Content Standards Commission 
60811.3  Assessment of language development 
64001  Single plan for student achievement 
99300-99301  Early Assessment Program 

 
 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 
 
 



 BP 0460(f) 
 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
15494-15497  Local control and accountability plan and spending requirements 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6312  Local educational agency plan 
6826 Title III funds, local plans 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Promising Practices for Developing and Implementing LCAPs, Governance Brief, November 2016 
LCFF Rubrics, Issue 1: What Boards Need to Know About the New Rubrics, Governance Brief, rev. 
October 2016 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
California School Accounting Manual 
California School Dashboard 
LCFF Frequently Asked Questions 
Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template 
Family Engagement Framework: A Tool for California School Districts, 2014 
California Career Technical Education Model Curriculum Standards, 2013 
California Common Core State Standards: English Language Arts and Literacy in History/Social 
Studies, Science, and Technical Subjects, rev. 2013 
California Common Core State Standards: Mathematics, rev. 2013 
California English Language Development Standards, 2012 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California School Dashboard: http://www.caschooldashboard.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: October 2017 



Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans AR 0460(a) 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 
 
 
Goals and Actions Addressing State and Local Priorities 
 
The district's local control and accountability plan (LCAP) shall include, for the district and 
each district school:  (Education Code 52060) 
 
1. A description of the annual goals established for all students and for each numerically 

significant subgroup as defined in Education Code 52052, including ethnic 
subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, students with 
disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students. The LCAP shall identify goals for 
each of the following state priorities: 
 
a. The degree to which district teachers are appropriately assigned in accordance 

with Education Code 44258.9 and fully credentialed in the subject areas and 
for the students they are teaching; every district student has sufficient access 
to standards-aligned instructional materials as determined pursuant to 
Education Code 60119; and school facilities are maintained in good repair as 
specified in Education Code 17002 

 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 3517 - Facilities Inspection) 
(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 
(cf. 4113 - Assignment) 
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 
 

b. Implementation of the academic content and performance standards adopted 
by the State Board of Education (SBE), including how the programs and 
services will enable English learners to access the Common Core State 
Standards and the English language development standards for purposes of 
gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency 

 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
 

c. Parent/guardian involvement, including efforts the district makes to seek 
parent/guardian input in district and school site decision making and how the 
district will promote parent/guardian participation in programs for 
unduplicated students, as defined in Education Code 42238.02 and Board 
policy, and students with disabilities 

 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
 

d. Student achievement, as measured by all of the following as applicable: 
 
(1) Statewide assessments of student achievement 



 AR 0460(b) 
 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN  (continued) 
 

 
(2) The percentage of students who have successfully completed courses 

that satisfy the requirements for entrance to the University of 
California and the California State University, or career technical 
education sequences or programs of study that satisfy specified 
requirements and align with SBE-approved career technical education 
standards and frameworks, including, but not limited to, those 
described in Education Code 52302, 52372.5, or 54692 

 
(3) The percentage of English learners who make progress toward English 

proficiency as measured by the SBE-certified assessment of English 
proficiency 

 
(4) The English learner reclassification rate 
 
(5) The percentage of students who have passed an Advanced Placement 

examination with a score of 3 or higher 
 
(6) The percentage of students who participate in and demonstrate college 

preparedness in the Early Assessment Program pursuant to Education 
Code 99300-99301 

 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
 

e. Student engagement, as measured by school attendance rates, chronic 
absenteeism rates, middle school dropout rates, high school dropout rates, and 
high school graduation rates, as applicable 

 
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
 

f. School climate, as measured by student suspension and expulsion rates and 
other local measures, including surveys of students, parents/guardians, and 
teachers on the sense of safety and school connectedness, as applicable 

 
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
 
 



 AR 0460(c) 
 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN  (continued) 
 
 

g. The extent to which students have access to and are enrolled in a broad course 
of study that includes all of the subject areas described in Education Code 
51210 and 51220, as applicable, including the programs and services 
developed and provided to unduplicated students and students with 
disabilities, and the programs and services that are provided to benefit these 
students as a result of supplemental and concentration grant funding pursuant 
to Education Code 42238.02 and 42238.03 

 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
 

h. Student outcomes, if available, in the subject areas described in Education 
Code 51210 and 51220, as applicable 

 
2. Any goals identified for any local priorities established by the Board. 
 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
 
3. A description of the specific actions the district will take during each year of the 

LCAP to achieve the identified goals, including the enumeration of any specific 
actions necessary for that year to correct any deficiencies in regard to the state and 
local priorities specified in items #1-2 above. Such actions shall not supersede 
provisions of existing collective bargaining agreements within the district. 

 
For purposes of the descriptions required by items #1-3 above, the Board may consider 
qualitative information, including, but not limited to, findings that result from any school 
quality reviews conducted pursuant to Education Code 52052 or any other reviews.  
(Education Code 52060) 
 
For any local priorities addressed in the LCAP, the Board and Superintendent or designee 
shall identify and include in the LCAP the method for measuring the district's progress 
toward achieving those goals.  (Education Code 52060) 
 
To the extent practicable, data reported in the LCAP shall be reported in a manner consistent 
with how information is reported on a school accountability report card.  (Education Code 
52060) 
 
(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card) 
 
Increase or Improvement in Services for Unduplicated Students 
 
The LCAP shall demonstrate how the district will increase or improve services for 
unduplicated students at least in proportion to the increase in funds apportioned on the basis 
of the number and concentration of unduplicated students.  (5 CCR 15494-15496) 



 AR 0460(d) 
 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN  (continued) 
 
 
When the district expends supplemental and/or concentration grant funds on a districtwide or 
schoolwide basis during the year for which the LCAP is adopted, the district's LCAP shall:  
(5 CCR 15496) 
 
1. Identify those services that are being funded and provided on a districtwide or 

schoolwide basis 
 
2. Describe how services are principally directed towards, and are effective in, meeting 

the district's goals for unduplicated students in the state priority areas and any local 
priority areas 

 
3. If the enrollment of unduplicated students is less than 55 percent of district 

enrollment or less than 40 percent of school enrollment, describe how these services 
are the most effective use of the funds to meet the district's goals for its unduplicated 
students in the state priority areas and any local priority areas. The description shall 
provide the basis for this determination, including, but not limited to, any alternatives 
considered and any supporting research, experiences, or educational theory. 

 
Annual Updates 
 
On or before July 1 of each year, the LCAP shall be updated using the template adopted by 
the SBE and shall include all of the following:  (Education Code 52061) 
 
1. A review of any changes in the applicability of the goals described in the existing 

LCAP pursuant to the section "Goals and Actions Addressing State and Local 
Priorities" above 

 
2. A review of the progress toward the goals included in the existing LCAP, an 

assessment of the effectiveness of the specific actions described in the existing LCAP 
toward achieving the goals, and a description of changes to the specific actions the 
district will make as a result of the review and assessment 

 
3. A listing and description of the expenditures for the fiscal year implementing the 

specific actions included in the LCAP and the changes to the specific actions made as 
a result of the reviews and assessment required by items #1-2 above 

 
4. A listing and description of expenditures for the fiscal year that will serve 

unduplicated students and students redesignated as fluent English proficient 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 0460(e) 
 
 
LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN  (continued) 
 
 
Availability of the Plan 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall post the LCAP and any updates or revisions to the 
LCAP on the district's web site.  (Education Code 52065) 
 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: October 2017 



Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0500(a) 
 
ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure accountability to the public for 
the performance of the district and each district school. The Board shall regularly review the 
effectiveness of district programs, personnel, and fiscal operations, with a focus on the 
capacity to improve student achievement. The Board shall establish appropriate processes 
and measures to monitor results and to evaluate progress toward accomplishing the district's 
vision and goals set forth in the local control and accountability plan (LCAP). 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent) 
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 
(cf. 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
(cf. 4215 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
(cf. 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program) 
(cf. 9400 - Board Self-Evaluation) 
 
District and school performance shall be annually evaluated based on multiple measures 
specified in the California Accountability and Continuous Improvement System as reported 
on the California School Dashboard. 
 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 
The district and each district school shall demonstrate comparable improvement in academic 
achievement for all numerically significant student subgroups. Numerically significant 
subgroups include ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English 
learners, students with disabilities, foster youth, and homeless students, when the subgroup 
consists of at least 30 students with a valid test score or 15 foster youth or homeless students.  
(Education Code 52052) 
 
The Superintendent shall provide regular reports to the Board and the public regarding 
district and school performance. Opportunities for feedback from students, parents/guardians,  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 0500(b) 
 
 
ACCOUNTABILITY  (continued) 
 
 
staff, and community members shall be made available as part of any review and evaluation 
of district programs and operations and as part of the development or annual update of the 
LCAP. 
 
(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card) 
(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public) 
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
Evaluation results may be used as a basis for revising district or school goals, updating the 
LCAP or other comprehensive plans, identifying and developing strategies to address 
disparities in achievement among student subgroups, implementing programmatic changes, 
determining the need for additional support and assistance, awarding incentives or rewards, 
and establishing other performance-based consequences. 
 
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 4141/4241 - Collective Bargaining Agreement) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 0500(c) 
 
 
ACCOUNTABILITY  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
33127-33129  Standards and criteria for fiscal accountability 
33400-33407  California Department of Education evaluation of district programs 
44660-44665  Evaluation of certificated employees 
51041  Evaluation of the educational program 
52052-52052.1  Public school performance accountability program 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
56366  Nonpublic, nonsectarian schools 
60640-60649  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
1068-1074  Alternative schools accountability model, assessments 
15440-15464 Standards and criteria for fiscal accountability 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6311  Accountability, state plan 
6312  Local educational agency plan 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
200.12-200.24  State accountability system 
200.30-200.48  State and LEA report cards and plans 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education, Accountability:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac 
California School Dashboard:  http://www.caschooldashboard.org 
U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: October 2017 



Community Relations BP 1113(a) 
 
DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES 
 
 
To enhance communication with students, parents/guardians, staff, and community members, 
the Governing Board encourages the Superintendent or designee to develop and maintain 
district and school web sites. The use of district and school web sites shall support the 
district's vision and goals and shall be coordinated with other district communications 
strategies. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public) 
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
Design Standards 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish design standards for district and school web 
sites in order to maintain a consistent identity, professional appearance, and ease of use. 
 
The district's design standards shall address the accessibility of district and school web sites 
to individuals with disabilities, including compatibility with commonly used assistive 
technologies. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
 
Web Site Content 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop content guidelines for district and school web 
sites and assign staff to review and approve content prior to posting. 
 
Board policy pertaining to advertising in district and school publications, as specified in BP 
1325 - Advertising and Promotion, shall also apply to advertising on district and school web 
sites. 
 
(cf. 1325 - Advertising and Promotion) 
 
Privacy Rights 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the privacy rights of students, 
parents/guardians, staff, Board members, and other individuals are protected on district and 
school web sites. 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 



 BP 1113(b) 
 
 
DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES  (continued) 
 
 
Telephone numbers and home and email addresses of students and/or their parents/guardians 
shall not be published on district or school web sites. 
 
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 
 
Photographs of individual students shall not be published on district or school web sites 
accompanied by the student's name or other personally identifiable information without the 
prior written consent of the student's parent/guardian. 
 
If students' names are not included and non-identifiable, photographs of individual students 
or groups of students, such as at a school event, may be published on school or district web 
sites. 
 
Employees' home addresses, personal telephone numbers, and personal email addresses shall 
not be posted on district or school web sites. 
 
The home address or telephone number of any elected or appointed official including, but not 
limited to, a Board member or public safety official, shall not be posted on district or school 
web sites without the prior written permission of that individual.  (Government Code 3307.5, 
6254.21, 6254.24) 
 
No public safety official shall be required to consent to the posting on the Internet of his/her 
photograph or identity as a public safety officer for any purpose if that officer reasonably 
believes that the disclosure may result in a threat, harassment, intimidation, or harm to the 
officer or his/her family.  (Government Code 3307.5) 
 
(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 1113(c) 
 
 
DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
35182.5  Contracts for advertising 
35258  Internet access to school accountability report cards 
48907  Exercise of free expression; rules and regulations 
48950  Speech and other communication 
49061  Definitions, directory information 
49073  Release of directory information 
60048  Commercial brand names, contracts or logos 
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE 
22580-22582  Digital privacy 
22584-22585  Student Online Personal Information Protection Act 
22586  Preschool and prekindergarten privacy 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3307.5  Publishing identity of public safety officers 
6254.21  Publishing addresses and telephone numbers of officials 
6254.24 Definition of public safety official 
11135  Nondiscrimination; accessibility to state web sites 
PENAL CODE 
14029.5  Prohibition against publishing personal information of person in witness protection program 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 17 
101-122  Subject matter and scope of copyright 
504  Penalties for copyright infringement 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232g  Federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
705  Definitions; Vocational Rehabilitation Act 
794  Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; accessibility to federal web sites 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 16 
312.1-312.12 Children's Online Privacy 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy 
104.1-104.61  Nondiscrimination on the basis of disability 
COURT DECISIONS 
City of San Jose v. Superior Court, (2017) 2 Cal.5th 608 
Aaris v. Las Virgenes Unified School District, (1998) 64 Cal.App.4th 1112 

 
 
 
Management Resources:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 1113(d) 
 
 
DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES  (continued) 
 
 
 
Management Resources: 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
Dear Colleague Letter, May 26, 2011 
Joint Dear Colleague Letter:  Electronic Book Readers, June 2010 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 
Accessibility of State and Local Government Websites to People with Disabilities, June 2003 
WORLD WIDE WEB CONSORTIUM PUBLICATIONS 
Web Content Accessibility Guidelines, December 2008 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education, Web Accessibility Standards:  
http://www.cde.ca.gov/re/di/ws/webaccessstds.asp 
California School Public Relations Association:  http://www.calspra.org 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 
U.S. Department of Justice, Americans with Disabilities Act:  http://www.ada.gov 
World Wide Web Consortium, Web Accessibility Initiative:  http://www.w3.org/wai 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: October 2017 



Community Relations AR 1113(a) 
 
DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES 
 
 
Design Standards 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop design standards for district and school web 
sites that include, but are not limited to, guidelines to ensure the clear organization of the 
material, readability of the font type and size, and simplicity of the navigation structure 
linking the content on the web site. Such standards shall take into consideration the ease of 
use on a wide range of devices. 
 
In accordance with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 504 
of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, district and school web sites shall contain features 
that ensure accessibility for individuals with disabilities, which may include, but are not 
limited to, captions for videos and multimedia presentations, text alternatives to images, 
provision of sufficient time to use the content, avoidance of flashing images, adequate 
contrast in visual presentations, and/or other features that meet applicable standards for web 
site accessibility. The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review district and school 
web sites and modify them as needed to ensure legal compliance with accessibility standards. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
 
Web Site Content 
 
As applicable, district and school web sites shall provide current information regarding the 
district's mission and goals, district/school programs and operations, district/school news, 
agendas and minutes of Governing Board meetings, School Accountability Report Cards, 
school calendars, and links to educational resources. 
 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card) 
(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public) 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 
 
With approval of the principal, individual teachers may create web pages linked to the 
district or school web site to provide information pertaining to class assignments, 
expectations, and activities. 
 
Student work may be published on district or school web sites provided that both the student 
and his/her parent/guardian provide written permission or the work is part of an existing 
publication such as a school newspaper. 
 
Any copyrighted material to be posted on a district or school web site shall be submitted to 
the Superintendent or designee together with the permission of the copyright owner to reprint 
the material. Any copyrighted material submitted without the copyright owner's permission 
shall only be posted on a district or school web site if the Superintendent or designee 
determines that the material is in the public domain or that the intended use meets  
 



 AR 1113(b) 
 
 
DISTRICT AND SCHOOL WEB SITES  (continued) 
 
 
the criteria for fair use or another exception pursuant to 17 USC 107-122. When any 
copyrighted material is posted, the web site shall include a notice crediting the copyright 
owner and, as necessary, shall note that permission to reprint the material was granted. 
 
(cf. 4132/4232/4332 - Publication or Creation of Materials) 
(cf. 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials) 
 
Whenever a district or school web site includes links to external web sites, it shall include a 
disclaimer that the district is not responsible for the content of external web sites. 
 
Roles and Responsibilities 
 
Any employee assigned as a district or school webmaster shall be responsible for the 
uploading of material to the web site(s) upon approval of the Superintendent or designee.  
He/she shall review district and school web sites to ensure consistency with district 
standards, regularly check links for accuracy and appropriateness, keep the web server free of 
outdated or unused files, and provide technical assistance as needed. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may assign additional staff members to conduct editorial 
reviews of all materials submitted for publication on district or school web sites and to make 
corrections as needed in spelling, grammar, or accuracy of content. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide staff development opportunities related to 
district content guidelines, design standards, and accessibility laws and standards to district 
communications and technology staff, district and school webmasters, and/or other 
appropriate staff. 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
Security 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish security procedures for the district's computer 
network to prevent unauthorized access and changes to district and school web sites. To the 
extent possible, the host computer(s) shall be in a lockable room with restricted access. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: October 2017 



Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3280(a) 
 
SALE OR LEASE OF DISTRICT-OWNED REAL PROPERTY 
 
 
The Governing Board believes that district facilities and resources should be utilized in an 
economical and practical manner. The Superintendent or designee shall periodically study the 
current and projected use of all district facilities to ensure the efficient utilization of space for 
the effective delivery of instruction. 
 
(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities) 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 
(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 
(cf. 7160 - Charter School Facilities) 
 
The Board shall appoint a district advisory committee prior to the sale or lease of any surplus 
real property to advise the Board regarding the use or disposition of schools or school 
building space which is not needed for school purposes. Rentals of surplus property not 
exceeding 30 days are exempted from this requirement. When the sale, lease, or rental of 
surplus property is for the purpose of teacher or other employee housing or for the offering of 
summer school by a private educational institution, the Board may elect not to appoint a 
district advisory committee.  (Education Code 17387-17391) 
 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
 
If the local planning agency has adopted a general plan that affects or includes the area where 
the surplus property is located, the Board shall submit a report to the local planning agency 
describing the location of the surplus property and the purpose and extent of the proposed 
sale or lease.  (Government Code 65402) 
 
The Board shall determine whether the sale or lease of the surplus property is subject to 
review under the California Environmental Quality Act.  (Public Resources Code 21000-
21177; 14 CCR 15061-15062) 
 
When selling or leasing district real property, the Board shall comply with the priorities and 
procedures specified in applicable law.  (Education Code 17230, 17464, 17485-17499; 
Government Code 54222) 
 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 
 
In addition, when selling real property purchased, constructed, or modernized with funds 
received within the past 10 years from a state school facilities funding program, the Board 
shall consider whether any of the proceeds from the sale will need to be returned to the State 
Allocation Board (SAB) pursuant to Education Code 17462.3. 
 
 
 
 



 BP 3280(b) 
 
 
SALE OR LEASE OF DISTRICT-OWNED REAL PROPERTY  (continued) 
 
 
Resolution of Intention to Sell or Lease 
 
Before ordering the sale or lease of any real property, the Board shall adopt a resolution by a 
two-thirds vote of all of its members at a regularly scheduled open meeting. The resolution 
shall describe the property proposed to be sold or leased in such a manner as to identify it, 
specify the minimum price or rent, describe the terms upon which it will be sold or leased, 
and specify the commission or rate, if any, which the Board will pay to a licensed real estate 
broker out of the minimum price or rent. The resolution shall fix a time, not less than three 
weeks thereafter, for a public meeting, held at the Board's regular meeting place, at which 
sealed proposals to purchase or lease will be received and considered.  (Education Code 
17466) 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide notice of the adoption of the resolution and of 
the time and place of the meeting that will be held to consider bids by posting copies of the 
resolution, signed by the Board, in three public places not less than 15 days before the date of 
the meeting. In addition, the notice shall be published at least once a week for three 
successive weeks before the meeting, in a newspaper of general circulation published in the 
county in which the district is located, if such a newspaper exists.  (Education Code 17469) 
 
In accordance with Education Code 17470, the Superintendent or designee shall take 
reasonable steps to provide notification to the former owners of the property of the district's 
intent to sell it. 
 
Acceptance/Rejection of Bids 
 
At the public meeting specified in the resolution of intention to sell or lease property, the 
Board shall open, examine, and declare all sealed bids.  Before accepting a written proposal, 
the Board shall call for oral bids in accordance with law.  (Education Code 17472, 17473) 
 
The Board may reject any and all bids, either written or oral, and withdraw the properties 
from sale when the Board determines that rejection is in the best public interest. If no 
proposals are submitted or the submitted proposals do not conform to all the terms and 
conditions specified in the resolution of intention to lease, the Board may lease the property 
in accordance with Education Code 17477.  (Education Code 17476, 17477) 
 
Of the proposals submitted by responsible bidders which conform to all terms and conditions 
specified in the resolution of intention to sell or lease, the Board shall finally accept the 
highest bid after deducting the commission, if any, to be paid to a licensed real estate broker, 
unless the Board accepts a higher oral bid or rejects all bids.  (Education Code 17472) 
 



 BP 3280(c) 
 
 
SALE OR LEASE OF DISTRICT-OWNED REAL PROPERTY  (continued) 
 
 
The final acceptance of the bid may be made either at the same meeting specified in the 
resolution or at any adjourned/continued meeting held within 10 days.  Upon acceptance of 
the bid, the Board may adopt a resolution of acceptance that directs the Board president, or 
any other Board member, to execute the deed or lease and to deliver the document upon 
performance and compliance by the successful bidder of all of the terms and conditions of 
the contract.  (Education Code 17475-17478) 
 
(cf. 1431 - Waivers) 
 
Use of Proceeds 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the proceeds from the sale or lease with an 
option to purchase of surplus district property are used for one-time expenditures and not for 
ongoing expenditures such as salaries and general operating expenses.  (Education Code 
17462) 
 
Proceeds from a sale of surplus district property shall be used for capital outlay or 
maintenance costs that the Board determines will not recur within a five-year period.  
(Education Code 17462) 
 
Proceeds from a lease of district property with an option to purchase may be deposited into a 
restricted fund for the routine repair of district facilities, as defined by the SAB, for up to a 
five-year period.  (Education Code 17462) 
 
If the Board and SAB determine that the district has no anticipated need for additional sites 
or building construction for the next 10 years and no major deferred maintenance 
requirements, the proceeds from the sale or lease with an option to purchase may be 
deposited in a special reserve fund for the future maintenance and renovation of school sites 
or in the district's general fund. Proceeds from the sale or lease with option to purchase of 
district property may also be deposited in a special reserve fund for capital outlay or 
maintenance costs of district property that the Board determines will not recur within a five-
year period.  (Education Code 17462) 
 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 3280(d) 
 
 
SALE OR LEASE OF DISTRICT-OWNED REAL PROPERTY  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
17219-17224  Acquisition of property not utilized as school site; nonuse payments; exemptions 
17230-17234  Surplus property 
17385  Conveyances to and from school districts 
17387-17391  Advisory committees for use of excess school facilities 
17400-17429  Leasing property 
17430-17447  Leasing facilities 
17453  Lease of surplus district property 
17455-17484  Sale or lease of real property, especially: 
17462.3  State Allocation Board program to reclaim funds 
17485-17500  Surplus school playground (Naylor Act) 
17515-17526  Joint occupancy 
17527-17535  Joint use of district facilities 
33050  Requ 
38130-38139  Civic Center Act 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
50001-50002  Definitions 
54220-54232  Surplus land, especially: 
54222  Offer to sell or lease property 
54950-54963  Brown Act, especially: 
54952  Legislative body, definition 
PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE 
21000-21177  California Environmental Quality Act 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
1700  Definitions related to surplus property 
COURT DECISIONS 
San Lorenzo Valley Community Advocates for Responsible Education v. San Lorenzo Valley Unified 
School District, (2006) 139 Cal.App.4th 1356 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Closing a School Best Practices Guide 
OFFICE OF PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION PUBLICATIONS 
Unused Site Program Handbook, December 2015 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education, School Facilities Planning Division:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa 
Coalition for Adequate School Housing:  http://www.cashnet.org 
Office of Public School Construction: http://www.dgs.ca.gov/opsc 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: October 2017 



Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3515.6(a) 
 
CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS FOR CONTRACTORS 
 
 
When the employees of any entity contracting with the district to provide specified services 
will have contact with students, the entity shall certify in writing to the Superintendent or 
designee that none of those employees has been convicted of a violent or serious felony as 
defined in Education Code 45122.1. In the case of a sole proprietor, the Superintendent or 
designee shall prepare and submit the employee's fingerprints to the Department of Justice. If 
any contracting employee who may have contact with students has been convicted of a 
violent or serious felony as defined, a certificate of rehabilitation and a pardon as required 
pursuant to Education Code 45125.1 shall be submitted to the Superintendent or designee 
before the contracting employee is authorized to perform the work for the district.  
(Education Code 45125.1) 
 
These requirements shall apply to a sole proprietor or entity contracting with the district to 
provide any of the following services:  (Education Code 45125.1, 45125.2) 
 
1. School and classroom janitorial services 
 
2. School site administrative services 
 
3. School site grounds and landscape maintenance services 
 
4. Student transportation services 
 
5. School site food-related services 
 
6. Construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or repair of a school facility 
 
(cf. 3540 - Transportation) 
(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund) 
(cf. 3600 - Consultants) 
(cf. 7140 - Architectural and Engineering Services) 
 
On a case-by-case basis, the Superintendent or designee may require a contracting entity 
providing school site services other than those listed above to comply with these 
requirements.  (Education Code 45125.1) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may determine that criminal background checks will not be 
required if: 
 
1. The contracting entity is providing services in an emergency or exceptional situation, 

such as when student health or safety is endangered or when repairs are needed to 
make school facilities safe and habitable.  (Education Code 45125.1) 

 
2. The employees of the contracting entity will have limited contact with students. In 

determining whether a contract employee has limited contact with students, the  
 



 AR 3515.6(b) 
 
 
CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS FOR CONTRACTORS  (continued) 
 
 
 Superintendent or designee shall consider the totality of the circumstances, including 

factors such as the length of time the contractors will be on school grounds, whether 
students will be in proximity with the site where the contractors will be working, and 
whether the contractors will be working by themselves or with others.  (Education 
Code 45125.1) 
 
Upon a determination that an employee will have limited contact with students, the 
Superintendent or designee shall take appropriate steps to protect the safety of any 
students who may come in contact with this employee.  (Education Code 45125.1) 

 
These steps may include, but are not limited to, ensuring that the employee is working 
during nonschool hours, providing for regular patrols or supervision of the site from 
district security or personnel, ensuring that the employee is not working alone when 
students are present, limiting the employee's access to school grounds, and/or 
providing the employee with a visible means of identification. 

 
(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department) 
 
3. The contract is for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or repair of a 

school facility and either item #1 or #2 above applies or the district uses one or more 
of the following methods to ensure student safety:  (Education Code 45125.2) 
 
a. The installation of a physical barrier at the worksite to limit contact with 

students 
 
b. Continual supervision and monitoring of all employees of the entity by an 

employee of the entity whom the Department of Justice has ascertained has 
not been convicted of a violent or serious felony 

 
c. Surveillance of employees of the entity by school personnel 

 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 3515.6(c) 
 
 
CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS FOR CONTRACTORS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
41302.5  School districts, definition 
45122.1  Classified employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony 
45125.1  Criminal background checks for contractors 
45125.2  Criminal background checks for construction 
PENAL CODE 
667.5  Prior prison terms, enhancement of prison terms 
1192.7  Plea bargaining limitation 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
Department of Justice:  https://oag.ca.gov/fingerprints 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: October 2017 



All Personnel BP 4140(a) 
 4240 
BARGAINING UNITS 4340 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes the right of district employees to form a bargaining unit, 
select an employee organization as their exclusive representative, and be represented by that 
organization in their employment relationship with the district. The Board is committed to 
negotiating in good faith with recognized employee organizations and respecting the rights of 
employees and employee organizations. 
 
(cf. 4141/4241 - Collective Bargaining Agreement) 
(cf. 4143/4243 - Negotiations/Consultation) 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
 
The district shall not dominate or interfere with the formation or administration of any 
employee organization or contribute financial or other support to it.  (Government Code 
3543.5) 
 
The district shall not deter or discourage employees from becoming or remaining members of 
an employee organization, impose or threaten to impose reprisals on employees, discriminate 
or threaten to discriminate against employees, or otherwise interfere with, restrain, or coerce 
employees because of their membership or nonmembership in an employee organization.  
(Government Code 3543.5, 3550) 
 
(cf. 4119.1/4219.1/4319.1 - Civil and Legal Rights) 
 
Formation of Bargaining Units 
 
Certificated and classified employees shall not be included in the same bargaining unit.  
(Government Code 3545) 
 
The district may recognize a bargaining unit of supervisory employees if:  (Government 
Code 3545) 
 
1. The bargaining unit includes all supervisory employees. 
 
2. The supervisors are not represented by the same organization that represents 

employees whom the supervisory employees supervise. 
 
(cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 
(cf. 4301 - Administrative Staff Organization) 
(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts) 
 
For this purpose, supervisory employee means any employee, regardless of job description, 
having the authority, in the interest of the district, to hire, transfer, suspend, layoff, recall, 
promote, discharge, assign, reward, discipline, assign work, direct, adjust grievance of other 
employees, or effectively recommend that action. The exercise of this authority shall not be 
merely routine or clerical in nature, but shall require the use of independent judgment.  
(Government Code 3540.1) 



 BP 4140(b) 
 4240 
BARGAINING UNITS  (continued) 4340 
 
 
Employees serving in management, senior management, or confidential positions shall not be 
represented by an exclusive representative. Such employees may represent themselves 
individually or may be represented by an employee organization whose membership is 
composed entirely of employees designated as holding those positions. When represented by 
an employee organization, that organization shall not meet and negotiate with the district.  
For this purpose:  (Government Code 3540.1, 3543.4) 
 
1. Management employee means any employee who has significant responsibilities for 

formulating district policies or administering district programs, and whose position is 
designated as a management position by the Board. 

 
2. Confidential employee means any employee who is required to develop or present 

management positions with respect to employer-employee relations or whose duties 
normally require access to confidential information that is used to contribute 
significantly to the development of management positions. 

 
Access to Employee Orientations and Contact Information 
 
The district shall permit employee organizations access to new employee orientations where 
newly hired employees are advised, whether in person, online, or through other means or 
mediums, of their employment status, rights, benefits, duties, responsibilities, or any other 
employment-related matters. The district shall provide employee organizations at least 10 
days' notice in advance of an orientation. However, in any specific instance where an 
unforeseeable, urgent need critical to the district's operation prevents the required 10 days' 
notice, a shorter notice may be provided.  (Government Code 3555.5, 3556) 
 
The structure, time, and manner of the access to new employee orientations shall be 
determined by mutual agreement of the district and the exclusive representative, following a 
request to negotiate by either party. If the district and exclusive representative fail to reach an 
agreement, matters related to the access to new employee orientation shall be subject to 
compulsory interest arbitration.  The district and employee organization may mutually agree 
to submit any dispute to compulsory interest arbitration at any time.  In addition, if any 
dispute arises during negotiations and is not resolved within 45 days after the first meeting or 
within 60 days after the initial request to negotiate, whichever is earlier, either party may 
make a demand for compulsory interest arbitration. When any such dispute arises during the 
summer when the district's administrative office is closed, the timeline shall commence on 
the first day the administrative office reopens. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and 
binding on the parties.  (Government Code 3556, 3557) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide an exclusive representative with the name, job 
title, department, work location, telephone numbers (work, home, and personal cell phone), 
personal email address(es) on file with the district, and home address of any newly hired 
employee in the bargaining unit, within 30 days of hire or by the first pay period of the  
 



 BP 4140(c) 
 4240 
BARGAINING UNITS  (continued) 4340 
 
 
month following hire. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall provide the same 
information on all employees in the bargaining unit to an exclusive representative at least 
every 120 days, unless more frequent or detailed lists are required by agreement with the 
exclusive representative.  (Government Code 3558, 6254.3) 
 
However, the Superintendent or designee shall not disclose the home address and any phone 
numbers on file for employees performing law enforcement-related functions, nor shall 
he/she disclose the home address, home or personal cell phone number(s), or personal email 
address(es) of any employee who is a participant in the Safe at Home address confidentiality 
program pursuant to Government Code 6207 or any employee who provides written request 
that the information not be disclosed for this purpose. Following receipt of a written request, 
the district shall remove the employee's home address, home and personal cell phone 
numbers, and personal email address from any mailing list maintained by the district unless 
the list is only used by the district to contact the employee.  (Government Code 3558, 6207, 
6254.3) 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
 
Payment of Dues or Service Fee 
 
Upon the written request of a recognized employee organization, the Superintendent or 
designee shall deduct the amount of organization dues or the fair share service fee, 
determined in accordance with Government Code 3546, from the wages and salary of each 
employee represented by that employee organization and shall pay that amount to the 
employee organization.  (Education Code 45060, 45168; Government Code 3546) 
 
Any employee who is a member of a religious body whose traditional tenets or teachings 
include objections to joining or financially supporting employee organizations shall not be 
required to join, maintain membership in, or financially support any employee organization 
as a condition of employment. However, such an employee may be required to pay an 
amount equal to the service fee to a designated charitable fund.  (Government Code 3546.3) 
 
Each employee organization shall, within 60 days after the end of its fiscal year, provide the 
Board and the employees who are members of the organization with a detailed financial 
report consisting of a balance sheet and an operating statement.  If the employee organization 
fails to provide the financial report, the Board may issue an order compelling the 
organization to provide the financial report or any employee within the organization may 
petition the Board for such an order.  (Government Code 3546.5) 
 
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 



 BP 4140(c) 
 4240 
BARGAINING UNITS  (continued) 4340 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
45060-45061.5  Deduction of fees from salary or wage payment, certificated employees 
45100.5  Senior management positions 
45104.5  Abolishment of senior classified management positions 
45108.5  Definition of senior classified management employees 
45108.7  Waiver of provisions of 45108.5 
45168  Deduction of fees from salary or wage payment, classified employees 
45220-45320  Merit system, classified employees 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3540-3549.3  Educational Employment Relations Act, especially: 
3540.1  Definitions 
3543.4  Management position; representation 
3545  Appropriateness of unit; basis 
3550-3552 Prohibition on public employers deterring or discouraging union membership 
3555-3559 Public employee communication, information and orientation 
6205-6210 Confidentiality of addresses for victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or stalking 
6254.3  Disclosure of employee contact information to employee organization 
6503.5  Joint powers agencies 
53260-53264  Employment contracts 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 
33015-33490  Recognition of exclusive representative; proceedings 
33700-33710  Severance of established unit 
34020  Petition to rescind organizational security arrangement 
34055  Reinstatement of organizational security arrangement 
COURT DECISIONS 
Janus v. American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, Council 31, (7th Cir. 2017) 
851 F.3d 746, cert granted Sept. 28, 2017, No. 16-1466 
Friedrichs v. California Teachers Association, et al., (2016) 136 S.Ct. 1083 
County of Los Angeles v. Service Employees International Union, Local 721, (2013) 56 Cal. 4th  905 
Abood v. Detroit Board of Education, (1977) 431 U.S. 209 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
Association of California School Administrators:  http://www.acsa.org 
California Federation of Teachers:  http://www.cft.org 
California School Employees Association:  http://www.csea.com 
California Teachers Association:  http://www.cta.org 
Public Employment Relations Board:  http://www.perb.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: October 2017 



Students BP 5113.1(a) 
 
CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY 
 
 
The Governing Board believes that absenteeism, whatever the cause, may be an early 
warning sign of poor academic achievement and may put students at risk of dropping out of 
school. The Board desires to ensure that all students attend school in accordance with the 
state's compulsory education law and take full advantage of educational opportunities 
provided by the district. 
 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 
(cf. 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish a system to accurately track student 
attendance in order to identify individual students who are chronic absentees and truants, as 
defined in law and administrative regulation, and to identify patterns of absence throughout 
the district. He/she shall provide the Board with data on school attendance, chronic absence, 
and truancy rates districtwide, for each school, and disaggregated for each numerically 
significant student subgroup as defined in Education Code 52052. Such data shall be used in 
the development of annual goals and specific actions for student attendance and engagement 
to be included in the district's local control and accountability plan and other applicable 
school and district plans. 
 
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop strategies that focus on prevention of 
attendance problems, which may include, but are not limited to, efforts to provide a safe and 
positive school environment, relevant and engaging learning experiences, school activities 
that help develop students' feelings of connectedness with the school, school-based health 
services, and incentives and rewards to recognize students who achieve excellent attendance 
or demonstrate significant improvement in attendance. The Superintendent or designee also 
shall develop strategies that enable early outreach to students as soon as they show signs of 
poor attendance. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement) 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall consult with students, parents/guardians, school staff, 
and community agencies, as appropriate, to identify factors contributing to chronic absence 
and truancy. 
 



 BP 5113.1(b) 
 
 
CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 
 
 
Interventions for students with serious attendance problems shall be designed to meet the 
specific needs of the student and may include, but are not limited to, health care referrals, 
transportation assistance, counseling for mental or emotional difficulties, academic supports, 
efforts to address school or community safety concerns, discussions with the student and 
parent/guardian about their attitudes regarding schooling, or other strategies to remove 
identified barriers to school attendance. The Superintendent or designee may collaborate with 
child welfare services, law enforcement, courts, public health care agencies, other 
government agencies, and/or medical, mental health, and oral health care providers to make 
alternative educational programs and support services available for students and families. 
 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 
(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 
(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice) 
(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction) 
(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School) 
 
Students who are identified as truant shall be subject to the interventions specified in law and 
administrative regulation. 
 
(cf. 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board) 
 
A student's truancy, tardiness, or other absence from school shall not be the basis for his/her 
suspension or expulsion. Alternative strategies and positive reinforcement for attendance 
shall be used whenever possible. 
 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall periodically report to the Board regarding the district's 
progress in improving student attendance rates for all students and for each numerically 
significant student population. Such information shall be used to evaluate the effectiveness of 
strategies implemented to reduce chronic absence and truancy and to make changes as 
needed. As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall engage school staff in program  
 
 



 BP 5113.1(c) 
 
 
CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 
 
 
evaluation and improvement and in the determination of how to best allocate available 
community resources. 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
1740-1742  Employment of personnel to supervise attendance (county superintendent) 
37223  Weekend classes 
46000  Records (attendance) 
46010-46014  Absences 
46110-46119  Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools 
46140-46147  Attendance in junior high and high schools 
48200-48208  Children ages 6-18 (compulsory full-time attendance) 
48225.5  Work permits, entertainment and allied industries 
48240-48246  Supervisors of attendance 
48260-48273  Truants 
48290-48297 Failure to comply; complaints against parents 
48320-48325  School attendance review boards 
48340-48341  Improvement of student attendance 
48400-48403  Compulsory continuation education 
48900  Suspension and expulsion 
49067  Unexcused absences as cause of failing grade 
52052  Academic Performance Index; numerically significant student subgroups 
60901  Chronic absence 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
54950-54963 The Ralph M. Brown Act 
PENAL CODE 
270.1  Chronic truancy; parent/guardian misdemeanor 
272  Parent/guardian duty to supervise and control minor child; criminal liability for truancy 
830.1  Peace officers 
VEHICLE CODE 
13202.7  Driving privileges; minors; suspension or delay for habitual truancy 
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 
256-258  Juvenile hearing officer 
601-601.4  Habitually truant minors 
11253.5   Compulsory school attendance 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
306  Explanation of absence 
420-421  Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes 
COURT DECISIONS 
L.A. v. Superior Court of San Diego County, (2012) 209 Cal.App.4th 976 

 
 
 
Management Resources:  (see next page) 
 
 
 



 BP 5113.1(d) 
 
 
CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 
 
 
 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Attendance Awareness Month, Fact Sheet, September 2014 
ATTENDANCE WORKS PUBLICATIONS 
Count Us In! Working Together to Show that Every School Day Matters, 2014 
The Power of Positive Connections:  Reducing Chronic Absence Through PEOPLE:  Priority Early 
Outreach for Positive Linkages and Engagement, 2014 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
School Attendance Review Board Handbook:  A Road Map for Improved School Attendance and 
Behavior, 2015 
School Attendance Improvement Handbook, 2000 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
Attendance Works:  http://www.attendanceworks.org 
California Association of Supervisors of Child Welfare and Attendance:  http://www.cascwa.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Healthy Kids Survey:  http://chks.wested.org 
California School Climate, Health, and Learning Survey System:  http://www.cal-schls.wested.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: October 2017 



Students AR 5113.1(a) 
 
CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY 
 
 
Definitions 
 
Chronic absentee means a student who is absent for any reason on 10 percent or more of the 
school days in the school year, when the total number of days the student is absent is divided 
by the total number of days the student is enrolled and school was actually taught in the 
regular schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays and Sundays.  (Education Code 60901) 
 
Truant means a student who is absent from school without a valid excuse three full days in 
one school year, or tardy or absent for more than any 30-minute period during the school day 
without a valid excuse on three occasions in one school year, or any combination thereof.  
(Education Code 48260) 
 
Habitual truant means a student who has been reported as a truant three or more times within 
the same school year, provided the district has made a conscientious effort to hold at least 
one conference with the student and his/her parent/guardian after either of the two previous 
reports.  (Education Code 48262, 48264.5) 
 
Chronic truant means a student who has been absent from school without a valid excuse for 
10 percent or more of the school days in one school year, from the date of enrollment to the 
current date, provided the district has met the requirements of Education Code 48260, 
48260.5, 48261, 48262, 48263, and 48291.  (Education Code 48263.6) 
 
For purposes of classifying a student as a truant, valid excuse includes, but is not limited to, 
the reasons for which a student shall be excused from school pursuant to Education Code 
48205 and 48225.5. A valid excuse may include other reasons that are within the discretion 
of school administrators and, based on the facts of the student's circumstances, are deemed to 
constitute a valid excuse.  (Education Code 48260) 
 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 
(cf. 5113.2 - Work Permits) 
 
Addressing Chronic Absence 
 
When a student is identified as a chronic absentee, the Superintendent or designee shall 
communicate with the student and his/her parents/guardians to determine the reason(s) for 
the excessive absences, ensure the student and parents/guardians are aware of the adverse 
consequences of poor attendance, and jointly develop a plan for improving the student's 
school attendance. 
 
(cf. 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
The student may be referred to a student success team or school-site attendance review team 
to assist in evaluating his/her needs and identifying strategies and programs to assist him/her. 
 



 AR 5113.1(b) 
 
 
CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
 
A student who is struggling academically may be offered tutoring or other supplemental 
instruction, extended learning opportunities, and/or alternative educational options as 
appropriate. 
 
(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 
(cf. 6176 - Weekend/Saturday Classes) 
(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 
(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 
(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice) 
(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction) 
(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 
 
Whenever chronic absenteeism is linked to a health issue or nonschool condition, the 
Superintendent or designee may recommend school or community resources and/or 
collaborate with community agencies and organizations to address the needs of the student 
and his/her family. 
 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
 
Addressing Truancy 
 
An attendance supervisor or designee, peace officer, probation officer, or school 
administrator or designee may, as applicable, arrest or assume temporary custody during 
school hours of any minor student found away from his/her home who is absent from school 
without a valid excuse.  Any person arresting or assuming temporary custody of a minor 
student shall deliver the student and make reports in accordance with Education Code 48265 
and 48266.  (Education Code 48264, 48265, 48266) 
 
(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall investigate a complaint from any person that a 
parent/guardian has violated the state compulsory education laws contained in Education 
Code 48200-48341.  (Education Code 48290) 
 
When a student has been identified as a truant as defined above, the following steps shall be 
implemented based on the number of truancies he/she has committed: 



 AR 5113.1(c) 
 
 
CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 
 
 
1. Initial truancy 

 
a. The student shall be reported to the Superintendent or designee.  (Education 

Code 48260) 
 

b. The student's parent/guardian shall be notified by the most cost-effective 
method possible, which may include email or a telephone call, that:  
(Education Code 48260.5) 
 
(1) The student is truant. 
 
(2) The parent/guardian is obligated to compel the student to attend 

school.  If the parent/guardian fails to meet this obligation, he/she may 
be guilty of an infraction of the law and subject to prosecution 
pursuant to Education Code 48290-48296. 

 
(3) Alternative educational programs are available in the district. 
 
(4) The parent/guardian has the right to meet with appropriate school 

personnel to discuss solutions to the student's truancy. 
 
(5) The student may be subject to arrest or held in temporary custody by a 

probation officer, a peace officer, a school administrator or designee, 
or attendance supervisor or designee pursuant to Education Code 
48264 if found away from home and absent from school without a 
valid excuse. 

 
(6) The student may be subject to suspension, restriction, or delay of 

his/her driving privilege pursuant to Vehicle Code 13202.7. 
 
(7) It is recommended that the parent/guardian accompany the student to 

school and attend classes with the student for one day. 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 

c. The student may be required to attend makeup classes on one day of a 
weekend pursuant to Education Code 37223.  (Education Code 48264.5) 

 
d. The student and, as appropriate, his/her parent/guardian may be requested to 

attend a meeting with a school counselor or other school designee to discuss 
the root causes of the attendance issue and develop a joint plan to improve the 
student's attendance.  (Education Code 48264.5) 

 



 AR 5113.1(d) 
 
 
CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 
 
 

e. The Superintendent or designee may notify the district attorney and/or 
probation officer of the student's name and the name and address of his/her 
parents/guardians.  (Education Code 48260.6) 

 
2. Second truancy 
 

a. Any student who has once been reported as a truant shall again be reported to 
the Superintendent or designee as a truant if he/she is absent from school 
without a valid excuse one or more days or is tardy on one or more days 
during the school year.  (Education Code 48261) 

 
b. The student may be required to attend makeup classes on one day of a 

weekend pursuant to Education Code 37223.  (Education Code 48264.5) 
 
c. The student may be assigned to an after-school or weekend study program 

within the county. If the student fails to successfully complete this study 
program, he/she shall be subject to item #3 below.  (Education Code 48264.5) 

 
d. An appropriate district staff member shall make a conscientious effort to hold 

at least one conference with the student and his/her parent/guardian by 
communicating with the parent/guardian at least once using the most cost-
effective method possible, which may include email or a telephone call.  
(Education Code 48262) 

 
e. The student may be given a written warning by a peace officer. A record of 

that warning may be kept at the school for not less than two years or until the 
student graduates or transfers from the school. If the student transfers, the 
record may be forwarded to the new school.  (Education Code 48264.5) 

 
f. The Superintendent or designee may notify the district attorney and/or 

probation officer when the student continues to be classified as a truant after 
the parents/guardians have been notified in accordance with item #1b above.  
(Education Code 48260.6) 

 
3. Third truancy (habitual truancy) 
 

a. A student who is habitually truant, irregular in school attendance, or 
habitually insubordinate or disorderly during attendance at school may be 
referred to, and required to attend, a school attendance review board (SARB) 
program, a truancy mediation program established by the district attorney or 
the probation officer, or a comparable program deemed acceptable by the 
Superintendent or designee.  (Education Code 48263, 48264.5) 

 



 AR 5113.1(e) 
 
 
CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board) 
 

b. Upon making a referral to the SARB or the probation department, the 
Superintendent or designee shall provide the student and parent/guardian, in 
writing, the name and address of the SARB or probation department and the 
reason for the referral. This notice shall indicate that the student and 
parent/guardian shall be required, along with the district staff person making 
the referral, to meet with the SARB or a probation officer to consider a proper 
disposition of the referral.  (Education Code 48263) 

 
c. If the student does not successfully complete the truancy mediation program 

or other similar program, he/she shall be subject to item #4 below.  (Education 
Code 48264.5) 

 
d. If the Superintendent or designee determines that available community 

services cannot resolve the problem of the truant or insubordinate student or if 
the student and/or his/her parents/guardians have failed to respond to the 
directives of the district or to services provided, the Superintendent or 
designee may so notify the district attorney and/or the probation officer.  
(Education Code 48263) 

 
4. Fourth truancy 
 

a. Upon his/her fourth truancy within the same school year, the student may be 
referred to the jurisdiction of the juvenile court.  (Education Code 48264.5; 
Welfare and Institutions Code 601) 

 
b. If a student has been adjudged by the county juvenile court to be a habitual 

truant, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the juvenile court and the 
student's probation or parole officer whenever the student is truant or tardy on 
one or more days without a valid excuse in the same or succeeding school 
year, or is habitually insubordinate or disorderly at school.  The juvenile court 
and probation or parole officer shall be notified within 10 days of the 
violation.  (Education Code 48267) 

 
5. Chronic truancy (unexcused absence for 10 percent of school days) 
 

a. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the student's 
parents/guardians are offered language-accessible support services to address 
the student's truancy. 

 
b. If a chronically truant student is at least age six years and is in any of grades 

K-8, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the student's  
 



 AR 5113.1(f) 
 
 
CHRONIC ABSENCE AND TRUANCY  (continued) 
 

 
 parents/guardians that failure to reasonably supervise and encourage the 

student's school attendance may result in the parent/guardian being found 
guilty of a misdemeanor pursuant to Penal Code 270.1. 

 
Records 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain accurate attendance records for students 
identified as habitual or chronic truants.  The Superintendent or designee also shall document 
all contacts with a student and his/her parent/guardian regarding the student's attendance, 
including a summary of all conversations and a record of all intervention efforts. 
 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall gather and transmit to the County Superintendent of 
Schools the number and types of referrals made to the SARB and of requests for petitions 
made to the juvenile court.  (Education Code 48273) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: October 2017 



Students AR 5113.11(a) 
 
ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall appoint an attendance supervisor and any assistant 
attendance supervisor(s) as may be necessary to supervise the attendance of district students.  
(Education Code 48240) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any person appointed as an attendance 
supervisor has been certificated for the work by the County Board of Education.  (Education 
Code 48241, 48245) 
 
Such supervisors shall perform duties related to compulsory full-time education, truancy, 
compulsory continuation education, work permits, and any additional duties prescribed by 
the Superintendent or designee.  (Education Code 48240) 
 
(cf. 5112.1 - Exemptions from Attendance) 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 
(cf. 5113.2 - Work Permits) 
(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 
 
The attendance supervisor shall promote a culture of attendance and establish a system to 
accurately track student attendance in order to achieve all of the following:  (Education Code 
48240) 
 
1. Raise the awareness of school personnel, parents/guardians, caregivers, community 

partners, and local businesses of the effects of chronic absenteeism and truancy and 
other challenges associated with poor attendance 

 
2. Identify and respond to grade level or student subgroup patterns of chronic 

absenteeism or truancy 
 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
 
3. Identify and address factors contributing to chronic absenteeism and habitual truancy, 

including suspension and expulsion 
 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
 
4. Ensure that students with attendance problems are identified as early as possible to 

provide applicable support services and interventions 
 
5. Evaluate the effectiveness of strategies implemented to reduce chronic absenteeism 

rates and truancy rates 



 AR 5113.11(b) 
 
 
ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 
The attendance supervisor may provide support services and interventions, including, but not 
limited to, the following:  (Education Code 48240) 
 
1. A conference between school personnel, the student's parent/guardian, and the student 
 
2. Promotion of cocurricular and extracurricular activities that increase student 

connectedness to school, such as tutoring, mentoring, the arts, service learning, or 
athletics 

 
(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes) 
(cf. 6142.6 - Visual and Performing Arts) 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 
 
3. Recognition of students who achieve excellent attendance or demonstrate significant 

improvement in attendance 
 
(cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement) 
 
4. Referral of the student to a school nurse, school counselor, school psychologist, 

school social worker, and other student support personnel for case management and 
counseling 

 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
 
5. Collaboration with child welfare services, law enforcement, courts, public health care 

agencies, government agencies, or medical, mental health, and oral health care 
providers to receive necessary services 

 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 
 
6. Collaboration with school study teams, guidance teams, school attendance review 

teams, or other intervention-related teams to assess the attendance or behavior 
problem in partnership with the student and his/her parents/guardians or caregivers 

 
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 
 
7. In schools with significantly higher rates of chronic absenteeism, identification of 

barriers to attendance that may require schoolwide strategies rather than case 
management 

 
 



 AR 5113.11(c) 
 
 
ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION  (continued) 
 
 
8. Referral of the student for a comprehensive psychosocial or psychoeducational 

assessment, including for purposes of creating an individualized education program 
for a student with disabilities or creating a plan pursuant to Section 504 of the federal 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 
 
9. Referral of the student to a school attendance review board established pursuant to 

Education Code 48321 or to the probation department pursuant to Education Code 
48263 

 
(cf. 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board) 
 
10. Referral of the student to a truancy mediation program operated by the county's 

district attorney or probation officer pursuant to Education Code 48260.6 
 
The attendance supervisor shall annually report student attendance data to the Superintendent 
or designee and the Governing Board. Such data shall include, by school, grade level, and 
each numerically significant student subgroup as defined in Education Code 52052, rates of 
school attendance, chronic absence in which students are absent on 10 percent of more of the 
school days in the school year, and dropout. 
 
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 5113.11(d) 
 
 
ATTENDANCE SUPERVISION  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
1740  Employment of personnel to supervise attendance (county superintendent) 
37223  Weekend classes 
46000  Records (attendance) 
46010-46014  Absences 
46110-46119  Attendance in kindergarten and elementary schools 
46140-46147  Attendance in junior high and high schools 
48200-48208  Children ages 6-18 (compulsory full-time attendance) 
48240-48246  Supervisors of attendance 
48260-48273  Truants 
48290-48297 Failure to comply; complaints against parents 
48320-48325  School attendance review boards 
48340-48341  Improvement of student attendance 
48400-48403  Compulsory continuation education 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
60901  Chronic absence 
PENAL CODE 
270.1  Chronic truancy; parent/guardian misdemeanor 
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 
601-601.4  Habitually truant minors 
11253.5   Compulsory school attendance 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
306  Explanation of absence 
420-421  Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
School Attendance Review Board Handbook, 2015 
School Attendance Improvement Handbook, 2000 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
Attendance Works:  http://www.attendanceworks.org 
California Association of Supervisors of Child Welfare and Attendance:  http://www.cascwa.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: October 2017 



Students BP 5113.12(a) 
 
DISTRICT SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that poor school attendance and behavior problems 
negatively impact student achievement and put students at greater risk of dropping out of 
school. The Superintendent or designee shall establish a comprehensive and integrated 
system for the early identification of attendance problems and shall implement strategies to 
encourage students' attendance. After other interventions have been exhausted, students with 
a pattern of unexcused absences may be referred to a school attendance review board 
(SARB), in accordance with applicable law, in order to receive intensive guidance and 
assistance. 
 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 
(cf. 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision) 
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 
 
The SARB shall maintain a continuing inventory of community resources, including 
alternative educational programs. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with the SARB and appropriate community 
agencies, including, but not limited to, law enforcement agencies, child welfare agencies, and 
health services, to provide school-based and/or community-based interventions tailored to the 
specific needs of the student. 
 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
(cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement) 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 
(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 
(cf. 6181 - Alternative Schools/Programs of Choice) 
(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction) 
(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School) 
 
The Board shall appoint members to the district's SARB, who may include a parent/guardian 
as well as representatives of various agencies including, but not limited to, school districts; 
the county probation department; the county welfare department; the County Superintendent  
 



 BP 5113.12(b) 
 
 
DISTRICT SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD (continued) 
 
 
of Schools; law enforcement agencies; community-based youth service centers; school 
guidance personnel; child welfare and attendance personnel; school or county health care 
personnel; school, county, or community mental health personnel; the county district 
attorney's office; and the county public defender's office.  (Education Code 48321) 
 
The district's SARB shall provide support to improve student attendance and behavior 
through proactive efforts focused on building positive school environments and improved 
school connectedness, early identification and immediate intervention to re-engage students 
with poor attendance or behavior, and intensive intervention with students and families to 
address severe or persistent attendance or behavior issues. 
 
The district's SARB shall operate in accordance with Education Code 48320-48325, the 
Brown Act (Government Code 54950-54963), and the bylaws of the SARB. 
 
The SARB shall collect data and annually report outcomes on SARB referrals to the 
Governing Board, Superintendent or designee, and County Superintendent of Schools.  
(Education Code 48273) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
1740  Employment of personnel to supervise attendance (county superintendent) 
1980-1986  County community school 
46010-46014  Absences 
48200-48208  Children ages 6-18 (compulsory full-time attendance) 
48240-48246  Supervisors of attendance 
48260-48273  Truants 
48290-48297 Failure to comply; complaints against parents 
48320-48325  School attendance review boards 
48340-48341  Improvement of student attendance 
48400-48403  Compulsory continuation education 
48660-48666  Community day school 
49067  Unexcused absences as cause of failing grade 
CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 
1985-1997  Production of evidence; means of production 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
54950-54963  The Ralph M. Brown Act 

 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 



 BP 5113.12(c) 
 
 
DISTRICT SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

PENAL CODE 
270.1  Chronic truancy; parent/guardian misdemeanor 
272  Parent/guardian duty to supervise and control minor child; criminal liability for truancy 
830.1  Peace officers 
VEHICLE CODE 
13202.7  Driving privileges; minors; suspension or delay for habitual truancy 
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 
256-258  Juvenile hearing officer 
601-601.4  Habitually truant minors 
11253.5   Compulsory school attendance 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
306  Explanation of absence 
420-421  Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes 
COURT DECISIONS 
L.A. v. Superior Court of San Diego County, (2012) 209 Cal.App.4th 976 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
School Attendance Review Board Handbook:  A Road Map for Improved School Attendance and 
Behavior, 2015 
School Attendance Improvement Handbook, 2000 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
Attendance Works:  http://www.attendanceworks.org 
California Association of Supervisors of Child Welfare and Attendance:  http://www.cascwa.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: October 2017 



Students AR 5113.12(a) 
 
DISTRICT SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD 
 
 
Upon receiving a referral of a student with attendance and/or behavior problems, a 
designated member of the school attendance review board (SARB) shall review the case and 
may meet with school personnel to determine whether the school has provided sufficient 
information about the student's attendance record or behavior. If the referral is complete and 
is an appropriate matter for the SARB to consider, the SARB chairperson shall provide 
written notification to the student's parents/guardians stating the reasons a referral has been 
made, explaining the SARB process, advising whether additional information is needed, and 
describing school-level interventions that have previously been attempted. 
 
The SARB shall meet with the student and his/her parents/guardians, give them an 
opportunity to present their understanding of the problem, and discuss the school and/or 
community resources appropriate for the student's circumstances. 
 
Any SARB meeting to consider matters related to an individual student shall be held in 
closed session unless the parent/guardian requests, in writing, that the meeting be held in 
open session. 
 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 
 
The SARB shall have access to relevant student records, but shall not provide access to 
others without written consent of the student's parent/guardian.  (Education Code 49076) 
 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 
For the limited purpose of making a proper disposition of the referral of a student, the SARB 
may issue subpoenas pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure 1985-1997 or may request the 
juvenile court to issue subpoenas to require the attendance of the student, parents/guardians 
or other person having control of the student, the school authority referring the student, or 
any other person who has pertinent or material information concerning the matter. The SARB 
shall not issue any subpoena that includes a request for production of written materials, but 
may request a juvenile court to issue such subpoena for the production of written materials.  
(Education Code 48263, 48321.5) 
 
The SARB shall issue written directives stating the responsibilities of all persons involved, 
detailed resource referrals, and follow-up dates for the school's reports on the student's 
progress. The written directives shall include an agreement that the student will attend school 
or improve classroom behavior as applicable, and shall be signed by the student, his/her 
parents/guardians, the SARB chairperson, and the Superintendent or designee. 
 
When referred by the SARB, a student may be assigned to a community day school or a 
county community school.  (Education Code 1981, 48662) 
 
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School) 
 
 



 AR 5113.12(b) 
 
 
DISTRICT SCHOOL ATTENDANCE REVIEW BOARD (continued) 
 
 
At any time it deems proper, the SARB may require the student or his/her parents/guardians 
to furnish satisfactory evidence of participation in any available community services that the 
student or parents/guardians have been directed to use.  (Education Code 48263) 
 
Based on progress reports submitted by the school, the SARB may terminate the agreement 
upon the successful completion of the terms of the agreement, extend the time for completion 
of the agreement, or schedule another meeting with the student and his/her parents/guardians. 
 
If the student's attendance or behavior problems cannot be resolved by the SARB, or if the 
student and/or the student's parents/guardians continually and willfully fail to respond to 
SARB directives or the services provided, the student or parents/guardians shall be referred 
to the appropriate agency, including law enforcement agencies when necessary.  (Education 
Code 48263, 48290-48291) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: October 2017 



Students BP 5117(a) 
 
INTERDISTRICT ATTENDANCE 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that parents/guardians of students who reside within the 
geographic boundaries of one district may, for a variety of reasons, desire to enroll their 
children in a school in another district. 
 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 
(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 
(cf. 5118 - Open Enrollment Act Transfers) 
 
Interdistrict Attendance Permits 
 
The Board may enter into an agreement with any other school district, for a term not to 
exceed five school years, for the interdistrict attendance of students who are residents of the 
districts.  (Education Code 46600) 
 
The agreement shall specify the terms and conditions under which interdistrict attendance 
shall be permitted or denied. It also may contain standards agreed to by both districts for 
reapplication and/or revocation of the student's permit.  (Education Code 46600) 
 
Upon receiving a permit for transfer into the district that has been approved by the student's 
district of residence, or upon receiving a written request from the parent/guardian of a district 
student who wishes to enroll in another district, the Superintendent or designee shall review 
the request and may approve or deny the permit subject to the terms and conditions of the 
interdistrict attendance agreement. 
 
Transportation 
 
The district shall not provide transportation beyond any school attendance area.  Upon 
request of a student's parent/guardian, the Superintendent or designee may authorize 
transportation for an interdistrict transfer student to and from designated bus stops within the 
attendance area of the school that the student attends if space is available. 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
41020  Annual district audits 
46600-46611  Interdistrict attendance agreements 
48204  Residency requirements for school attendance 
48300-48317 Student attendance alternatives, school district of choice program 
48350-48361 Open Enrollment Act 
48900  Grounds for suspension or expulsion; definition of bullying 
48915  Expulsion; particular circumstances 
48915.1  Expelled individuals:  enrollment in another district 
48918  Rules governing expulsion procedures 
48980  Notice at beginning of term 
52317  Regional occupational center/program, enrollment of students, interdistrict attendance 
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 
Article 1, Section 31  Nondiscrimination on the basis of race, sex, color, ethnicity, or national origin 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 



 BP 5117(b) 
 
 
INTERDISTRICT ATTENDANCE  (continued) 

 
 
87 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 132 (2004) 
84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 198 (2001) 
COURT DECISIONS 
Walnut Valley Unified School District v. the Superior Court of Los Angeles County, (2011) 192 
Cal.App.4th 234 
Crawford v. Huntington Beach Union High School District, (2002) 98 Cal.App.4th 1275 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: October 2017 



Students AR 5117(a) 
 
INTERDISTRICT ATTENDANCE 
 
Interdistrict Attendance Permits 
 
In accordance with an agreement between the Governing Board and the board of another 
district, a permit authorizing a student's attendance outside his/her district of residence may 
be issued upon approval of both the district of residence and the district of proposed 
attendance. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may approve an interdistrict attendance permit for a student 
for any of the following reasons when stipulated in the agreement: 
 
1. When the student has been determined by staff of either the district of residence or 

district of proposed attendance to be a victim of an act of bullying as defined in 
Education Code 48900(r). Such a student shall be given priority for interdistrict 
attendance under any existing interdistrict attendance agreement or, in the absence of 
an agreement, shall be given consideration for the creation of a new permit.  
(Education Code 46600) 

 
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 
 
2. To meet the child care needs of the student.  Such a student may be allowed to 

continue to attend district schools only as long as he/she continues to use a child care 
provider within district boundaries. 

 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 
 
3. To meet the student's special mental or physical health needs as certified by a 

physician, school psychologist, or other appropriate school personnel. 
 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
 
4. When the student has a sibling attending school in the receiving district, to avoid 

splitting the family's attendance. 
 
5. To allow the student to complete a school year when his/her parents/guardians have 

moved out of the district during that year. 
 
6. To allow the student to remain with a class graduating that year from an elementary, 

middle, or senior high school. 
 
7. When the parent/guardian provides written evidence that the family will be moving 

into the district in the immediate future and would like the student to start the year in 
the district. 

 
8. When the student will be living out of the district for one year or less. 
 
 
 



 AR 5117(b) 
 
INTERDISTRICT ATTENDANCE  (continued) 
 
9. When recommended by the school attendance review board or by county child 

welfare, probation, or social service agency staff in documented cases of serious 
home or community problems which make it inadvisable for the student to attend the 
school of residence. 

 
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 
(cf. 5113.12 - District School Attendance Review Board) 
 
10. When there is valid interest in a particular educational program not offered in the 

district of residence. 
 
11. To provide a change in school environment for reasons of personal and social 

adjustment. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may deny initial requests for interdistrict attendance permits 
due to limited district resources, overcrowding of school facilities at the relevant grade level, 
or other considerations that are not arbitrary.  However, once a student is admitted, the 
district may not deny him/her continued attendance because of overcrowded facilities at the 
relevant grade level. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
 
Within 30 calendar days of a request for an interdistrict permit, the Superintendent or 
designee shall notify the parents/guardians of a student who is denied interdistrict attendance 
regarding the process for appeal to the County Board of Education as specified in Education 
Code 46601.  (Education Code 46601) 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
Pending a decision by the two districts or an appeal by the County Board, the Superintendent 
or designee may provisionally admit a student who resides in another district for a period not 
to exceed two school months.  (Education Code 46603) 
 
Students who are under consideration for expulsion or who have been expelled may not 
appeal interdistrict attendance denials or decisions while expulsion proceedings are pending 
or during the term of the expulsion.  (Education Code 46601) 
 
(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
 
Once a student is admitted to a school on the basis of an interdistrict attendance permit, 
he/she shall not be required to reapply for an interdistrict transfer and shall be allowed to 
continue to attend the school in which he/she is enrolled, unless reapplication standards are 
otherwise specified in the interdistrict attendance or behavioral agreements. 
 
 



 AR 5117(c) 
 
INTERDISTRICT ATTENDANCE  (continued) 
 
The district may accept any completed coursework, attendance, and other academic progress 
credited to an accepted student by any district(s) he/she has previously attended and may 
grant academic standing to the student based upon the district's evaluation of the student's 
academic progress.  (Education Code 48309) 
 
(cf. 6146.3 - Reciprocity of Academic Credit) 
 
The district may revoke a student's enrollment if he/she is recommended for expulsion 
pursuant to Education Code 48918.  (Education Code 48309) 
 
Transfers Out of the District 
 
A student whose parent/guardian is in active military duty shall not be prohibited from 
transferring out of the district, provided the school district of proposed enrollment approves 
the application for transfer.  (Education Code 46600, 48307) 
 
The district may limit transfers out of the district to a school district of choice under any of 
the following circumstances:  (Education Code 48307) 
 
1. The number of student transfers out of the district to a school district of choice has 

reached the limit specified in Education Code 48307 based on the district's average 
daily attendance. 

 
2. The County Superintendent of Schools has given the district a negative budget 

certification or has determined that the district will not meet the state's standards and 
criteria for fiscal stability in the subsequent fiscal year exclusively as a result of 
student transfers from this district to a school district of choice. 

 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
 
3. The Board determines that the transfer would negatively impact any of the following:  

(Education Code 48307) 
 
a. A court-ordered desegregation plan 
 
b. A voluntary desegregation plan of the district, consistent with the California 

Constitution, Article 1, Section 31 
 
c. The racial and ethnic balance of the district, consistent with the California 

Constitution, Article 1, Section 31 
 

 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: October 2017 
 



 
Students AR 5125.2(a) 
 
WITHHOLDING GRADES, DIPLOMA OR TRANSCRIPTS 
 
 
When a minor student willfully cuts, defaces, or otherwise injures real or personal property 
of the district or does not return district property that has been loaned to him/her upon 
demand of a district employee, the student's parents/guardians may be required to pay the 
costs of all damages within the limits established pursuant to Education Code 48904. Until 
the student's parents/guardians have paid for the damages, the Superintendent or designee 
may withhold the student's grades, diploma, and/or transcripts.  (Education Code 48904) 
 
(cf. 3515.4 - Recovery for Property Loss or Damage) 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti) 
(cf. 6161.2 - Damaged or Lost Instructional Materials) 
 
Before withholding the student's grades, diploma, and/or transcripts, the Superintendent or 
designee shall inform the student's parents/guardians in writing of the student's alleged 
misconduct.  (Education Code 48904) 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
The student shall be afforded due process consistent with procedures established for the 
expulsion of students.  (Education Code 48904) 
 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
 
If the student and parents/guardians are unable to pay for the damages or return the property, 
the Superintendent or designee shall provide a program of voluntary work for the student in 
lieu of monetary damages. Upon completion of the voluntary work, the student's grades, 
diploma, and/or transcripts shall be released.  (Education Code 48904) 
 
When a student who is transferring into the district has had his/her grades, diploma, and/or 
transcripts withheld by the previous district, the Superintendent or designee shall continue to 
withhold the student's grades, diploma, and/or transcripts until notified by the previous 
district that the decision to withhold has been rescinded.  (Education Code 48904.3) 
 
Upon receiving notice that a student whose grades, diploma, and/or transcripts have been 
withheld by this district has transferred to another district in California, the Superintendent or 
designee shall provide the student's records to the new district and notify the new district that 
the student's grades, diploma, and/or transcripts are being withheld from the student and 
parents/guardians pursuant to Education Code 48904. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall also notify the student's parents/guardians in writing 
that the decision to withhold the student's grades, diploma, and/or transcripts will be enforced 
by the new district.  (Education Code 48904.3) 
 
 



 AR 5125.2(b) 
 
 
WITHHOLDING GRADES, DIPLOMA OR TRANSCRIPTS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
48904  Liability of parent 
48904.3  Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts of pupils causing property damage or injury; 
transfer of pupils to new school districts; notice to rescind decision to withhold 
48911  Suspension by principal, designee or superintendent 
49069  Absolute right to access 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: October 2017 
 



Students BP 5131.6(a) 
 
ALCOHOL AND OTHER DRUGS 
 
 
The Governing Board believes that the use of alcohol or other drugs adversely affects a 
student's ability to achieve academic success, is physically and emotionally harmful, and has 
serious social and legal consequences. The Superintendent or designee shall develop 
comprehensive programs and activities to foster safe, healthy, and drug-free environments 
that support academic achievement. 
 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
(cf. 4020 - Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace) 
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 
 
The district's alcohol and drug prevention and intervention programs shall be coordinated 
with other school and community-based services and programs and shall promote the 
involvement of parents/guardians. The Superintendent or designee may collaborate with the 
county office of education, community-based organizations, health providers, law 
enforcement agencies, local child welfare agencies, postsecondary institutions, businesses, 
and other public and private entities in program planning, implementation, and evaluation. 
 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
Prevention and intervention programs and activities may include, but are not limited to:  (20 
USC 7118) 
 
1. Evidence-based drug and violence prevention activities and programs that educate 

students against the use of alcohol, tobacco, cannabis, smokeless tobacco products, 
and electronic cigarettes 

 
(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco) 
 
2. Professional development and training for school staff, specialized instructional 

support personnel, and interested community members on drug prevention, education, 
early identification, intervention mentoring, recovery support services, and, where 
appropriate, rehabilitation referral 

 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
3. School-based mental health services, including early identification of drug use and 

referrals to counseling services, and/or partnerships with public or private health care 
entities that have qualified mental and behavioral health professionals 

 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
 
 



 BP 5131.6(b) 
 
 
ALCOHOL AND OTHER DRUGS  (continued) 
 
 
4. Programs and activities that provide mentoring and school counseling to all students, 

including students who are at risk of drug use and abuse 
 
Instruction 
 
The district shall provide science-based preventative instruction which has been proven 
effective in helping students avoid the use of alcohol and other drugs. 
 
(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction) 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
 
All instruction and related materials shall consistently state that unlawful use of alcohol or 
other drugs is prohibited. Instruction shall not include any message on responsible use of 
drugs or alcohol when such use is illegal.  (Health and Safety Code 11999.2) 
 
The district shall offer staff development activities for staff who implement the 
comprehensive drug and alcohol prevention and intervention program. 
 
Intervention, Referral, and Student Assistance Programs 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall inform school staff, students, and parents/guardians 
about early warning signs which may indicate alcohol and other drug use and about 
appropriate agencies offering intervention programs, counseling, referral, and other student 
assistance programs. 
 
The Board strongly encourages any student who is using alcohol or drugs to discuss the 
matter with his/her parent/guardian or with any staff member. Students who disclose their use 
of alcohol or other drugs when seeking help from an intervention or recovery program shall 
not be disciplined for such use. 
 
(cf. 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention) 
 
Enforcement/Discipline 
 
Students shall not possess, use, or sell alcohol or other drugs and related paraphernalia on 
school grounds or at school-sponsored activities. 
 
(cf. 3513.3 - Tobacco-Free Schools) 
(cf. 3513.4 - Drug and Alcohol Free Schools) 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 
(cf. 5131.61 - Drug Testing) 
(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 
(cf. 5145.11 - Questioning and Apprehension by Law Enforcement) 
(cf. 5145.12 - Search and Seizure) 



 BP 5131.6(c) 
 
 
ALCOHOL AND OTHER DRUGS  (continued) 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall clearly communicate to all students, staff, and 
parents/guardians the district's policies, regulations, and school rules related to the use of 
alcohol and other drugs. 
 
Any student found by the Board to be selling a controlled substance listed in Health and 
Safety Code 11053-11058 shall be expelled in accordance with BP/AR 5144.1 - Suspension 
and Expulsion/Due Process.  A student found to have committed another drug or alcohol 
offense, including possession or intoxication, shall be referred to appropriate behavioral 
interventions or student assistance programs, and may be subject to discipline on a case-by-
case basis. 
 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
 
Program Evaluation 
 

The Board and Superintendent shall agree upon performance measures that will be used to 
monitor and determine the effectiveness of district programs in reducing drug and alcohol 
use.  The Superintendent or designee shall periodically report to the Board on the 
effectiveness of district activities in achieving identified objectives and outcomes.  (20 USC 
7116) 
 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
44049  Known or suspected alcohol or drug abuse by student 
44645  In-service training anabolic steroids 
48900  Suspension or expulsion (grounds) 
48900.5  Suspension, limitation on imposition; exception 
48901  Smoking or use of tobacco prohibited 
48901.5  Prohibition of electronic signaling devices 
48902  Notification of law enforcement authorities; civil or criminal immunity 
48909  Narcotics or other hallucinogenic drugs 
48915  Expulsion; particular circumstances 
49602  Confidentiality of pupil information 
51202  Instruction in personal and public health and safety 

 
 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 
 
 
 



 BP 5131.6(d) 
 
 
ALCOHOL AND OTHER DRUGS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

EDUCATION CODE (continued) 
51203  Instruction on alcohol, narcotics and restricted dangerous drugs 
51210  Areas of study 
51220  Areas of study, grades 7 to 12 
51260-51269  Drug education 
60041 Instructional materials 
60110-60115  Instructional materials on alcohol and drug education 
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE 
25608  Alcohol on school property; use in connection with instruction 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
11032  Narcotics, restricted dangerous drugs and marijuana 
11053-11058  Standards and schedules 
11353.6  Juvenile Drug Trafficking and Schoolyard Act 
11357  Unauthorized possession of marijuana; possession in school or on school grounds 
11361.5  Destruction of arrest or conviction records 
11372.7  Drug program fund; uses 
11802  Joint school-community alcohol abuse primary education and prevention program 
11999-11999.3  Alcohol and drug program funding; no unlawful use 
124175-124200  Adolescent family life program 
PENAL CODE 
13860-13864  Suppression of drug abuse in schools 
VEHICLE CODE 
13202.5  Drug and alcohol related offenses by person under age of 21, but aged 13 or over; 
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE 
828   Disclosure of information re minors 
828.1  Disclosure of criminal records; protection of vulnerable staff & students 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
5812  National education goals 
7101-7122  Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
California Department of Education, Alcohol, Tobacco and Other Drug Prevention:  
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/he/at 
California Healthy Kids:  http://www.californiahealthykids.org 
Office of Safe and Healthy Students: https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/oese/oshs 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: October 2017 



Instruction BP 6020(a) 
 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that parents/guardians are their children's first and most 
influential teachers and that sustained parent/guardian involvement in the education of their 
children contributes greatly to student achievement and a positive school environment. The 
Superintendent or designee shall consult with parents/guardians and family members in the 
development of meaningful opportunities for them to be involved in district and school 
activities at all grade levels; advisory, decision-making, and advocacy roles; and activities to 
support learning at home. 
 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations) 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 1250 - Visitors/Outsiders) 
 
Parents/guardians shall be notified of their rights to be informed about and to participate in 
their children's education and of the opportunities available to them to do so. 
 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
 
The district's local control and accountability plan shall include goals and strategies for 
parent/guardian involvement, including district efforts to seek parent/guardian input in 
district and school site decision making and to promote parent/guardian participation in 
programs for English learners, foster youth, students eligible for free and reduced-price 
meals, and students with disabilities.  (Education Code 42238.02, 52060) 
 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall regularly evaluate and report to the Board on the 
effectiveness of the district's parent/guardian and family engagement efforts, including, but 
not limited to, input from parents/guardians, family members, and school staff on the 
adequacy of involvement opportunities and on barriers that may inhibit participation. 
 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 
Title I Schools 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall involve parents/guardians and family members in 
establishing district expectations and objectives for meaningful parent/guardian and family 
engagement in schools supported by Title I funding, developing strategies that describe how 
the district will carry out each activity listed in 20 USC 6318, as contained in the 
accompanying administrative regulation, and implementing and evaluating such programs, 
activities, and procedures. As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee shall conduct 
outreach to all parents/guardians and family members.  (Education Code 11503; 20 USC 
6318) 
 
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 



 BP 6020(b) 
 
 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT  (continued) 
 
 
When the district's Title I, Part A allocation exceeds the amount specified in 20 USC 6318, 
the Board shall reserve at least one percent of the funding to implement parent/guardian and 
family engagement activities. The Superintendent or designee shall involve parents/guardians 
and family members of participating students in decisions regarding how the district's Title I 
funds will be allotted for parent/guardian and family engagement activities and shall ensure 
that priority is given to schools in high poverty areas in accordance with law.  (20 USC 6318, 
6631) 
 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
 
Expenditures of such funds shall be consistent with the activities specified in this policy and 
shall include at least one of the following:  (20 USC 6318) 
 
1. Support for schools and nonprofit organizations in providing professional 

development for district and school staff regarding parent/guardian and family 
engagement strategies, which may be provided jointly to teachers, principals, other 
school leaders, specialized instructional support personnel, paraprofessionals, early 
childhood educators, and parents/guardians and family members 

 
2. Support for programs that reach parents/guardians and family members at home, in 

the community, and at school 
 
3. Dissemination of information on best practices focused on parent/guardian and family 

engagement, especially best practices for increasing the engagement of economically 
disadvantaged parents/guardians and family members 

 
4. Collaboration with community-based or other organizations or employers with a 

record of success in improving and increasing parent and family engagement 
 
5. Any other activities and strategies that the district determines are appropriate and 

consistent with this policy 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each school receiving Title I funds develops 
a school-level parent/guardian and family engagement policy in accordance with 20 USC 
6318. 
 

Non-Title I Schools 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement strategies applicable to each 
school that does not receive federal Title I funds to encourage the involvement and support of 
parents/guardians in the education of their children, including, but not limited to, strategies 
describing how the district and schools will address the purposes and goals described in 
Education Code 11502.  (Education Code 11504) 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 



 BP 6020(c) 
 
 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
11500-11506 Programs to encourage parent involvement 
48985  Notices in languages other than English 
51101  Parent rights and responsibilities 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
54444.1-54444.2  Parent advisory councils, services to migrant children 
56190-56194  Community advisory committee, special education 
64001  Single plan for student achievement 
LABOR CODE 
230.8  Time off to visit child's school 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
18275  Child care and development programs, parent involvement and education 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6311  State plan 
6312 Local educational agency plan 
6314 Schoolwide programs 
6318 Parent and family engagement 
6631 Teacher and school leader incentive program, purposes and definitions 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.104  Definitions, auxiliary aids and services 
35.160  Communications 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Title I School-Level Parental Involvement Policy 
Family Engagement Framework: A Tool for California School Districts, 2014 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Parental Involvement:  Title I, Part A, Non-Regulatory Guidance, April 23, 2004 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education, Family, School, Community Partnerships: 
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/pf 
California Parent Center:  http://parent.sdsu.edu 
California State PTA:  http://www.capta.org 
National Coalition for Parent Involvement in Education:  http://www.ncpie.org 
National PTA: http://www.pta.org 
Parent Information and Resource Centers:  http://www.pirc-info.net 
Parents as Teachers National Center:  http://www.parentsasteachers.org 
U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: October 2017 



Instruction AR 6020(a) 
 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT 
 
 
District Strategies for Title I Schools 
 
To ensure that parents/guardians and family members of students participating in Title I 
programs are provided with opportunities to be involved in their children's education, the 
district shall: 
 
1. Involve parents/guardians and family members in the joint development of a district 

plan that meets the requirements of 20 USC 6312 and in the development of school 
support and improvement plans pursuant to 20 USC 6311  (20 USC 6318) 

 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 
 

The Superintendent or designee may: 
 
a. In accordance with Education Code 52063, establish a district-level parent 

advisory committee and, as applicable, an English learner parent advisory 
committee to review and comment on the plan in accordance with the review 
schedule established by the Governing Board 

 
b. Invite input on the plan from other district committees and school site councils 

 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
 

c. Communicate with parents/guardians through the district newsletter, web site, 
or other methods regarding the plan and the opportunity to provide input 

 
d. Provide copies of working drafts of the plan to parents/guardians in an 

understandable and uniform format and, to the extent practicable, in a 
language the parents/guardians can understand 

 
e. Ensure that there is an opportunity at a public Board meeting for public 

comment on the plan prior to the Board's approval of the plan or revisions to 
the plan 

 
f. Ensure that school-level policies on parent/guardian and family engagement 

address the role of school site councils and other parents/guardians as 
appropriate in the development and review of school plans 

 
2. Provide coordination, technical assistance, and other support necessary to assist and 

build the capacity of Title I schools in planning and implementing effective 
parent/guardian and family engagement activities to improve student academic 
achievement and school performance, which may include meaningful consultation  
 



 AR 6020(b) 
 
 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT  (continued) 
 
 
 with employers, business leaders, and philanthropic organizations or individuals with 

expertise in effectively engaging parents/guardians and family members in education 
(20 USC 6318) 

 
(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools) 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall:  (20 USC 6318) 
 
a. Assist parents/guardians in understanding such topics as the challenging state 

academic content standards and academic achievement standards, state and 
local academic assessments, the requirements of Title I, and how to monitor a 
child's progress and work with educators to improve the achievement of their 
children 

 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 

b. Provide parents/guardians with materials and training, such as literacy training 
and using technology (including education about the harms of copyright 
piracy), as appropriate, to help them work with their children to improve their 
children's achievement 

 
c. With the assistance of parents/guardians, educate teachers, specialized 

instructional support personnel, principals and other school leaders, and other 
staff, in the value and utility of parent/guardian contributions and in how to 
reach out to, communicate with, and work with parents/guardians as equal 
partners, implement and coordinate parent/guardian programs, and build ties 
between parents/guardians and the schools 

 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 

d. To the extent feasible and appropriate, coordinate and integrate 
parent/guardian involvement programs and activities with other federal, state, 
and local programs, including public preschool programs, and conduct other 
activities, such as parent resource centers, that encourage and support 
parents/guardians in fully participating in their children's education 

 
e. Ensure that information related to school and parent/guardian programs, 

meetings, and other activities is sent to the parents/guardians of participating 
students in a format and, to the extent practicable, in a language the 
parents/guardians can understand 



 AR 6020(c) 
 
 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT  (continued) 
 

 
f. Provide other such reasonable support for parent/guardian involvement 

activities as parents/guardians may request 
 

g. Inform parents/guardians and parent organizations of the existence and 
purpose of parent information and resource centers in the state that provide 
training, information, and support to parents/guardians of participating 
students 

 
In addition, the Superintendent or designee may: 
 
a. Involve parents/guardians in the development of training for teachers, 

principals, and other educators to improve the effectiveness of such training 
 
b. Provide necessary literacy training, using Title I funds if the district has 

exhausted all other reasonably available sources of funding for such training 
 
c. Pay reasonable and necessary expenses associated with parent/guardian 

involvement activities, including transportation and child care costs, to enable 
parents/guardians to participate in school-related meetings and training 
sessions 

 
d. Train parents/guardians to enhance the involvement of other parents/guardians 
 
e. Arrange school meetings at a variety of times or, when parents/guardians are 

unable to attend such conferences, conduct in-home conferences between 
parents/guardians and teachers or other educators who work directly with 
participating students, in order to maximize parent/guardian involvement and 
participation 

 
f. Adopt and implement model approaches to improving parent/guardian 

involvement 
 
g. Establish a districtwide parent advisory council to provide advice on all 

matters related to parent/guardian involvement in Title I programs 
 
h. Develop appropriate roles for community-based organizations and businesses 

in parent/guardian involvement activities 
 
i. Make referrals to community agencies and organizations that offer literacy 

training, parent/guardian education programs, and/or other services that help 
to improve the conditions of parents/guardians and families 

 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 
 



 AR 6020(d) 
 
 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT  (continued) 
 
 

j. Provide a master calendar of district activities and district meetings 
 
k. Provide information about opportunities for parent/guardian and family 

engagement through the district newsletter, web site, or other written or 
electronic means 

 
l. Engage parent-teacher organizations to actively seek out and involve 

parents/guardians through regular communication updates and information 
sessions 

 
(cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations) 
 

m. To the extent practicable, provide translation services at school sites and at 
meetings involving parents/guardians and family members as needed 

 
n. Provide training and information to members of district and school site 

councils and advisory committees to help them fulfill their functions 
 
o. Provide ongoing district-level workshops to assist school site staff, 

parents/guardians, and family members in planning and implementing 
improvement strategies, and seek their input in developing the workshops 

 
p. Provide training for the principal or designee of each participating school 

regarding Title I requirements for parent/guardian and family engagement, 
leadership strategies, and communication skills to assist him/her in facilitating 
the planning and implementation of related activities 

 
q. Regularly evaluate the effectiveness of staff development activities related to 

parent/guardian and family engagement 
 
r. Include expectations for parent/guardian outreach and involvement in staff job 

descriptions and evaluations 
 
(cf. 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
(cf. 4215 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
(cf. 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
 

s. Assign district personnel to serve as a liaison to the schools regarding Title I 
parent/guardian and family engagement issues 

 
t. Provide information to schools about the indicators and assessment tools that 

will be used to monitor progress 
 
 



 AR 6020(e) 
 
 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT  (continued) 
 
 
3. To the extent feasible and appropriate, coordinate and integrate Title I 

parent/guardian and family engagement strategies with parent/guardian and family 
engagement strategies of other relevant federal, state, and local programs and ensure 
consistency with federal, state, and local laws  (20 USC 6318) 

 
The Superintendent or designee may: 
 
a. Identify overlapping or similar program requirements 

 
(cf. 0430 - Comprehensive Local Plan for Special Education) 
(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups) 
(cf. 3280 - Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property) 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
 

b. Involve district and school site representatives from other programs to assist 
in identifying specific population needs 

 
c. Schedule joint meetings with representatives from related programs and share 

data and information across programs 
 
d. Develop a cohesive, coordinated plan focused on student needs and shared 

goals 
 
4. Conduct, with meaningful involvement of parents/guardians and family members, an 

annual evaluation of the content and effectiveness of the parent/guardian and family 
engagement policy in improving the academic quality of the schools served by Title I, 
including identification of:  (20 USC 6318) 
 
a. Barriers to participation in parent/guardian and family engagement activities, 

with particular attention to parents/guardians who are economically 
disadvantaged, are disabled, have limited English proficiency, have limited 
literacy, or are of any racial or ethnic minority background 

 
b. The needs of parents/guardians and family members, so they can better assist 

with their children's learning and engage with school personnel and teachers 
 
c. Strategies to support successful school and family interactions 

 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 



 AR 6020(f) 
 
 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT  (continued) 
 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians of this review and 
assessment through regular school communications mechanisms and shall provide a 
copy of the assessment to parents/guardians upon their request.  (Education Code 
11503) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may: 
 
a. Use a variety of methods, such as focus groups, surveys, and workshops, to 

evaluate the satisfaction of parents/guardians and staff with the quality and 
frequency of district communications 

 
b. Gather and monitor data regarding the number of parents/guardians and 

family members participating in district activities and the types of activities in 
which they are engaged 

 
c. Recommend to the Board measures to evaluate the impact of the district's 

parent/guardian and family engagement efforts on student achievement 
 
5. Use the findings of the evaluation conducted pursuant to item #4 above to design 

evidence-based strategies for more effective parent/guardian and family involvement 
and, if necessary, to revise the parent/guardian and family engagement policy (20 
USC 6318) 

 
6. Involve parents/guardians in the activities of schools served by Title I, which may 

include establishing a parent advisory board comprised of a sufficient number and 
representative group of parents/guardians or family members served by the district to 
adequately represent the needs of the population served by the district for the 
purposes of developing, revising, and reviewing the parent/guardian and family 
engagement policy  (20 USC 6318) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may: 
 
a. Include information about school activities in district communications to 

parents/guardians and family members 
 
b. To the extent practicable, assist schools with translation services or other 

accommodations needed to encourage participation of parents/guardians and 
family members 

 
c. Establish processes to encourage parent/guardian input regarding their 

expectations and concerns for their children 
 
 



 AR 6020(g) 
 
 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT  (continued) 
 
 
The district's Board policy and administrative regulation containing parent/guardian and 
family engagement strategies shall be incorporated into the district's local control and 
accountability plan in accordance with 20 USC 6312 and shall be distributed to 
parents/guardians of students participating in Title I programs.  (20 USC 6318) 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
School-Level Policies for Title I Schools 
 
At each school receiving Title I funds, a written policy on parent/guardian and family 
engagement shall be developed jointly with the parents/guardians and family members of 
participating students. Such policy shall describe the means by which the school will:  (20 
USC 6318) 
 
1. Convene an annual meeting, at a convenient time, to which all parents/guardians of 

participating students shall be invited and encouraged to attend, in order to inform 
parents/guardians of their school's participation in Title I and to explain Title I 
requirements and the right of parents/guardians to be involved 

 
2. Offer a flexible number of meetings, such as meetings in the morning or evening, for 

which related transportation, child care, and/or home visits may be provided as such 
services relate to parent/guardian involvement 

 
3. Involve parents/guardians in an organized, ongoing, and timely way in the planning, 

review, and improvement of Title I programs, including the planning, review, and 
improvement of the school's parent/guardian and family engagement policy and, if 
applicable, the joint development of the plan for schoolwide programs pursuant to 20 
USC 6314 
 
The school may use an existing process for involving parents/guardians in the joint 
planning and design of the school's programs provided that the process includes 
adequate representation of parents/guardians of participating students. 

 
4. Provide the parents/guardians of participating students all of the following: 
 

a. Timely information about Title I programs 
 
b. A description and explanation of the school's curriculum, forms of academic 

assessment used to measure student progress, and the achievement levels of 
the challenging state academic standards 

 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 
 
 



 AR 6020(h) 
 
 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT  (continued) 
 
 

c. If requested by parents/guardians, opportunities for regular meetings to 
formulate suggestions and to participate, as appropriate, in decisions related to 
their children's education, and, as soon as practicably possible, responses to 
the suggestions of parents/guardians 

 
5. If the schoolwide program plan is not satisfactory to the parents/guardians of 

participating students, submit any parent/guardian comments when the school makes 
the plan available to the district 

 
6. Jointly develop with the parents/guardians of participating students a school-parent 

compact that outlines how parents/guardians, the entire school staff, and students will 
share responsibility for improved student academic achievement and the means by 
which the school and parents/guardians will build a partnership to help students 
achieve state standards 
 
This compact shall address: 
 
a. The school's responsibility to provide high-quality curriculum and instruction 

in a supportive and effective learning environment that enables participating 
students to achieve the state's challenging academic achievement standards 

 
b. Ways in which parents/guardians will be responsible for supporting their 

children's learning, volunteering in the classroom, and participating, as 
appropriate, in decisions related to their children's education and the positive 
use of extracurricular time 

 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular/Cocurricular Activities) 
(cf. 6154 - Homework/Makeup Work) 
 

c. The importance of communication between teachers and parents/guardians on 
an ongoing basis through, at a minimum: 
 
(1) Parent-teacher conferences in elementary schools, at least annually, 

during which the compact shall be discussed as it relates to the 
student's achievement 

 
(2) Frequent reports to parents/guardians on their children's progress 
 
(3) Reasonable access to staff, opportunities to volunteer and participate in 

their child's classroom, and observation of classroom activities 
 
 



 AR 6020(i) 
 
 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT  (continued) 
 

 
(4) Regular two-way, meaningful communication between family 

members and school staff, and, to the extent practicable, in a language 
that family members can understand 

 
7. Build the capacity of the school and parents/guardians for strong parent involvement 

by implementing the required activities described in item #2 in the section "District 
Strategies for Title I Schools" above 

 
8. To the extent practicable, provide opportunities for the informed participation of 

parents/guardians and family members (including parents/guardians and family 
members with limited English proficiency, parents/guardians and family members 
with disabilities, and parents/guardians and family members of migrant children), 
including providing information and school reports required under 20 USC 6311(h) in 
a format and language such parents/guardians can understand 

 
If the school has a parent involvement policy that applies to all parents/guardians, it may 
amend that policy to meet the above requirements.  (20 USC 6318) 
 
Each school's parent/guardian and family engagement policy shall be made available to the 
local community. Parents/guardians shall be notified of the policy in an understandable and 
uniform format and, to the extent practicable, provided in a language the parents/guardians 
can understand.  (20 USC 6318) 
 
Each school receiving Title I funds shall annually evaluate the effectiveness of its 
parent/guardian and family engagement policy.  Such evaluation may be conducted during 
the process of reviewing the school's single plan for student achievement in accordance with 
Education Code 64001. 
 
The school's policy shall be periodically updated to meet the changing needs of 
parents/guardians and the school.  (20 USC 6318) 
 
District Strategies for Non-Title I Schools 
 
For each school that does not receive federal Title I funds, the Superintendent or designee 
shall, at a minimum: 
 
1. Engage parents/guardians positively in their children's education by helping them 

develop skills to use at home that support their children's academic efforts at school 
and their children's development as responsible members of society (Education Code 
11502, 11504) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may: 
 



 AR 6020(j) 
 
 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT  (continued) 
 

 
a. Provide or make referrals to literacy training and/or parent education 

programs designed to improve the skills of parents/guardians and enhance 
their ability to support their children's education 

 
b. Provide information, in parent handbooks and through other appropriate 

means, regarding academic expectations and resources to assist with the 
subject matter 

 
c. Provide parents/guardians with information about students' class assignments 

and homework assignments 
 
2. Inform parents/guardians that they can directly affect the success of their children's 

learning, by providing them with techniques and strategies that they may use to 
improve their children's academic success and to assist their children in learning at 
home  (Education Code 11502, 11504) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may: 
 
a. Provide parents/guardians with information regarding ways to create an 

effective study environment for their children at home and to encourage good 
study habits 

 
b. Encourage parents/guardians to monitor their children's school attendance, 

homework completion, and television viewing 
 
c. Encourage parents/guardians to volunteer in their child's classroom and to 

participate in school advisory committees 
 
3. Build consistent and effective communication between the home and school so that 

parents/guardians may know when and how to assist their children in support of 
classroom learning activities  (Education Code 11502, 11504) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may: 
 
a. Ensure that teachers provide frequent reports to parents/guardians on their 

children's progress and hold parent-teacher conferences at least once per year 
with parents/guardians of elementary school students 

 
b. Provide opportunities for parents/guardians to observe classroom activities 

and to volunteer in their child's classroom 
 
 
 



 AR 6020(k) 
 
 

PARENT INVOLVEMENT  (continued) 
 

 

c. Provide information about parent/guardian and family engagement 
opportunities through district, school, and/or class newsletters, the district's 
web site, and other written or electronic communications 

 
d. To the extent practicable, provide notices and information to 

parents/guardians in a format and language they can understand 
 

e. Develop mechanisms to encourage parent/guardian input on district and 
school issues 

 

f. Identify barriers to parent/guardian and family participation in school 
activities, including parents/guardians and family members who are 
economically disadvantaged, are disabled, have limited English proficiency, 
have limited literacy, or are of any racial or ethnic minority background 

 
g. Encourage greater parent/guardian participation by adjusting meeting 

schedules to accommodate parent/guardian needs and, to the extent 
practicable, by providing translation or interpreter services, transportation, 
and/or child care 

 

4. Train teachers and administrators to communicate effectively with parents/guardians 
(Education Code 11502, 11504) 
 

The Superintendent or designee may: 
 
a. Provide staff development to assist staff in strengthening two-way 

communications with parents/guardians, including parents/guardians who 
have limited English proficiency or limited literacy 

 
b. Invite input from parents/guardians regarding the content of staff development 

activities pertaining to home-school communications 
 
5. Integrate parent/guardian and family engagement programs into school plans for 

academic accountability 
 
The Superintendent or designee may: 
 
a. Include parent/guardian and family engagement strategies in school reform or 

school improvement initiatives 
 
b. Involve parents/guardians and family members in school planning processes 

 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: October 2017 



Instruction AR 6112(a) 
 
SCHOOL DAY 
 
 
Kindergarten/Transitional Kindergarten 
 
Kindergarten and transitional kindergarten (TK) classes in district schools may be maintained 
for different lengths of time, either at the same or different school sites.  (Education Code 
37202) 
 
Except as otherwise permitted by law, the average school day established for kindergarten 
and TK students shall be at least three hours, including recesses but excluding noon 
intermissions, but no longer than four hours, excluding recesses.  (Education Code 46111, 
46114, 46115, 46117) 
 
Recess may be counted as instructional minutes for purposes of determining the maximum 
school day if it occurs under teacher supervision. 
 
In any multitrack year-round school operating pursuant to Education Code 37670, the 
kindergarten school day may be up to 265 minutes, excluding recesses.  (Education Code 
46111) 
 
(cf. 6117 - Year-Round Schedules) 
 
In any district school operating an early primary program pursuant to Education Code 8970-
8974, the kindergarten school day may exceed four hours, excluding recess, if both of the 
following conditions are met:  (Education Code 8973) 
 
1. The Governing Board has declared that the extended-day kindergarten program does 

not exceed the length of the primary school day. 
 
2. The extended-day kindergarten program includes ample opportunity for both active 

and quiet activities within an integrated, experiential, and developmentally 
appropriate educational program. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the California Department of 
Education as to whether the district's kindergarten and TK programs are offered full day, part 
day, or both.  (Education Code 48003) 
 
Grades 1-8 
 
Except as otherwise provided by law, the school day for elementary and middle school 
students shall be: 
 
1. At least 230 minutes for students in grades 1-3, unless the Board has prescribed a 

shorter school day because of lack of school facilities requiring double sessions, in 
which case the minimum school day shall be 200 minutes  (Education Code 46112) 

 



 AR 6112(b) 
 
 
SCHOOL DAY  (continued) 
 
 
2. At least 240 minutes for students in grades 4-8  (Education Code 46113, 46142) 
 
In determining the number of minutes for purposes of compliance with the minimum school 
day for students in grades 1-8, both noon intermissions and recesses shall be excluded.  
(Education Code 46115) 
 
Grades 9-12 
 
The school day for students in grades 9-12 shall be at least 240 minutes.  (Education Code 
46141, 46142) 
 
However, the school day may be less than 240 minutes when authorized by law.  Programs 
that have a minimum school day of 180 minutes include, but are not necessarily limited to: 
 
1. Continuation high school or classes  (Education Code 46141, 46170) 
 
(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 
 
2. Opportunity school or classes  (Education Code 46141, 46180) 
 
3. Regional occupational center  (Education Code 46141, 52325) 
 
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 
 
4. Work experience education program approved pursuant to Education Code 51760-

51769.5  (Education Code 46141, 46144) 
 

A student in grade 12 who is enrolled in work experience education and is in his/her 
last semester or quarter before graduation may be permitted to attend school for less 
than 180 minutes per school day if he/she would complete all requirements for 
graduation, except physical education courses, in less than 180 minutes each day.  
(Education Code 46147) 

 
(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 
 
5. Concurrent enrollment in a community college pursuant to Education Code 48800-

48802 or, for students in grades 11-12, part-time enrollment in classes of the 
California State University or University of California, provided academic credit will 
be awarded upon satisfactory completion of enrolled courses  (Education Code 
46146) 

 
(cf. 6172.1 - Concurrent Enrollment in College Classes) 
 
 



 AR 6112(c) 
 
 
SCHOOL DAY  (continued) 
 
 
6. An early college high school or middle college high school, provided the students are 

enrolled in community college or college classes in accordance with item #5 above 
(Education Code 46141, 46146.5) 

 
7. Special day or Saturday vocational training program conducted under a federally 

approved plan for career technical education  (Education Code 46141, 46144) 
 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
 
8. Adult education classes  (Education Code 46190) 
 
(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 
 
For an evening high school operated pursuant to Education Code 51720-51724, the number 
of days, specific days of the week, and number of hours during which the program shall be in 
session may be determined by the Board.  (Education Code 46141, 51721) 
 
Students in grade 12 shall be enrolled in at least five courses each semester or the equivalent 
number of courses each quarter. This requirement shall not apply to students enrolled in 
regional occupational centers or programs, courses at accredited postsecondary institutions, 
independent study, special education programs in which the student's individualized education 
program establishes a different number of courses, continuation education classes, work 
experience education programs, or any other course of study authorized by the Board that is 
equivalent to the approved high school course of study.  (Education Code 46145) 
 
(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
 
Alternative Block Schedule for Secondary Schools 
 
In order to establish a block or other alternative schedule or to accommodate career technical 
education and regional occupational center/program courses, the district may authorize 
students to attend fewer than the total number of days in which school is in session provided 
that students attend classes for at least 1,200 minutes during any five school day period or 
2,400 minutes during any 10 school day period.  (Education Code 46160) 
 
An early college high school or middle college high school may be scheduled so that students 
attend classes for at least 900 minutes during any five-school day period or 1,800 minutes 
during any 10-school day period.  (Education Code 46160) 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: October 2017 



Instruction BP 6153(a) 
 
SCHOOL-SPONSORED TRIPS 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that field trips supplement and enrich the classroom 
learning experience, lead to increased student achievement, and foster student engagement. 
The Board encourages field trips to reinforce and increase learning opportunities and to 
enhance district programs. 
 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
Field trips shall be conducted in connection with the district's course of study or school-
related social, educational, cultural, athletic, school band, or other extracurricular or 
cocurricular activities.  A field trip to a foreign country may be permitted to familiarize 
students with the language, history, geography, natural science, and other studies relative to 
the district's course of study.  (Education Code 35330) 
 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 
 
Requests for field trips involving out-of-state, out-of-country, or overnight travel shall be 
submitted to the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee shall review the 
request and make a recommendation to the Board as to whether the request should be 
approved by the Board. All other field trips shall be approved in advance by the principal. 
 
(cf. 3312.2 - Educational Travel Program Contracts) 
 
The principal shall establish a process for approving a staff member's request to conduct a 
field trip.  When planning trips, staff shall consider student safety, objectives of instruction, 
the most effective use of instructional time, the distance from school, district and student 
expense, and transportation and supervision requirements.  Principals may exclude from the 
trip any student whose presence on the trip would pose a safety or disciplinary risk. 
 
(cf. 3530 - Risk Management/Insurance) 
(cf. 3541.1 - Transportation for School-Related Trips) 
(cf. 5142 - Safety) 
(cf. 5143 - Insurance) 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
 
No field trip shall be authorized if any student would be excluded from participation because 
of a lack of sufficient funds.  The Superintendent or designee shall coordinate with 
community groups to supply funds for students in need.  (Education Code 35330) 
 
(cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations) 
(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students) 
(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Schools) 
 
The Board may approve the use of district funds for student expenses for in-state, out-of-
state, or out-of-country field trips or excursions when permitted by law. In addition, expenses  
 



 BP 6153(b) 
 
 
SCHOOL-SPONSORED TRIPS  (continued) 
 
 
of instructors, chaperones, and other personnel participating in such trips, as well as 
incidental expenses for the use of district equipment during the trip, may be paid from district 
funds.  (Education Code 35330) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
8760  Authorization of outdoor science and conservation programs 
32040-32044  First aid equipment: field trips 
35330  Excursions and field trips 
35331  Provision for medical or hospital service for pupils (on field trips) 
35332  Transportation by chartered airline 
35350  Transportation of students 
44808  Liability when pupils not on school property 
48908  Duties of pupils; authority of teachers 
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE 
17550-17550.9  Sellers of travel 
17552-17556.5  Educational travel organizations 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
American Red Cross:  http://www.redcross.org 
California Association of Directors of Activities:  http://www.cada1.org 
U.S. Department of Homeland Security:  http://www.dhs.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: October 2017 



Instruction BP 6170.1(a) 
 
TRANSITIONAL KINDERGARTEN 
 
 
The Governing Board desires to offer a high-quality transitional kindergarten (TK) program 
for eligible children who do not yet meet the minimum age criterion for kindergarten. The 
TK program shall assist students in developing the academic, social, and emotional skills 
they need to succeed in kindergarten and beyond. 
 
The district's TK program shall be the first year of a two-year kindergarten program.  
(Education Code 48000) 
 
The Board encourages ongoing collaboration among district preschool staff, other preschool 
providers, elementary teachers, administrators, and parents/guardians in the development, 
implementation, and evaluation of the district's TK program. 
 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
Eligibility 
 
The district's TK program shall admit children whose fifth birthday is from September 2 
through December 2.  (Education Code 48000) 
 
Parents/guardians of eligible children shall be notified of the availability of the TK program 
and the age, residency, immunization, and any other enrollment requirements.  Enrollment in 
the TK program shall be voluntary. 
 
(cf. 5111 - Admission) 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 
(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 
(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 
(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 
(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 
 
Upon request of a child's parents/guardians, the district may, on a case-by-case basis after the 
Superintendent or designee determines that it is in the child's best interest, admit into the 
district's TK program a child whose fifth birthday is on or before September 1 and who is 
therefore eligible for kindergarten. 
 
At any time during the school year, the district may admit into the TK program a child whose 
fifth birthday is after December 2 of that same school year, provided that the Superintendent 
or designee recommends that enrollment in a TK program is in the child's best interest and 
the child's parents/guardians approve. Prior to such enrollment, the child's parents/guardians 
shall be provided information regarding the advantages and disadvantages and any other 
explanatory information about the effect of early admittance.  (Education Code 48000) 
 
 
 
 



 BP 6170.1(b) 
 
 
TRANSITIONAL KINDERGARTEN  (continued) 
 
 
Curriculum and Instruction 
 
The district's TK program shall be based on a modified kindergarten curriculum that is age 
and developmentally appropriate.  (Education Code 48000) 
 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 
 
The program shall be aligned with the preschool learning foundations and preschool 
curriculum frameworks developed by the California Department of Education. It shall be 
designed to facilitate students' development in essential skills related to language and 
literacy, mathematics, physical development, health, visual and performing arts, science, 
history-social science, English language development, and social-emotional development. 
 
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
 
The Board shall establish the length(s) of the school day in the district's TK program. TK 
programs may be maintained for different lengths of time either at the same or different 
school sites, as long as the school day is at least three hours but no more than four hours. The 
Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the California Department of Education 
as to whether the district's TK programs are offered full day, part day, or both.  (Education 
Code 37202, 46111, 46117, 48003) 
 
(cf. 6111 - School Calendar) 
(cf. 6112 - School Day) 
 
TK students may be placed in the same classrooms as kindergarten students when necessary, 
provided that the instructional program is differentiated to meet student needs. 
 
Staffing 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers assigned to teach in TK classes 
possess a teaching credential or permit from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
(CTC) that authorizes such instruction. 
 
(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 
 
A credentialed teacher who is first assigned to a TK class after July 1, 2015, shall, by August 
1, 2020, have at least 24 units in early childhood education and/or child development, 
comparable experience in a preschool setting, and/or a child development teacher permit 
issued by the CTC.  (Education Code 48000) 
 
 



 BP 6170.1(c) 
 
 
TRANSITIONAL KINDERGARTEN  (continued) 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee may provide professional development as needed to ensure 
that TK teachers are knowledgeable about the standards and effective instructional methods 
for teaching young children. 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
 
Continuation to Kindergarten 
 
Students who complete the TK program shall be eligible to continue in kindergarten the 
following school year. Parents/guardians of such students shall not be required to submit a 
signed Kindergarten Continuance Form for kindergarten attendance. 
 
However, whenever children who would otherwise be age-eligible for kindergarten are 
enrolled in TK, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain a Kindergarten Continuance 
Form signed by the parent/guardian near the end of the TK year consenting to the child's 
enrollment in kindergarten the following year. 
 
A student shall not attend more than two years in a combination of TK and kindergarten.  
(Education Code 46300) 
 
(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 
 
Assessment 
 
The Superintendent or designee may develop or identify appropriate formal and/or informal 
assessments of TK students' development and progress. He/she shall monitor and regularly 
report to the Board regarding program implementation and the progress of students in 
meeting related academic standards. 
 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 6170.1(d) 
 
 
TRANSITIONAL KINDERGARTEN  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
8973  Extended-day kindergarten 
37202  School calendar; equivalency of instructional minutes 
44258.9  Assignment monitoring by county superintendent of schools 
46111  Kindergarten, hours of attendance 
46114-46119  Minimum school day, kindergarten 
46300  Computation of ADA, inclusion of kindergarten and transitional kindergarten 
48000  Age of admission, kindergarten and transitional kindergarten 
48002  Evidence of minimum age required to enter kindergarten or first grade 
48003 Kindergarten annual report 
48200  Compulsory education, starting at age six 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
What Boards of Education Can Do About Kindergarten Readiness, Governance Brief, May 2016 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Transitional Kindergarten FAQs 
Desired Results Developmental Profile, 2015 
Transitional Kindergarten Implementation Guide: A Resource for California Public School District 
Administrators and Teachers, 2013 
California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 1, 2010 
California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 1, 2008 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Kindergarten Association: http://www.ckanet.org 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 
Transitional Kindergarten California: http://www.tkcalifornia.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: October 2017 



Instruction AR 6173.1(a) 
 

EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH 
 
 

Definitions 
 

Foster youth means a child who has been removed from his/her home pursuant to Welfare 
and Institutions Code 309, is the subject of a petition filed under Welfare and Institutions 
Code 300 or 602, or has been removed from his/her home and is the subject of a petition filed 
under Welfare and Institutions Code 300 or 602 or is a nonminor who is under the transition 
jurisdiction of a juvenile court, as described in Welfare and Institutions Code 450, and 
satisfies the criteria specified in Education Code 42238.01.  (Education Code 42238.01, 
48853.5) 
 
Person holding the right to make educational decisions means a responsible adult appointed 
by a court pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 361 or 726. 
 
School of origin means the school that the foster youth attended when permanently housed or 
the school in which he/she was last enrolled. If the school the foster youth attended when 
permanently housed is different from the school in which he/she was last enrolled, or if there 
is another school that the foster youth attended within the preceding 15 months and with 
which the youth is connected, the district liaison for foster youth shall determine which 
school is the school of origin. This determination shall be made in consultation with and with 
the agreement of the foster youth and the person holding the right to make educational 
decisions for the youth, and shall be based on the best interests of the foster youth.  
(Education Code 48853.5) 
 

Best interest means that, in making educational and school placement decisions for a foster 
youth, consideration is given to, among other factors, the proximity to the school at the time 
of placement, appropriateness of the educational setting, educational stability, the 
opportunity to be educated in the least restrictive educational setting necessary to achieve 
academic progress, and the foster youth's access to academic resources, services, and 
extracurricular and enrichment activities that are available to all district students.  (Education 
Code 48850, 48853; 20 USC 6311) 
 

District Liaison 
 

The Superintendent designates the following position as the district's liaison for foster youth:  
(Education Code 48853.5) 
 

Superintendent 
________________________________________________ 
1000 Yulupa Avenue 
________________________________________________ 
Santa Rosa  CA  95405 
________________________________________________ 
(707) 542-7375 
________________________________________________ 
First initial last name @ rvusd.org 
 



 AR 6173.1(b) 
 
 
EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
 

The liaison for foster youth shall: 
 

1. Ensure and facilitate the proper educational placement, enrollment in school, and 
checkout from school of students in foster care  (Education Code 48853.5) 

 
2. Ensure proper transfer of credits, records, and grades when students in foster care 

transfer from one school to another or from one district to another  (Education Code 
48645.5, 48853.5) 

 
 When a student in foster care is enrolling in a district school, the liaison shall contact 

the school last attended by the student to obtain, within two business days, all 
academic and other records.  When a foster youth is transferring to a new school, the 
liaison shall provide the student's records to the new school within two business days 
of receiving the new school's request.  (Education Code 48853.5) 

 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 6146.3 - Reciprocity of Academic Credit) 
 
3. When required by law, notify the foster youth's attorney and the representative of the 

appropriate county child welfare agency when the foster youth is undergoing any 
expulsion or other disciplinary proceeding, including a manifestation determination 
prior to a change in the foster youth's placement when he/she is a student with a 
disability.  (Education Code 48853.5, 48911, 48915.5, 48918.1) 

 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 
 
4. As needed, make appropriate referrals to ensure that students in foster care receive 

necessary special education services and services under Section 504 of the federal 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

 
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 
 
5. As needed, ensure that students in foster care receive appropriate school-based 

services, such as counseling and health services, supplemental instruction, and after-
school services 

 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 
 



 AR 6173.1(c) 
 
 
EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs) 
(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 
 
6. Develop protocols and procedures for creating awareness for district staff, including 

principals, school registrars, and attendance clerks, of the requirements for the proper 
enrollment, placement, and transfer of foster youth 

 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
7. Collaborate with the county office of education, county placing agency, county child 

welfare agency, county probation department, juvenile court, and other appropriate 
agencies to help coordinate services for the district's foster youth 

 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 
 
8. Monitor the educational progress of foster youth and provide reports to the 

Superintendent or designee and the Governing Board based on indicators identified in 
the district's local control and accountability plan 

 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall regularly monitor the caseload of the liaison, as well as 
his/her additional duties outside of the foster youth program, to determine whether adequate 
time and resources are available to meet the needs of foster youth in the district. 
 
Enrollment 
 
A student placed in a licensed children's institution or foster family home within the district 
shall attend programs operated by the district unless one of the following circumstances 
applies:  (Education Code 48853, 48853.5) 
 
1. The student has an individualized education program requiring placement in a 

nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency or in another local educational agency. 
 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
(cf. 6159.2 - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency Services for Special Education) 
 
2. The parent/guardian or other person holding the right to make educational decisions 

for the student determines that it is in the best interest of the student to be placed in 
another education program and submits a written statement to the district indicating 
that determination and that he/she is aware of the following: 



 AR 6173.1(d) 
 
 
EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued) 
 

 
a. The student has a right to attend a regular public school in the least restrictive 

environment. 
 
b. The alternate education program is a special education program, if applicable. 
 
c. The decision to unilaterally remove the student from the district school and to 

place him/her in an alternate education program may not be financed by the 
district. 

 
d. Any attempt to seek reimbursement for the alternate education program may 

be at the expense of the parent/guardian or other person holding the right to 
make educational decisions for the student. 

 
(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 
(cf. 6159.3 - Appointment of Surrogate Parent for Special Education Students) 
 
3. At the initial placement or any subsequent change in placement, the student exercises 

his/her right to continue in his/her school of origin, as defined above. 
 
a. The student may continue in the school of origin for the duration of the court's 

jurisdiction. 
 
b. If the court's jurisdiction over a grade K-8 student is terminated prior to the 

end of a school year, the student may continue in his/her school of origin for 
the remainder of the school year. 

 
c. If the court's jurisdiction is terminated while the student is in high school, the 

student may continue in his/her school of origin until he/she graduates. 
 

d. If the student is transitioning between school grade levels, he/she shall be 
allowed to continue in the district of origin in the same attendance area to 
provide him/her the benefit of matriculating with his/her peers in accordance 
with the established feeder patterns of school districts. A student who is 
transitioning to a middle school or high school shall be allowed to enroll in the 
school designated for matriculation in another school district. 

 
The district liaison may, in consultation with and with the agreement of the foster youth and 
the person holding the right to make educational decisions for the youth, recommend that the 
youth's right to attend the school of origin be waived and he/she be enrolled in any school 
that students living in the attendance area in which the foster youth resides are eligible to 
attend. All decisions shall be made in accordance with the foster youth's best interests.  
(Education Code 48853.5) 
 



 AR 6173.1(e) 
 
 
EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued) 
 
 
Prior to making any recommendation to move a foster youth from his/her school of origin, 
the liaison shall provide the youth and the person holding the right to make educational 
decisions for the youth with a written explanation of the basis for the recommendation and 
how the recommendation serves the youth's best interests.  (Education Code 48853.5) 
 
The role of the liaison shall be advisory with respect to placement decisions and 
determination of the school of origin.  (Education Code 48853.5) 
 
If the liaison, in consultation with the foster youth and the person holding the right to make 
educational decisions for the foster youth, agrees that the best interests of the youth would be 
served by his/her transfer to a school other than the school of origin, the principal or designee 
of the new school shall immediately enroll the foster youth. The foster youth shall be 
immediately enrolled even if he/she:  (Education Code 48853.5) 
 
1. Has outstanding fees, fines, textbooks, or other items or monies due to the school last 

attended 
 
(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts) 
 
2. Does not have clothing normally required by the school, such as school uniforms 
 
(cf. 5132 - Dress and Grooming) 
 
3. Is unable to produce records normally required for enrollment, such as previous 

academic records, proof of residency, and medical records, including, but not limited 
to, immunization records or other documentation 

 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 
(cf. 5141.26 - Tuberculosis Testing) 
(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 
(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 
 
If the foster youth or a person holding the right to make educational decisions for the foster 
youth disagrees with the liaison's enrollment recommendation, he/she may appeal to the 
Superintendent. The Superintendent shall make a determination within 30 calendar days of 
receipt of the appeal. Within 30 calendar days of receipt of the Superintendent's decision, the 
parent/guardian or foster youth may appeal that decision to the Board. The Board shall 
consider the issue at its next regularly scheduled meeting. The Board's decision shall be final. 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
 
If any dispute arises regarding the request of a foster youth to remain in the school of origin, 
the youth has the right to remain in the school of origin pending resolution of the dispute.  
(Education Code 48853.5) 



 AR 6173.1(f) 
 
 
EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued) 
 
 
Transportation 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with the local child welfare agency to 
determine how transportation will be provided, arranged, and funded in a cost-effective 
manner to enable foster youth to remain in their school of origin, for the duration of their 
time in foster care, when it is in their best interest to do so. Such transportation costs may be 
paid by either the child welfare agency or the district, or shared by both.  (20 USC 6312) 
 
(cf. 3540 - Transportation) 
(cf. 3541 - Transportation Routes and Services) 
 
Effect of Absences on Grades 
 
The grades of a student in foster care shall not be lowered for any absence from school that is 
due to either of the following circumstances:  (Education Code 49069.5) 
 
1. A decision by a court or placement agency to change the student's placement, in 

which case the student's grades shall be calculated as of the date he/she left school 
 
2. A verified court appearance or related court-ordered activity 
 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
 
Transfer of Coursework and Credits 
 
When a foster youth transfers into a district school, the district shall accept and issue full 
credit for any coursework that the foster youth has satisfactorily completed while attending 
another public school, a juvenile court school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency 
and shall not require the foster youth to retake the course.  (Education Code 51225.2) 
 
If the foster youth did not complete the entire course, he/she shall be issued partial credit for 
the coursework completed and shall be required to take the portion of the course that he/she 
did not complete at his/her previous school.  However, the district may require the foster 
youth to retake the portion of the course completed if, in consultation with the holder of 
educational rights for the foster youth, the district finds that the foster youth is reasonably 
able to complete the requirements in time to graduate from high school. Whenever partial 
credit is issued to a foster youth in any particular course, he/she shall be enrolled in the same 
or equivalent course, if applicable, so that he/she may continue and complete the entire 
course.  (Education Code 51225.2) 
 
Partial credits shall be awarded on the basis of 0.5 credits for every seven class periods 
attended per subject. If the school is on a block schedule, each block schedule class period  
 
 



 AR 6173.1(g) 
 
 
EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued) 
 
 
attended shall be equal to two regular class periods per subject.  Partial credits and grades 
earned by a student shall be included on the student's official transcript within two business 
days of the district's notification of the student's transfer, as required under Education Code 
49069.5. 
 
In no event shall the district prevent a foster youth from taking or retaking a course to meet 
the eligibility requirements for admission to the California State University or the University 
of California.  (Education Code 51225.2) 
 
Applicability of Graduation Requirements 
 
To obtain a high school diploma, a foster youth shall complete all courses required by 
Education Code 51225.3 and fulfill any additional graduation requirements prescribed by the 
Board. 
 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
 
However, when a foster youth who has completed his/her second year of high school 
transfers into the district from another school district or transfers between high schools 
within the district, he/she shall be exempted from all district-adopted coursework and other 
district-established graduation requirements, unless the district makes a finding that the 
student is reasonably able to complete the additional requirements in time to graduate from 
high school by the end of his/her fourth year of high school.  Within 30 calendar days of the 
foster youth's transfer, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the foster youth, the person 
holding the right to make educational decisions for him/her, and the foster youth's social 
worker of the availability of the exemption and whether the foster youth qualifies for it.  If 
the Superintendent or designee fails to provide this notification, the student shall be eligible 
for the exemption once notified, even if the notification occurs after the student is no longer a 
foster youth.  (Education Code 51225.1, 60851) 
 
To determine whether a foster youth is in his/her third or fourth year of high school, the 
district shall use either the number of credits the foster youth has earned as of the date of the 
transfer or the length of his/her school enrollment, whichever qualifies him/her for the 
exemption.  (Education Code 51225.1) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify any foster youth who is granted an exemption 
and the person holding the right to make educational decisions for him/her how any 
requirements that are waived will affect the foster youth's ability to gain admission to a 
postsecondary educational institution and shall provide information about transfer 
opportunities available through the California Community Colleges.  (Education Code 
51225.1) 
 
 
 



 AR 6173.1(h) 
 
 
EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued) 
 
 
The district shall not require or request a foster youth to transfer schools in order to qualify 
for an exemption and no request for a transfer solely to qualify for an exemption shall be 
made by a foster youth or any person acting on behalf of a foster youth.  (Education Code 
51225.1) 
 
If a foster youth is exempted from local graduation requirements, the exemption shall 
continue to apply after the termination of the court's jurisdiction over the student while 
he/she is still enrolled in school or if he/she transfers to another school or school district.  
(Education Code 51225.1) 
 
Upon making a finding that a foster youth is reasonably able to complete district graduation 
requirements within his/her fifth year of high school, the Superintendent or designee shall:  
(Education Code 51225.1) 
 
1. Inform the foster youth and the person holding the right to make educational 

decisions for him/her of the foster youth's option to remain in school for a fifth year 
to complete the district's graduation requirements and how that will affect his/her 
ability to gain admission to a postsecondary educational institution 

 
2. Provide information to the foster youth about transfer opportunities available through 

the California Community Colleges 
 
3. Upon agreement with the foster youth or, if he/she is under 18 years of age, the 

person holding the right to make educational decisions for him/her, permit the foster 
youth to stay in school for a fifth year to complete the district's graduation 
requirements 

 
Eligibility for Extracurricular Activities 
 
A foster youth whose residence changes pursuant to a court order or decision of a child 
welfare worker shall be immediately deemed to meet all residency requirements for 
participation in interscholastic sports or other extracurricular activities.  (Education Code 
48850) 
 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 
 
Notification and Complaints 
 
Information regarding the educational rights of foster youth shall be included in the annual 
uniform complaint procedures notification distributed to students, parents/guardians, 
employees, and other interested parties pursuant to 5 CCR 4622.  (Education Code 48853, 
48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2) 



 AR 6173.1(j) 
 
 
EDUCATION FOR FOSTER YOUTH (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
Any complaint alleging that the district has not complied with requirements regarding the 
education of foster youth may be filed in accordance with the district's procedures in AR 
1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. If the district finds merit in a complaint, the district 
shall provide a remedy to the affected student. A complainant not satisfied with the district's 
decision may appeal the decision to the California Department of Education (CDE) and shall 
receive a written decision regarding the appeal within 60 days of CDE's receipt of the appeal. 
If the CDE finds merit in an appeal, the district shall provide a remedy to the affected 
student.  (Education Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2) 
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: October 2017 



Instruction BP 6173.2(a) 
 
EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OF MILITARY FAMILIES 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that children of military families face challenges to their 
academic success caused by the frequent moves or deployments of their parents/guardians in 
fulfillment of military service. The district shall provide such students with academic 
resources, services, and opportunities for extracurricular and enrichment activities that are 
available to all district students. 
 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 
(cf. 6179 - Supplemental Instruction) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may waive district policies or rules when necessary to 
facilitate the enrollment, placement, advancement, eligibility for extracurricular activities, or 
on-time graduation of children of military families, in accordance with the Interstate 
Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children as ratified in Education Code 
49700-49704. 
 
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6146.3 - Reciprocity of Academic Credit) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide information and/or training to administrators, 
other appropriate district staff, and military families regarding the provisions of the Interstate 
Compact and the educational rights of children of military families. 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with parents/guardians, school liaison 
officers from military installations, and/or other agencies within and outside the state to 
facilitate the transition of children of military families into and out of the district. 
 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 
(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall annually report to the Board and the public on the 
educational outcomes of children of military families. Such reports may include, but are not 
limited to, school attendance, student achievement test results, promotion and retention rates 
by grade levels, and graduation rates. 
 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 



 BP 6173.2(b) 
 
 
EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OF MILITARY FAMILIES  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
35160.5  District policy rules and regulations; requirements; matters subject to regulation 
35179  Interscholastic athletics; associations or consortia 
35181  Students' responsibilities 
35351  Assignment of students to particular schools 
46600-46611  Interdistrict attendance agreements 
48050-48054  Nonresidents 
48200-48208  Persons included (compulsory education law) 
48300-48316 Student attendance alternatives, school district of choice program 
49700-49704  Education of children of military families 
51225.3  Requirements for graduation 
51240-51246  Exemptions from requirements 
51250-51251  School-age military dependents 
66204  Certification of high school courses as meeting university admissions criteria 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 10 
101  Definitions 
1209  Transfer to inactive status list instead of separation 
1211  Members on temporary disability retired list: return to active duty; promotion 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1400-1482  Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
6311  State plan 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
794  Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA CHILD WELFARE COUNCIL 
Partial Credit Model Policy and Practice Recommendations 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Final Report to the Legislature on the Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military 
Children, April 2014 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Child Welfare Council:  http://www.chhs.ca.gov/Pages/CAChildWelfareCouncil.aspx 
California Department of Education, Educational Options Office:   http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/pf/mc 
Military Interstate Children's Compact Commission: http://www.mic3.net 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: October 2017 



Instruction AR 6173.2(a) 
 
EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OF MILITARY FAMILIES 
 
 
Definitions 
 
Children of military families are school-aged children in the household of:  (Education Code 
49701) 
 
1. Members who are in full-time duty status in the active uniformed service of the 

United States, including any member of the National Guard and Reserve on active 
duty order pursuant to 10 USC 1209 or 1211 

 
2. Members or veterans of the uniformed services who are severely injured and 

medically discharged or retired, for one year after their medical discharge or 
retirement 

 
3. Members of the uniformed services who have died while on active duty or as a result 

of injuries sustained on active duty, for one year after their death 
 
Enrollment 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate the enrollment of children of military families 
and ensure that they are not placed at a disadvantage due to difficulty in the transfer of their 
records from previous school districts and/or variations in entrance or age requirements.  
(Education Code 49701) 
 
A child of a military family shall be deemed to meet district residency requirements if his/her 
parent/guardian, while on active military duty pursuant to an official military order, is 
transferred or is pending transfer to a military installation within the state. The 
Superintendent or designee shall accept electronic submission of such a student's application 
for enrollment, including enrollment in a specific school or program within the district, and 
for course registration.  (Education Code 48204.3) 
 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 
 
When a child of a military family is transferring into the district, the Superintendent or 
designee may enroll the child based on the child's placement in the previous district, pending 
receipt of the child's records.  Upon enrollment, the Superintendent or designee shall 
immediately request the student's records from the student's previous district. The 
Superintendent or designee shall allow the student 30 days from the date of enrollment to 
obtain all required immunizations.  (Education Code 49701) 
 
(cf. 5111 - Admission) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 5141- Health Care and Emergencies) 
(cf. 5141.31- Immunizations) 
 
A child of an active military duty parent/guardian shall not be prohibited from transferring 
out of the district, if the school district of proposed enrollment approves the application for 
transfer.  (Education Code 46600, 48307) 



 AR 6173.2(b) 
 
 
EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OF MILITARY FAMILIES  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 
 
When a child of a military family is transferring out of the district, the Superintendent or 
designee shall provide the student's parents/guardians with a complete set of the student's 
records or, if the official student record cannot be released, an unofficial or "hand-carried" 
record. Upon request from the new district, the Superintendent or designee shall provide a 
copy of the student's record to the new district within 10 days.  (Education Code 49701) 
 
Placement 
 
Whenever a student's parent/guardian is serving on active duty or has been discharged from 
military service within the last year and the student transfers to a new school as the direct 
result of the military transfer or discharge, the Superintendent or designee may, prior to the 
receipt of official transcript(s) or the arrival of the student, review the student's coursework to 
date, including any unofficial transcript(s), to determine the appropriate placement of the 
student in classes. The evaluation shall also include communication with school counselors 
and teachers at the former school by videoconferencing, email, and/or telephone calls.  
(Education Code 51251) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall initially honor the placement of any child of a military 
family in educational courses and programs based on the child's enrollment and/or 
assessment in his/her previous school. The Superintendent or designee may, to the extent 
permitted by Board policy, waive course or program prerequisites, preconditions, and/or 
application deadlines when making decisions regarding placement of children of military 
families and their eligibility for extracurricular academic, athletic, and social activities.  
(Education Code 49701) 
 
(cf. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement) 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 
(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
 
When a child of a military family transferring into the district has been identified as an 
individual with a disability pursuant to 20 USC 1400-1482, the Superintendent or designee 
shall provide comparable services to the student based on his/her current individualized 
education program.  In addition, when the child of a military family transferring into the 
district is eligible for services under Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act, the 
Superintendent or designee shall make reasonable accommodations and modifications to 
address the needs of the student subject to the student's existing Section 504 plan. The district 
may authorize subsequent evaluations of the student to ensure appropriate placement.  
(Education Code 49701) 
 
 
 



 AR 6173.2(c) 
 
 
EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OF MILITARY FAMILIES  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 
 
Transfer of Coursework and Credits 
 
When a child of a military family transfers into a district school, the district shall accept and 
issue full credit for any coursework that the student has satisfactorily completed while 
attending another public school, a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency, or a juvenile 
court school and shall not require the student to retake the course.  (Education Code 51225.2) 
 
(cf. 6146.3 - Reciprocity of Academic Credit) 
(cf. 6159.2 - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School or Agency Services for Special Education) 
 
If the student did not complete the entire course, he/she shall be issued partial credit for the 
coursework completed and shall be required to take only the portion of the course that he/she 
did not complete at his/her previous school. However, the district may require the student to 
retake the portion of the course completed if, in consultation with the student's 
parent/guardian, the district finds that the student is reasonably able to complete the 
requirements in time to graduate from high school. Whenever partial credit is issued, the 
student shall be enrolled in the same or equivalent course, if applicable, so that he/she may 
continue and complete the entire course.  (Education Code 51225.2) 
 
Partial credits shall be awarded on the basis of 0.5 credits for every seven class periods 
attended per subject. If the school is on a block schedule, each block schedule class period 
attended shall be equal to two regular class periods per subject. 
 
In no event shall the district prevent a child of a military family from taking or retaking a 
course to meet the eligibility requirements for admission to the California State University or 
the University of California.  (Education Code 51225.2) 
 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
 
Absences 
 
When a student's parent/guardian is an active duty member and is called to duty for, is on 
leave from, or is immediately returned from deployment to a combat zone or to combat 
support posting, the Superintendent or designee may grant additional excused absences to the 
student to visit with his/her parent/guardian.  (Education Code 49701) 
 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 
 
 
 



 AR 6173.2(d) 
 
 
EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OF MILITARY FAMILIES  (continued) 
 
 
Graduation Requirements 
 
To obtain a high school diploma, a child of a military family shall complete all courses 
required by Education Code 51225.3 and fulfill any additional graduation requirements 
prescribed by the Governing Board. 
 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
 
However, when a child of a military family who has completed his/her second year of high 
school transfers into the district from another school district or transfers between high 
schools within the district, he/she shall be exempted from all district-adopted coursework and 
other district-established graduation requirements, unless the district makes a finding that the 
student is reasonably able to complete the additional requirements in time to graduate from 
high school by the end of his/her fourth year of high school. Within 30 calendar days of the 
student's transfer, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the student and his/her 
parent/guardian of the availability of the exemption and whether the student qualifies for it. If 
the Superintendent or designee fails to provide this notification, the student shall be eligible 
for the exemption once notified, even if the notification occurs after the student no longer 
meets the definition of a child of a military family pursuant to Education Code 49701.  
(Education Code 51225.1) 
 
To determine whether a child of a military family is in his/her third or fourth year of high 
school, the district shall use either the number of credits he/she has earned as of the date of 
the transfer or the length of his/her school enrollment, whichever qualifies him/her for the 
exemption.  (Education Code 51225.1) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify any child of a military family who is granted an 
exemption and his/her parent/guardian how any requirements that are waived will affect the 
student's ability to gain admission to a postsecondary educational institution and shall 
provide information about transfer opportunities available through the California Community 
Colleges.  (Education Code 51225.1) 
 
The district shall not require or request a child of a military family to transfer schools in 
order to qualify for an exemption, and no child of a military family or his/her parent/guardian 
shall be permitted to request a transfer solely to qualify for an exemption.  (Education Code 
51225.1) 
 
If a child of a military family is exempted from local graduation requirements, the exemption 
shall continue to apply after the student no longer meets the definition of a child of a military 
family or if he/she transfers to another school or school district.  (Education Code 51225.1) 
 
 
 



 AR 6173.2(e) 
 
 
EDUCATION OF CHILDREN OF MILITARY FAMILIES  (continued) 
 
 
If the Superintendent or designee determines that a child of a military family is reasonably 
able to complete district graduation requirements within his/her fifth year of high school, 
he/she shall:  (Education Code 51225.1) 
 
1.  Inform the student and, if under 18 years of age, his/her parent/guardian of the option 

available to the student to remain in school for a fifth year to complete the district's 
graduation requirements and how that will affect his/her ability to gain admission to a 
postsecondary educational institution 

 
2.  Provide information to the student about transfer opportunities available through the 

California Community Colleges 
 
3.  Upon agreement with the student, or with the parent/guardian if the student is under 

18 years of age, permit the student to stay in school for a fifth year to complete the 
district's graduation requirements 

 
Notification and Complaints 
 
Information regarding the educational rights of children of military families, as specified in 
Education Code 51225.1 and 51225.2, shall be included in the annual uniform complaint 
procedures notification distributed to students, parents/guardians, employees, and other 
interested parties pursuant to 5 CCR 4622.  (Education Code 51225.1, 51225.2) 
 
Any complaint alleging that the district has not complied with requirements regarding the 
education of children of military families, as specified in Education Code 51225.1 or 
51225.2, may be filed in accordance with the district's procedures in AR 1312.3 - Uniform 
Complaint Procedures. 
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: October 2017 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: November 14, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 13.1 

Subject:  Annual Accounting of Developer Fees, Resolution #11-17-08 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent  

Background: California Government Code Section 66006 requires each district collecting 
development fees to make an annual accounting of those fees available to the 
public by December 27, 2017.  This annual accounting must then be reviewed by 
the governing board at a regularly scheduled meeting prior to this date and at least 
15 days after the accounting was made available to the public.  Section 66001 
requires each district collecting development fees to make additional findings 
every five years disclosing the amount of fees that were unexpended at the end of 
the fiscal year.  The enclosed documents satisfy both of these requirements. 

Highlights: Developer fee revenues are expended on the lease that was originally taken out to 
pay for part of the Austin Creek Elementary School.  Last year there were enough 
fees collected to make the annual payment of the loan with some funds remaining. 

Challenges: Most years the fees collected are not enough to cover the loan payment which is 
then paid for by the general fund. 

Analysis: This accounting and disclosure meet the requirements as outlined in Government 
Code Section 66006. 

Next Steps: Consider approving the attached accounting and resolution. 

 
Attachments: Resolution Annual Accounting for the Capital Facilities Fund 
 RVUSD Developer Fee Collection 2012-13 through 2016-17 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: Approval of this accounting will allow the continued collection of developer fees 

are estimated to be approximately $230,000 per year. 
 
Recommendation: Approve 
 



 
 

 
 

Resolution #11-17-08 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE 
RINCON VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

REGARDING ACCOUNTING OF DEVELOPMENT FEES 
FOR 2016-2017 FISCAL YEAR 

IN THE FOLLOWING FUND OR ACCOUNT: 
FUND 25:  CAPITAL FACILITES FUND 

(Government Code sections 66001(d) & 66006(b)) 
 
1. Authority and Reasons for Adopting this Resolution. 
 

A. This District has levied school facilities fees pursuant to various resolutions, the most 
recent of which is dated April 12, 2016, and is referred to herein as the “School Facilities 
Fee Resolution” and is hereby incorporated by reference into this Resolution.  These 
resolutions were adopted under the authority of Education Code section 17620.  These fees 
have been deposited in the following fund or account: 

 
 Fund 25:  Capital Facilities Fund (the “Fund”); 
 

B. Government Code sections 66001(d) and 66006(b) require this District to make an annual 
accounting of the Fund and to make additional findings every five years if there are any 
funds remaining in the Fund at the end of the prior fiscal year; 

 
C. Government Code sections 66001(d) and 66006(b) further require that the annual 

accounting of the Fund and those findings be made available to the public no later than 
December 27, 2017, that this information be reviewed by this Board at its next regularly 
scheduled board meeting held no earlier than 15 days after the findings become available 
to the public, and that notice of the time and place of this meeting (as well as the address 
at which this information may be reviewed) be mailed at least 15 days prior to this meeting 
to anyone who has filed a written request for it.    

 
D. The Superintendent has informed this Board that a draft copy of this Resolution (along 

with Exhibits 1 and 2 which are hereby incorporated by reference into this Resolution) was 
made available to the public on October 30, 2017.  The Superintendent has further informed 
this Board that notice of the time and place of this meeting (as well as the address at which 
this information may be reviewed) was mailed at least 15 days prior to this meeting to 
anyone who had filed a written request for it. 

 
E. The Superintendent has also informed this Board that there is no new information which 

would adversely affect the validity of any of the findings made by this Board in its School 
Facilities Fee Resolution. 

 



 

 
 

2. What This Resolution Does. 
 
This Resolution makes various findings and takes various actions regarding the Fund as required by and 
in accordance with Government Code sections 66001(d) and 66006(b). 
 
3. Findings Regarding the Fund. 
 
Based on all findings and evidence contained in, referred to, or incorporated into this Resolution, as well 
as the evidence presented to this Board at this meeting, the Board finds each of the following with respect 
to the Fund for the 2016-2017 Fiscal Year: 
 

A. In reference to Government Code section 66006(b)(2), the information identified in section 
1 above is correct; 

 
B. In further reference to Government Code section 66006(b)(2), this Board has reviewed the 

annual accounting for the Fund as contained in Exhibit 1 and determined that it meets the 
requirements set forth in Government Code section 66006(b)(1); 

 
C. In reference to Government Code section 66001(d)(1)(A), and with respect only to that 

portion of the Fund remaining unexpended at the end of the 2016-2017 Fiscal Year, the 
purpose of the fees is to finance the construction or reconstruction of school facilities 
necessary to reduce overcrowding caused by the development on which the fees were 
levied, which facilities are more specifically identified in Exhibit 2; 

 
D. In reference to Government Code section 66001(d)(1)(B), and with respect only to that 

portion of the Fund remaining unexpended at the end of the 2016-2017 Fiscal Year, the 
findings and evidence referenced above demonstrate that there is a reasonable relationship 
between the fees and the purpose for which it is charged as more specifically identified in 
Exhibit 2; 

 
E. In reference to Government Code section 66001(d)(1)(C), and with respect only to that 

portion of the Fund remaining unexpended at the end of the 2016-2017 Fiscal Year, all of 
the sources and amounts of funding anticipated to complete financing in any incomplete 
improvements identified as the use to which the fees are to be put is identified in Exhibit 
2; 

 
F. In reference to Government Code section 66001(d)(1)(D), and with respect only to that 

portion of the Fund remaining unexpended at the end of the 2016-2017 Fiscal Year, the 
approximate dates on which the funding referred to in paragraph E above is expected to be 
deposited into the appropriate account or fund is designated in Exhibit 2; and 

 
G. In reference to the last sentence of Government Code section 66006(d), because all of the 

findings required by that subdivision have been made in the fees that were levied in 
paragraphs C-F above, the District is not required to refund any moneys in the Fund as 
provided in Government Code section 66001(e). 

 



 

 
 

4. Superintendent Authorized to Take Necessary and Appropriate Action. 
 
The Board further directs and authorizes the Superintendent to take on its behalf such further action as 
may be necessary and appropriate to effectuate this Resolution. 
 
5. Certificate of Resolution. 
 
I, ____________________________, __________________________ of the Governing Board of the 
_________________________________ District of ____________________ County, State of California, 
certify that this Resolution proposed by __________________________, seconded by 
__________________________________, was duly passed and adopted by the Board, at an official and 
public meeting this ______ day of ___________________, 2018, by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES: ____ 
 
NOES: ____ 
 
ABSENT: ____ 
 
 

 _______________________________ of the Board 

of the ______________________________________ 

District of ___________________ County, California 

 
 
  



 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT 1 

 
 

TO RESOLUTION REGARDING 
ACCOUNTING OF DEVELOPMENT FEES 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 
FOR THE FOLLOWING FUND OR ACCOUNT: 

FUND 25:  CAPITAL FACILITEIS FUND (the “Fund”) 
 
 
Per Government Code section 66006(b)(1)(A)-H) as indicated: 
 

A. A brief description of the type of fee in the Fund: 
 

The fee is a statutory school facilities fees. 
 

B. The amount of the fee. 
 

$3.48 per square foot of assessable space of residential construction; and $0.56 per square 
foot of covered and enclosed space of commercial/industrial construction; but subject to 
the district’s determination that a particular project is exempt from all or part of these fees.  
Pursuant to Education Code section 17623 and an agreement with the district(s) sharing 
territory with the district, generally only 70% of the maximum fee specified above is 
distributed to this district. 

 
 

C. The beginning and ending balance of the Fund. 
 

See Attachment 1. 
 

D. The amount of the fees collected and the interest earned. 
 

See Attachment 1. 
 

E. An identification of each public improvement on which fees were expended and the amount 
of the expenditures on each improvement, including the total percentage of the cost of the 
public improvement that was funded with fees. 

 
Revenue from this fund was made to make payment on a loan whose proceeds were used 
to construction Austin Creek Elementary School.  The loan payment amount was 
$231,264.78. 
 
See Attachment 1. 

 
 



 

 
 

F. An identification of an approximate date by which the construction of the public 
improvement will commence if the local agency determines that sufficient funds have been 
collected to complete financing on an incomplete public improvement, as identified in 
paragraph (2) subdivision (a) of section 66001, and the public improvement remains 
incomplete: 

 
 N/A.  The District has not made this determination 

 
G. A description of each interfund transfer or loan made from the account or fund, including 

the public improvement on which the transferred or loaned fees will be expended, and, in 
the case of an interfund loan, the date on which the loan will be repaid and the rate of 
interest that the account or fund will receive on the loan: 

 
There were no interfund transfers or loans from this fund. 

 
H. The amount of refunds made pursuant to subdivision (e) of section 66001 and any 

allocations pursuant to subdivision (f) of section 66001: 
 

N/A.  No refunds or allocations were made pursuant to subdivision (e) or (f) of section 6 
.   



 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT 2 

 
 

TO RESOLUTION REGARDING 
ACCOUNTING OF DEVELOPMENT FEES 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 
FOR THE FOLLOWING FUND OR ACCOUNT: 

FUND 25:  CAPITAL FACILITED FUND (the “Fund”) 
 
Per Government Code section 66001(d)(1)(A-D) as indicated: 
 

A. With respect to only that portion of the Fund remaining unexpended at the end of the 2016-
2017 Fiscal Year, the purpose of the fees is to finance the construction or reconstruction of 
school facilities necessary to reduce overcrowding caused by the development on which the 
fees were levied, which facilities are more specifically identified as follows: 

 
The fees will be used to reduce the long term debt of $2,581,548 that remains from the construction 
of Austin Creek Elementary School. 

 
 

B. With respect to that portion of the Fund remaining unexpended at the end of the 2016-2017 
Fiscal Year, there is a reasonable relationship between the fee and the purpose for which it is 
charged, including:  
 

a. There is an outstanding balance on the loan whose processed were used to construct 
Austin Creek Elementary School.   Since developer fees are not consistent flow of 
revenue to the District, the balance will be used to pay the loan obligation in years that 
the fee is not sufficient to make full payment on the loan or will be used on allowable 
expenditures such as constructing and reconstructing school facilities.   
 

b. There is an ongoing need for the Fund to complete construction or reconstruction to 
reduce overcrowding caused by the development. 
 

c. The status of improvements identified when the fee was established are as follows:  The 
District continues to make payment on the loan whose proceeds were used to construct 
Austin Creek Elementary School which at the time of origination was used to house 
students due to new home construction.    

 
d. The following has been done since the fee was imposed:  The principal loan amount 

from the loan used to purchase Austin Creek School was paid down to $2,581,548. 
 

e. Future plans include: The District is currently involved with new construction and 
reconstruction of facilities. 

 
 



 

 
 

C. With respect to only that portion of the Fund remaining unexpended at the end of the 2016-
2017 Fiscal Year, the sources and amounts of funding anticipated to complete financing in any 
incomplete improvements identified in paragraph A above are as follows: 
 
The District will continue to make payment on the loan whose proceeds were used to construct 
Austin Creek Elementary School.    
 

D. With respect to only that portion of the Fund remaining unexpended at the end of the 2016-
2017 Fiscal Year, the following are the approximate dates on which the funding referred to in 
paragraph C above is expected to be deposited into the appropriate account or fund: 
 
The balance remaining from the collection of developer fees is deposited in Fund 25. 
 
 



2012-13
Income
Beginning Balance July 1, 2012 $3,597.63
Interest Earned $414
Transfers in
Developer Fee Collected $126,640
Total Income and Beginning Balance $130,652

Expenses
Administrative Cost of Fee Collection $0
Debt Service - Austin Creek Construction $110,000
Total Expenses $110,000

Ending Balance June 30, 2013 $20,652

2013-14
Income
Beginning Balance July 1, 2013 $20,652
Interest Earned $292
Transfers in
Developer Fee Collected $100,022
Total Income and Beginning Balance $120,965

Expenses
Administrative Cost of Fee Collection $299
Debt Service - Austin Creek Construction $120,556
Total Expenses $120,855

Ending Balance June 330, 2014 $110

2014-15
Income
Beginning Balance July 1, 2014 $110
Interest Earned $888
Transfers in
Developer Fee Collected $124,089
Total Income and Beginning Balance $125,087

Expenses
Administrative Cost of Fee Collection
Debt Service - Austin Creek Construction $124,812
Total Expenses $124,812

Ending Balance June 30, 2015 $275

ATTACHMENT 1

RINCON VALLEY UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEVELOPER FEE COLLECTION 2012-13 THROUGH 2016-17



2015-16
Income
Beginning Balance July 1, 2015 $275
Interest Earned $877
Transfers in
Developer Fee Collected $229,133
Total Income and Beginning Balance $230,285

Expenses
Administrative Cost of Fee Collection
Debt Service - Austin Creek Construction $229,837
Total Expenses $229,837

Ending Balance June 30, 2016 $448

2016-17
Beginning Balance July 1, 2016 $448

Income
Interest Earned $1,111
Transfers in
Developer Fee Collected $339,005
Total Income and Beginning Balance $340,565

Expenses
Administrative Cost of Fee Collection
Debt Service - Austin Creek Construction $231,265
Total Expenses $231,265

Ending Balance June 30, 2017 $109,300



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: November 14, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 13.2 

Subject:  Appointment of Citizens’ Oversight Committee Member 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent  

Background: After the passage of Measure F, a Citizens’ Oversight Committee was formed with 
the purpose of reviewing bond transactions to ensure that the bond expenditures 
have been made within the parameters set forth in the ballot 

Highlights: Due to a committee member moving outside the District, a vacancy was created.   
The District advertised for two weeks in both the Press Democrat and on the 
District web site for interested parties to apply for the position. 

Challenges: We received only one applicant. 

Analysis: Fortunately, the applicant is Joe Ruppe, a well-respected citizen and former parent 
of Rincon Valley Union School District as well as a successful business 
professional.   

Next Steps: Consider approving Mr. Ruppe to serve on the Citizen’s Oversight Committee. 

Attachments: Mr. Ruppe’s completed application. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
 
Recommendation: Approve 
 







Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: November 14, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 13.3 

Subject:  Resolution 11-17-12, Lease-Leaseback Best Value Methodology 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent  

Background: On October 23, 2016 Governor Jerry Brown signed AB 2316, which made 
significant changes to the lease-lease back process.  The summer of 2018 will be 
the first work that the District performs utilizing this new process. 

Highlights: The new process includes a criterion to evaluate proposals which utilizes a scoring 
system.   The scoring system was reviewed and revised with input from Dan 
Hardin, architect. 

Challenges: There will likely be an intense labor shortage for sub-contractors this summer, 
which could lead to higher pricing or quality of work issues, 

Analysis: Lease-leaseback is a delivery method that will likely provide the District with the 
best value. 

Next Steps: Consider attached resolution and scoring system. 

Attachments: Resolution for best value methodology 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
 
Recommendation: Approve 
 



 

1 
DWK DMS 3183738v1 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-17-12 
OF THE  

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
ADOPTING BEST VALUE PROCEDURES AND GUIDELINES  

PURSUANT TO EDUCATION CODE SECTION 17406 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Rincon Valley Union School District (“District”) desires to undertake 
lease-leaseback projects (“LLB Projects”) in accordance with applicable law; 

WHEREAS, under Education Code section 17406, the District must award LLB 
Projects based on a competitive solicitation process to the proposer providing the best value 
to the District, taking into consideration the proposer’s demonstrated competence and 
professional qualifications necessary for the satisfactory performance of the services 
required;  

WHEREAS, before awarding a Facilities Lease and Site Lease for the LLB Project, the 
District’s Board of Trustees must adopt and publish required procedures and guidelines 
(“Best Value Methodology”) for evaluating the qualifications of proposers that ensure the 
best value selections by the District are conducted in a fair and impartial manner; 

WHEREAS, the District’s Best Value Methodology shall be mandatory when awarding 
LLB Projects; 

 WHEREAS, District staff have developed a Best Value Methodology to evaluate the 
qualifications of proposers, which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT A;  

WHEREAS, the Best Value Methodology incorporates the required procedures of 
Education Code section 17406, subdivision (a)(2), including, identification of criteria, 
methodology for evaluating each criterion, and the weight assigned to each criterion; and 

 WHEREAS, the District desires to adopt and publish the Best Value Methodology to 
evaluate the qualifications of proposers for its LLB Projects. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees of the Rincon Valley Union School District 
hereby finds, determines, declares, orders and resolves as follows: 

Section 1. That the above recitals are true and correct.  

Section 2.  That it is in the best interest of the District to authorize lease-
leaseback project procurement for the construction of District projects pursuant to 
Education Code Section 17406. 

Section 3. That the Best Value Methodology is adopted and published pursuant to 
Education Code section 17406.  

Section 4. That the District’s Superintendent, or designee, is authorized to 
implement the Best Value Methodology when evaluating the qualifications of proposers for 



 

2 
DWK DMS 3183738v1 

awarding contracts for LLB Projects and to take any action, which is necessary to carry out, 
give effect to, and comply with the terms and intent of this Resolution.   

APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Rincon Valley Union 
School District on this 14th day of November, 2017, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTENTIONS:  
  
 
             

Carol Lynn Wood 
President of the Board of Trustees of the  
Rincon Valley Union School District  

 
Attested to: 
 
       
Cynthia Evers 
Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the 
Rincon Valley Union School District 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EX. A-1 
DWK DMS 3183738v1 

EXHIBIT A 

BEST VALUE METHODOLOGY FOR DISTRICT’S LEASE-LEASEBACK PROJECTS 
PURSUANT TO EDUCATION CODE SECTION 17406 

1. Procedure for Soliciting Proposals 

a. The District shall prepare a request for sealed proposals (“RFP”) from 
qualified proposers.  The District shall include in the RFP: 

i. an estimate of the price of the Project; 

ii. a clear, precise description of any preconstruction services that 
may be required, and the facilities to be constructed; 

iii. the key elements of the instrument to be awarded; 

iv. a description of the format that proposals must follow, including 
the elements they must contain; 

v. the standards the District will use in evaluating proposals; 

vi. the date upon which proposals are due; and 

vii. the timetable the District will following in reviewing and 
evaluating proposals. 

b. The District shall give notice of the RFP by publishing the notice: 

i. in accordance with the requirements of Public Contract Code 
section 20112, by publishing notice in a newspaper of general 
circulation published in the District, or if there is no such paper, 
then in some newspaper of general circulation circulated in the 
county; and 

ii. in a trade paper of general circulation at least once a week for 
two weeks. 

c. In order to submit a proposal, a proposer shall be prequalified in 
accordance with subdivisions (b) to (m), inclusive, of Public Contract 
Code section 20111.6. 

d. If electrical, mechanical, and plumbing subcontractors are used, they 
shall be subject to the same prequalification requirements for 
prospective bidders described in subdivisions (b) to (m), inclusive, of 
Public Contract Code section 20111.6, including the requirement for 
completion and submission of a standardized prequalification 
questionnaire and financial statement that is verified under oath and is 
not a public record.   



 

EX. A-2 
DWK DMS 3183738v1 

2. Contents of Requests for Proposals 

a. The RFP shall identify all criteria that the District will consider in 
evaluating the proposals and qualifications of the proposers, by 
considering, relevant experience, safety record, price proposal, and 
other factors specified in the RFP.  

b. The price proposal shall include, at the District’s discretion, either a 
lump-sum price for the Project or the proposer’s proposed fee to 
perform the services requested, including the proposer’s proposed fee 
to perform preconstruction services or any other work related to the 
facilities to be constructed, as requested by the District.  

c. The RFP shall specify whether each criterion will be evaluated pass-fail, 
or will be scored as a best value score, and whether proposers must 
achieve any minimum qualification score for award of the contract. 

3. Methodology and Weighting System 

a. The District’s criteria and rating system is as follows: 

CRITERIA ITEM DESCRIPTION MAXIMUM 
POINTS 

Price Points Price and Price Points Awarded 75 points 

Technical 
Expertise 

Technical Expertise and relevant 
experience with like-Projects 

50 points 

Subcontractors Workforce and available skilled 
and qualified subcontractors  

45 points 

Safety Safety record 20 points 

Life Cycle Life-cycle cost analysis 0 points 

Schedule Project Schedule  20 points 

Staffing Management and Staffing 
Approach 

40 points 

CHPS Ability to meet/incorporate CHPS 0 points 

Energy Savings Ability to meet energy savings 
goals  

0 points 

Durability Durability and warranty of 
building and building 
components and materials 

0 points 

 MAXIMUM POINTS: 250  

 
b. Based on these criteria, District staff assign points to each proposer 

and then calculate the total points awarded to the proposer.  The more 
points, the higher the proposer is ranked.  The highest ranked 
proposer reflects the best combination of price and qualifications for 
the Project.   



 

EX. A-3 
DWK DMS 3183738v1 

4. Evaluation and Award 

Proposals shall be evaluated and the Project awarded in the following 
manner: 

a. All proposals received shall be reviewed to determine those that meet 
the format requirements and the standards specified in RFP. 

b. District shall evaluate the qualifications of the proposers based solely 
upon the criteria and evaluation methodology set forth in the RFP, and 
shall assign a best value score to each proposal.  Once the evaluation 
is complete, all responsive proposals shall be ranked from the highest 
best value to the lowest best value to the District. 

c. The District’s Board of Trustees shall award the Project to the 
responsive proposer whose proposal is determined, in writing by the 
Board of Trustees, to be the best value to the District. 

d. If the selected proposer refuses or fails to execute the tendered 
proposed contract, the Board of Trustees may award the contract to 
the proposer with the second highest best value score if it deems it to 
be for the best interest of the District. If the second selected proposer 
refuses or fails to execute the tendered instrument, the Board of 
Trustees may award the instrument to the proposer with the third 
highest best value score if it deems it to be for the best interest of the 
District. 

e. Notwithstanding any other law, upon issuance of a contract award, the 
District shall publicly announce its award, identifying the entity to 
which the award is made, along with a statement regarding the basis 
of the award. The statement regarding the District’s contract award 
and the contract file shall provide sufficient information to satisfy an 
external audit. 

5. Discretion to Reject Proposals 

The District’s Board of Trustees, at its sole discretion, may reject all proposals 
and request new proposals 

 

[END OF DOCUMENT] 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: November 14, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 13.4 

Subject: Resolution #11-17-09, Employees’ Use of Personal Necessity Leave for Fire-
Related Absences 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: In October 2017, Sonoma County and other surrounding communities were faced 
with an unprecedented natural disaster that destroyed thousands of homes and 
commercial structures and disrupted the lives of tens of thousands of other 
individuals.  In our district alone, nineteen employees lost their homes.  Of these, 
eleven employees are teachers, five are classified employees, and three are site 
administrators.  Many others families were further impacted by spouses or 
domestic partners losing full or partial employment. 

Highlights: The purpose of this resolution is to allow RVUSD employees directly impacted by 
the wildfires the ability to utilize their personal sick bank for use of personal 
necessity to attend to the many challenges they face to rebuild homes and lives.  
Qualifying employees are defined by those whose: 

1. residence was destroyed or significantly damaged to require relocation   
2. spouse or partner lost their employment as a direct result of the fires 

District practice limits the use of sick leave for personal necessity to three days per 
year.   

Challenges: The District has entered into a memorandum of understanding with RVUTA to 
extend the use of personal necessity leave to qualifying unit members.  While the 
District may have chosen to enter in a similar memorandum of understanding with 
CSEA, there is no mechanism to provide this same level of consideration to non-
represented employees.  Therefore, we are able to take care of both CSEA and our 
non-represented employees with this resolution. 

Analysis: Qualifying employees will be required to obtain prior approval for taking a 
personal necessity day and will also be required to note the absence as fire related.  
This will give the District the opportunity to track these days and eventual fiscal 
impact. 

Next Steps:  N/A 

 
Attachments: Resolution #11-17-09, Employees’ Use of Personal Necessity Leave for Fire-

Related Absences 
 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Fiscal Impact: There will be the additional cost for substitute employees in some instances, 

though the actual cost is not known at this time.   
 
Recommendation: Approve 
 



Resolution No. 11-17-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE RINCON VALEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GOVERNING BOARD PROVIDING ADDITIONAL DAYS OF PERSONAL 

NECESSITY LEAVE FOR UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES TO COVER FIRE-
RELATED ABSENCES 

 
WHEREAS, in October 2017, Sonoma County was ravaged by intense wildfires that burned and 
destroyed thousands of homes and commercial buildings; and  
 
WHEREAS, a number of District employees and/or their immediate family members have been 
impacted by the wildfires; and  
 
WHEREAS, Administrative Regulations 4161.2, 4261.2, and 4261.2 grant employees the use of 
three (3) days of accrued sick leave during each school year for reasons of personal necessity; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the District has entered into a memorandum of understanding with the Rincon 
Valley Union Teachers Association for additional days of personal necessity leave for fire-
related absences; and 
 
WHEREAS, represented classified employees, have not entered into a memorandum of 
understanding for additional days of personal necessity leave for fire-related absences; and 
 
WHEREAS, management, supervisory, and confidential employees, unrepresented by an 
exclusive representative; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has the authority to suspend policies, bylaws, and administrative 
regulations for a specific purpose and a limited time by a majority vote, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has recognized that certain employees have been significantly impacted 
by the wildfires and have been determined to be those 1) whose home were lost or damaged to 
the degree that other housing was necessary, and to those 2) whose spouses or domestic partners 
lost employment as a direct result of the wildfires, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, effective October 23, 2017, the Board is 
suspending Administrative Regulations 4161.2, 4261.2, and 4261.2 with regard to limiting 
personal necessity leave to three (3) days, through June 30, 2017 for qualifying employees as 
defined above; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, qualifying employees may utilize unlimited days of their 
accumulated sick leave as personal necessity leave (“additional personal necessity leave”) to use 
during October 23, 2017 through June 30, 2018 for fire-related absences; and  
 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, the District Superintendent, at his sole discretion, may grant 
qualifying employee status to any employee on a case by case basis as determined by their 
unique fire related circumstances; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, the employees seeking to utilize the additional personal 
necessity leave granted under this Resolution must request approval from their supervisor to use 
such leave at least two (2) business days in advance and disclose the reason for the leave to 
ensure it is fire-related; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, requests to utilize the additional personal necessity leave 
granted under this Resolution from employees whose home(s) have been destroyed by the 
wildfires and/or who remain evacuated from their home(s) will receive priority.  
 

PASSED and ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Rincon Valley Union School 
District at a special meeting thereof held on November 14, 2017, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Board members: ____________________________________________________ 
NOES:  Board members: ____________________________________________________ 
ABSENT: Board members: ____________________________________________________ 
ABSTAIN:  Board members: ____________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREUPON, the President declared the Resolution passed and adopted and, SO 
ORDERED. 
 
 
 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

_________________________________ 
BOARD PRESIDENT 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Clerk of the Board 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: November 14, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 13.5 

Subject: MOU, Employees’ Use of Personal Necessity Leave for Fire-Related Absences 

Submitter: Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

 
Background: In October 2017, Sonoma County and other surrounding communities were faced 

with an unprecedented natural disaster that destroyed thousands of homes and 
commercial structures and disrupted the lives of tens of thousands of other 
individuals.  In our district alone, nineteen employees lost their homes, eleven of 
which are RVUTA unit members.  Many others families were further impacted by 
spouses or domestic partners losing full or partial employment. 

Highlights: The purpose of this memorandum of understanding is to allow RVUTA unit 
members directly impacted by the wildfires the ability to utilize their personal sick 
bank for use of personal necessity to attend to the many challenges they face to 
rebuild homes and lives.  Qualifying employees are defined by those whose: 

1. residence was destroyed or significantly damaged to require relocation   
2. spouse or partner lost their employment as a direct result of the fires 

District practice limits the use of sick leave for personal necessity to three days per 
year.   

Challenges: N/A 

Analysis: Qualifying employees will be required to obtain prior approval for taking a 
personal necessity day and will also be required to note the absence as fire related.  
This will give the District the opportunity to track these days and eventual fiscal 
impact. 

Next Steps: The memorandum of Understanding was entered into on October 24, 2017, 
therefore the Governing Board is asked to ratify this agreement. 

 
 
Attachments: RVUSD/RVUTA Memorandum of Understanding for the use of Personal 

Necessity Leave, October 24, 2017 
 
Fiscal Impact: There will be the additional cost for substitute employees in some instances, 

though the actual cost is not known at this time.   
 
Recommendation: Ratify 
 





Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 

 
 

Meeting Date:       November 14, 2017 
 

Agenda Item:         Action Item 13.6 
 

Subject:                  School-Connected Organizations Authorizations 
 

Submitter:           Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 
 

Background: In Information Item 12.1, representatives from the parent clubs for our 
schools highlighted one or two items about their group this year.  This 
item asks the Governing Board to approve the school authorization 
documents for each of the parent groups.  As a result, the Governing 
Board will authorize these groups to represent our schools as the sole 
parent-based group for each site. 

 
Highlights:  N/A 

Challenges:   N/A 

Analysis:            N/A 

Next Steps:             N/A 
 
 
 
Attachments:   See Information Item 12.1 School Connected Organization Authorization 
 
Fiscal Impact: While there is no fiscal impact to the District, each group provides a 

significant fiscal contribution to the individual school sites. 
 
Recommendation:         Approve 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: November 14, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 13.7 

Subject: Rincon Valley Charter School Renewal 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: The Rincon Valley Charter School operates under an application to the Rincon 
Valley Union School District Governing Board.  The application must be renewed 
every five years.  The current application expires on December 11, 2017.  The 
District established a Renewal Committee to develop an application to the 
Governing Board to extend the Charter School through December 11, 2022.  The 
members of the Renewal Committee include RVCS-Matanzas teachers Harmony 
Gooch and Samantha Tuor, RVCS-Matanzas Site Director Hannah Bates, RVCS-
Sequoia teachers Erin Conrad and Heidi Newton, RVCS-Sequoia Site Director 
Amy Wiese, Trustee Jeff Gospe, District administrators Terry Metzger, Cathy 
Myhers, Joe Pandolfo, and Tony Roehrick.   

Highlights: At it regular meeting on October 19, 2017, the Governing Board reviewed a draft 
version of the Charter School’s application.  At that time, Trustees directed staff to 
make two adjustments to the document. 

1. To add the following language under the section titled Affirmations, page 1, 
last bullet: “The intent of the authorizing District is for the Charter School 
to meet or exceed the annual number of instructional minutes as provided 
by other local middle schools.” 

2. Element 9, Financial and Performance Audits, page 34: to remove the 
section on performance audit and to include language in the document 
aligning the reporting of performance results to other district-wide 
reporting.  The new language is provided under Element 3, Methods to 
Assess Progress Towards Meeting Outcomes, page 26, under the heading 
Annual Performance Reporting, “The Charter School and/or District staff 
will compile and provide to the Rincon Valley Union School District Board 
of /Education on-going reports of performance on all indicators used for the 
District’s other charter and non-charter programs.” 

No other changes to the document were made. 

Challenges: N/A 

Analysis: The Renewal Committee is excited to have taken these last few months to look 
critically at the middle school program.  This is an important part of our process to 
structure the program to meet the needs of our community.  

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 

 

Next Steps: Following approval by the RVUSD Governing Board, the renewal application 
must be filed with the California Department of Education.  There are also some 
key issues to resolve for the Charter that are related, but beyond the scope of this 
action item and include the potential renaming of the school and the possible 
merging of both campuses.  These issues should be addressed soon. 

 
Attachments: RVCS Renewal Application 
 
Fiscal Impact:   None 
 
Recommendation: Approve 
 



	

	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

 
Rincon Valley 
Charter School 

 
Renewal Application 

 
For the Term   

December 11, 2017 through December 11, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



	

	

Table of Contents 
 
 

Affirmation……………………………………………………………………………. 1 
 
Charter Renewal Criteria…………………………………………………………….... 

 
3 

 
Element 1: Educational Program…………………………………………………….... 

 
6 

 
Element 2: Measurable Pupil Outcomes……………………………………………… 

 
21 

 
Element 3: Methods to Assess Progress Towards Meeting Outcomes……………….. 

 
25 

 
Element 4: Governance Structure of the School……………………………………… 

 
27 

 
Element 5: Employee Qualifications………………………………………………….. 

 
30 

 
Element 6: Health and Safety Procedures…………………………………………….. 

 
31 

 
Element 7: Means to Achieve Racial/Ethnic Balance Reflective of the Rincon Valley  
Union School District…………………………………………………………………. 

 
 

32 
 
Element 8: Admission Requirements…………………………………………………. 

 
33 

 
Element 9: Financial Audit…………………………………………………………… 

 
34 

 
Element 10: Pupil Suspension and Expulsion………………………………………… 

 
35 

 
Element 11: Retirement Systems……………………………………………………... 

 
36 

 
Element 12: Attendance Alternatives…………………………………………………. 

 
37 

 
Element 13: Description of Employee Rights………………………………………… 

 
38 

 
Element 14: Dispute Resolution Process……………………………………………... 

 
39 

 
Element 15: Closure Procedures……………………………………………………… 

 
40 

 
Miscellaneous Clauses………………………………………………………………... 

 
42 

 

 
 
 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

1 

AFFIRMATIONS 
 
The Charter School is committed to the following affirmations: 
 

• The Charter School shall meet all statewide standards and conduct the student 
assessments required, pursuant to Education Code Section 60605, and any other 
statewide standards authorized in statute, or student assessments applicable to students in 
non-charter public schools. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(c)(1)] 

• The Rincon Valley Union School District declares that it shall be deemed the exclusive 
public school employer of the employees of Charter School for purposes of the 
Educational Employment Relations Act.  [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(b)(6)] 

• The Charter School shall be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, 
employment practices, and all other operations. [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(d)(1)]	

• The Charter School will not charge tuition. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)]	
• The Charter School will not discriminate against any pupil on the basis of the 

characteristics described in Education Code Section 220 (actual or perceived disability, 
gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual 
orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set 
forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code or association with an individual who has any 
of the aforementioned characteristics). [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)]	

• The Charter School will admit all pupils who wish to attend the charter school, subject 
only to capacity. If the Charter School receives a greater number of applications than 
there are spaces for students, admission shall be determined through a public random 
drawing process. Except as required by Education Code Section 47605(d)(2), admission 
to the Charter School shall not be determined according to the place of residence of the 
student or his or her parents within the State. Preference in the public random drawing 
shall be given as required by Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(B). In the event of a 
drawing, the chartering authority shall make reasonable efforts to accommodate the 
growth of the Charter School in accordance with Education Code Section 
47605(d)(2)(C). [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(A)-(C)] 

• The Meetings of the Rincon Valley Union School District Board of Education for the 
Charter School shall be held in accordance with the Brown Act.	

• The Charter School shall comply with the Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Improvement Act (“IDEA”), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act ("Section 504 "), and 
the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”).	

• The Charter School shall comply with the Public Records Act and the Federal 
Educational Privacy Rights Act (“FERPA”).	

• The Charter School shall continually strive for a healthy, collaborative, synergistic 
relationship with the District and surrounding Districts.	

• The Charter School shall offer, at a minimum, the same number of minutes of instruction 
set forth in Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(l)(A)-(D) for the appropriate grade levels.  
The intent of the authorizing District is for the Charter School to meet or exceed the 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

2 

annual number of instructional minutes as provided by other local middle schools.  	
• The Charter School will develop a conflicts of interest code in accordance with the 

conflicts code of the District.	
• If a pupil is expelled or leaves the Charter School without graduating or completing the 

school year for any reason, the charter school shall notify the superintendent of the school 
district of the pupil's last known address within 30 days, and shall, upon request, provide 
that school district with a copy of the cumulative record of the pupil, including a 
transcript of grades or report card and health information. [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(d)(3)]	

• The Charter School shall meet all requirements for employment set forth in applicable 
provisions of law, including, but not limited to credentials, as necessary. [Ref. Title 5	

o California Code of Regulations Section 11967.5.l(f)(5)(C)].	
• The Charter School shall ensure that teachers in the Charter School hold a Commission 

on Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which a 
teacher in other public schools are required to hold. As allowed by statute, flexibility will 
be given to non-core, non-college preparatory teachers. [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(l)]	

• The Charter School shall comply with all applicable portions of the Elementary and 
Secondary Education Act (“ESEA”), as reauthorized and amended by the Every Student 
Succeeds Act (“ESSA”).	

• The Charter School shall meet or exceed the legally required minimum number of school 
days. [Ref. Title 5 California Code of Regulations Section 11960]	

• The Charter School shall maintain accurate and contemporaneous written records that 
document all pupil attendance and make these records available for audit and inspection. 
[Ref. Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(2)] 

• The Charter School shall, on a regular basis, consult with its parents and teachers 
regarding the Charter School's educational programs. [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(c)] 

• The Charter School shall comply with all laws establishing the minimum and maximum 
age for public school enrollment. [Ref. Education Code Sections 47612(b) and 47610] 

  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

3 

CHARTER RENEWAL CRITERIA 
 

1. Education Code Section 47607(b) requires that a charter school must meet at least one of 
the following renewal criteria prior to receiving a charter renewal: 
1.1. Attained its Academic Performance Index (API) growth target in the prior year or 

in two of the last three years, both school-wide and for all groups of pupils served 
by the charter school. 

1.2. Ranked in deciles 4 to 10, inclusive, on the API in the prior year or in two of the 
last three years. 

1.3. Ranked in deciles 4 to 10 inclusive, in the API for a demographically comparable 
school in the prior year or in two of the last three years. 

1.4. The entity that granted the charter determines that the academic performance of 
the charter school is at least equal to the academic performance of the public 
schools that the charter school pupils would otherwise have been required to 
attend, as well as the academic performance of the schools in the school district in 
which the charter school is located, taking into account the composition of the 
pupil population that is served at the charter school. 

1.5. Has qualified for an alternative accountability system pursuant to subdivision (h) 
of Education Code Section 52052. 

 
2. Education Code Section 47607(a)(3): (A) The authority that granted the charter shall 

consider increases in pupil academic achievement for all groups of pupils served by the 
charter school as the most important factor in determining whether to grant a charter 
renewal.  (B) For purposes of this section, “all groups of pupils served by the charter 
school” means a numerically significant pupil subgroup, as defined by paragraph (3) of 
subdivision (a) of Section 52052.  
 
Education Code Section 52052(a)(3):  (A) For purposes of this section, a numerically 
significant pupil subgroup is one that consists of at least 30 pupils, each of whom has a 
valid test score. (B) Notwithstanding subparagraph (A), for a subgroup of pupils who are 
foster youth or homeless youth, a numerically significant pupil subgroup is one that 
consists of at least 15 pupils.  Potential subgroups include: 
2.1. Ethnic subgroups. 
2.2. Socioeconomically disadvantaged pupils. 
2.3. English learners. 
2.4. Pupils with disabilities. 
2.5. Foster youth. 
2.6. Homeless youth. 

 
The following shall serve as documentation confirming that the Charter School meets the 
statutory criteria required for renewal set forth in Education Code Section 47607(b). 
 
Assembly Bill 484 amended Education Code section 52052(e)(4) to allow schools that do not 
have an API calculated to use one of the following criteria to meet legislative and/or 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

4 

programmatic requirements: 
• The most recent API calculation; 
• An average of the three most recent annual API calculations; or 
• Alternative measures that show increases in pupil academic achievement for all groups of 

pupils schoolwide and among significant groups. 
 
The Charter School meets the charter renewal criteria established in Education Code Section 
47607(b) by utilizing “the most recent API calculation” as allowed per Education Code Section 
52052(e)(4)(A), as further specified below. 
 
Analysis of Most Recent API Calculation 
 

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS FOR CHARTER RENEWAL 
Education Code Section 47607(b) – Charter School Must Meet at Least ONE  

Criteria for Renewal 

Renewal Criteria Criteria Met 

Attained its Academic Performance Index (API) growth target in the prior 
year or in two of the last three years, both school wide and for all groups 
of pupils served by the charter school. 

Yes; see table 
below 

Ranked in deciles 4 to 10, inclusive, on the API in the prior year or in two 
of the last three years. 

Yes; see table 
below 

Ranked in deciles 4 to 10 inclusive, in the API for a demographically 
comparable school in the prior year or in two of the last three years. 

Yes; see table 
below 

The entity that granted the charter determines that the academic 
performance of the charter school is at least equal to the academic 
performance of the public schools that the charter school pupils would 
otherwise have been required to attend, as well as the academic 
performance of the schools in the school district in which the charter 
school is located, taking into account the composition of the pupil 
population that is served at the charter school. 

Not Applicable 

Has qualified for an alternative accountability system pursuant to 
subdivision (h) of Education Code Section 52052 

Not Applicable 

(Source: CDE DataQuest, accessed September 15, 2017) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

5 

The Charter School had the following API scores: 
 

Year API Ranking Similar School 
Ranking 

API Scores API Growth 
Target (Actual 

Growth) 
2007-08 9 6 847 A (+21) 
2008-09 9 7 825 A (-19) 
2009-10 8 5 888 A (+65) 
2010-11 9 9 871 A (-17) 
2011-12 9 9 862 A (-19) 
2012-13 8 3 850 A (-12) 

“A” means the school or subgroups scored at or above the statewide performance target of 800. 
(Source: CDE website, accessed August 28, 2017) 
 
Additional Justification for Charter Renewal: Analysis of Student Subgroup Academic 
Achievement (Education Code Section 47607(a)(3)) 
 
The Charter School has the following significant subgroups:  Socio-economically Disadvantaged 
Pupils, Pupils with Disabilities, and White Students.  The following table outlines the CAASPP 
performance for ELA and Math for these significant subgroups. 
 

Years Subgroup ELA % Meeting/ 
Exceeding 

Math % Meeting/ 
Exceeding 

2014-15 
2015-16 
2016-17 

 
Socio-Econ 

48 
43 
60 

26 
29 
32 

2014-15 
2015-16 
2016-17 

 
Disabilities 

24 
30 
43 

14 
12 
21 

2014-15 
2015-16 
2016-17 

 
White 

65 
63 
78 

42 
42 
55 

 
The Spring 2017 California Dashboard compares the 2014-15 and 2015-16 school years and sets 
the following performance levels for the significant subgroups present at the Charter School: 

• Socio-economically Disadvantaged Pupils:  Blue 
• Pupils with Disabilities:  Red 
• White Students:  Green 

 
Spring 2017 CAASPP scores are significantly higher than previous years and demonstrate the 
school is improving its academic achievement results for its significant subgroups of students.  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

6 

ELEMENT 1. 
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM 

 
Governing Law: The educational program of the charter school, designed, among other things, 
to identify those whom the charter school is attempting to educate, what it means to be an 
"educated person" in the 21st century, and how learning best occurs. The goals identified in that 
program shall include the objective of enabling pupils to become self-motivated, competent, and 
lifelong learners. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A)(i). 
 
The annual goals for the charter school for all pupils and for each subgroup of pupils identified 
pursuant to Section 52052, to be achieved in the state priorities, as described in subdivision (d) 
of Section 52060, that apply for the grade levels served, or the nature of the program operated, 
by the charter school, and specific annual actions to achieve those goals. A charter petition may 
identify additional school priorities, the goals for the school priorities, and the specific annual 
actions to achieve those goals. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A)(ii). 
 
The Charter School is a site-based, traditional calendar charter school for seventh and eighth 
grade students. It is located on one or more sites within the Rincon Valley Union School District. 
The school community at each site will operate as a unique TK-8 campus. The Charter School 
fosters a learning environment where all students can achieve excellence in academics while 
involving themselves in a community of kindergarten through eighth grade learners. Students 
develop socially and emotionally within a safe and nurturing environment where they will-feel-
supported in-their development as a young adult. 
 
MISSION 
 
The Charter School pursues excellence in middle school education where students are self-
motivated, competent, lifelong learners who hold themselves to high academic and personal 
standards within a student-centered environment, emphasizing a challenging core curriculum. 
 
VISION 
 
The vision of the Charter School is to provide an unique educational program for students who 
are interested and committed to participating in a rigorous core academic program in a small 
school setting, based upon the California state content standards and local essential standards, 
with an educational experience focusing on Project-Based Learning, infused with technology and 
fine arts to support the intellectual, physical, social, and emotional development of a 21st century 
student. 
 
WHOM THE SCHOOL IS ATTEMPTING TO EDUCATE 
 
The Charter School education program provides expanded educational choice and opportunities 
for families in the Rincon Valley and greater Santa Rosa community. The Charter School offers 
two separate program options. The first is for students in grades 7 and 8, which includes strong 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

7 

student support. Informal data gathered from parents and teachers indicate that a number of 7th 
and 8th grade students’ families currently seek alternative private programs with lower 
enrollment and higher student support. In addition, these families desire a rigorous academic 
program with access to technology and the fine arts. The second program option is a long-term 
independent study program for students in TK-8. This option provides credentialed teacher 
support for families who choose, for whatever reason, to instruct their children primarily at 
home. 
 
The Charter School serves students in TK-8th grade whose families have an interest in and 
dedication to the school's philosophy and vision. The Charter School shall be nonsectarian in its 
admission policies employment practices, and all other operations. The school shall not 
discriminate against any student on the basis of race, ethnicity, national origin, gender, or any 
characteristic listed in Education Code Section 220. 
 
WHAT IT MEANS TO BE AN "EDUCATED PERSON" IN THE 21ST CENTURY 
 
To be a well-educated person of the 21st century, one needs: 
 

• To be academically capable, able to think creatively, make sound decisions, solve 
problems, and possess scholarly attributes.	

• To have a deep understanding of the humanities, sciences, and the arts.	
• To be capable of using technology as a tool in the pursuit of continued learning.	
• To be an exceptional communicator; one who possesses superb skills in many forms of 

communication.	
• To be capable of establishing and completing long- and short-term goals.	
• To possess the attributes of responsibility, citizenship, sociability, diligence, civility, 

integrity, and honesty.	
 
THE ATTRIBUTES OF AN EDUCATED PERSON IN THE 21ST CENTURY INCLUDE: 
 

• Being literate.	
• Being competent in oral, written, and visual communication.	
• Understanding the scientific process.	
• Understanding historical foundations and apply them to the modern day.	
• Understanding of the mathematical process.	
• Ability to think critically, creatively, analytically, and logically.	
• Ability to gather, organize, and present information. 	
• Ability to critically assess data and sources.	
• Ability to set and achieve personal, academic, and group goals. 
• Ability to communicate and collaborate in a group setting. 

 
 
 
 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

8 

HOW LEARNING BEST OCCURS 
 
Learning best occurs for adolescents when they are involved with issues they regard as important 
and that have meaning in their own lives. They need to: 
 

• Recognize and acknowledge global diversity.	
• Explore and apply ideas such as fairness, equity and justice to the world around them.	
• Be actively involved in their learning.	
• Engage in interactive learning opportunities within the community.	
• Be provided with opportunities for differentiated learning.	
• Engage in multiple levels of questioning and thinking.  	
• Engage in editing and revision based on feedback to finalize work.	
• Access, evaluate, and incorporate information using technology.	
• Engage in metacognition.	
• Experience high expectations from adults in their lives and be provided with the support 

needed to achieve those high expectations. 
 
METHODS OF INSTRUCTION 
 
As outlined in the Carnegie Council on Adolescent Development Report, Turning Points: 
Preparing American Youth for the 21st Century, the school and teachers will work to: 
 

• Create small communities for learning where stable, close, mutually respectful 
relationships with adults and peers are considered fundamental for intellectual 
development and personal growth. The key elements of these communities are schools-
within-schools or houses, students and teachers grouped together as teams and small-
group advisories that ensure that every student is known well by at least one adult.	

• Teach a core academic program that results in students who are literate in all disciplines, 
think critically, lead a healthy life, behave ethically, and assume the responsibilities of 
global citizenship.	

 
At the Charter School, our primary method of instruction is Project-Based-Learning, which is 
defined by the Buck Institute (Novato, CA) as a teaching method in which students gain 
knowledge and skills by working for an extended period of time to investigate and respond to an 
authentic, engaging, and complex question, problem, or challenge. Additional instructional 
approaches may include but are not limited to the following: 
 

• Utilizing strategies that emphasize critical thinking, complex reasoning, and 
differentiated instruction.	

• Providing students opportunities for feedback and choice that shape their learning 
experience. 

• Providing students with interactive learning opportunities within the community that 
bring them into contact with people with diverse perspectives.	

• Providing opportunities for students to engage in interdisciplinary and thematic 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

9 

explorations that require multiple levels of questioning and thinking.	
• Provide direct instruction and multiple opportunities in the giving and receiving of 

feedback toward editing, revising, and finalizing their work.	
• Utilizing modern technology to ensure that students become empowered learners, 

knowledge constructors, digital citizens, creative communicators, innovative designers, 
computational thinkers, and global collaborators.	

• Independent study in which the parent provides instruction in partnership/consultation 
with a credentialed teacher. 

 
CURRICULUM 
 
The courses of study developed for the school are demanding, relevant, and taught through an 
interdisciplinary, project-based approach. Based upon current research on how students learn, the 
interdisciplinary curriculum reinforces brain-based learning. It has been demonstrated that the 
brain appears better able to retain information when curriculum is presented as integrated rather 
than in isolation. 
 
The integrated, interdisciplinary approach is based on the California Content Standards 
(including but not limited to the Common Core State Standards, Next Generation Science 
Standards, and English Language Development Standards, local key standards and the California 
Department of Education document “Taking Center Stage: A Commitment to Standards-Based 
Education for California's Middle Grades Students." 
 
The core curriculum will include reading/language arts, mathematics, history/social science, and 
science. The content standards define for each subject and grade level the most important 
knowledge that students must acquire and the skills that they must master. 
 
Language Arts-Reading 
 
Students demonstrate strong reading, writing, listening, speaking, and presentation skills, in 
multiple forms of expression (e.g., written, oral, multimedia), with communication skills 
appropriate to the setting and audience. They comprehend and critically interpret multiple forms 
of expression including literature from various time periods and cultures. 
 

• Students are required to articulate the expressed purposes and characteristics of different 
forms of prose, including the short story novel, novella, poetry, and essay. They engage 
in identifying and tracing the development of an author's argument; reading, evaluating, 
and applying informational research as evidence of their own ideas; and analyzing 
setting, characterization, and conflict in fictional narratives.  

• Word Analysis Fluency, and Systematic Vocabulary Development: Students must 
identify idioms, analogies, metaphors, and similes in prose and poetry and continue to 
clarify word meanings through definitions, examples, restatements and contrasts. 

• Reading Comprehension – Nonfiction: Strategies focused on (I) use and analysis of 
categories of informational materials (e.g., consumer and workplace documents, 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

10 

textbooks, newspapers, instructional manuals); and (2) assessment of an author's 
argument. 

• Literary Response and Analysis – Students are required to articulate the express purposes 
and characteristics of different forms of prose (e.g., short story, novel, novella, essay). 

• The instruction is both deep and diligent and allows students ample opportunity to 
scrutinize a particular work. Selected works lend themselves to exploring with the 
students how events advance the plot; how each event explains past or present actions or 
foreshadows future actions, and how a character's thoughts, words speech patterns, and 
actions reveal characterization. 

• Extensive independent reading is an important element of the curriculum – including 
good representation of narrative and expository instructional materials. A variety of 
methods are used to assess the reading done outside the classroom including student 
maintained reading logs and book reports in various formats.	

 
Language Arts-Writing 
 

• Writing focuses on multi-paragraph expository compositions. Students are expected to 
write texts of between 500-700 words for the purpose of informational summary, 
interpretation of literature, research reports, argumentative essays, and fictional 
narratives. 

• Students develop strategies for organized writing with an emphasis on thesis statements, 
evidence, interpretation, documentation, and MLA format. Students explore the various 
stages of the writing process including outlines, rough drafts, feedback, editing and 
revision, and finalizing. 

• Students demonstrate a general command of English language conventions in both 
writing.  

• Curriculum emphasis at this grade level includes sentence structure (e.g., proper 
placement of modifiers and use of the active voice); grammar (e.g., proper use of 
infinitives and participles, clear pronouns and antecedents); punctuation (e.g., correct use 
of hyphens, dashes, brackets, and semicolons); and spelling (e.g., applying the spelling of 
bases and affixes to derivatives).	

 
Language Arts – Listening and Speaking 
 

• Students deliver focused, coherent presentations that convey ideas clearly and relate to 
the background and interests of the audience.  

• Students deliver well-organized, formal presentations employing traditional rhetorical 
strategies (e.g., narration, exposition, persuasion, and description) and strong presentation 
skills (e.g., maintaining eye contact, speaking loudly and clearly).   

• Students demonstrate a wide range of speaking skills and strategies that may include but 
are not limited to: collaborative discussion, discussion preparation, following rules and 
formats of formal discussion, meeting deadlines, questioning ideas and making 
connections, interpreting evidence, analyzing purpose, establishing relevancy, integrating 
technology, and academic language.	



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

11 

• Student speaking demonstrates a command of standard American English.	
 
Mathematics 
 
A high-quality mathematics program will be provided for each student. To compete successfully 
in the global economy, today’s students must have a high degree of comprehension in 
mathematics. The State content standards and key standards focus on essential skills to prepare 
students for the study of advanced mathematics, science and technical careers, as well as success 
in a secondary program. 
 
Students develop abilities to reason logically and to understand and apply mathematical 
processes and concepts, including those within arithmetic, algebra, geometry, etc. 
The goals in mathematics education are for students to: 
 

• Make sense of problems and persevere in solving them. 
• Reason abstractly and quantitatively. 
• Construct viable arguments and critique the reasoning of others. 
• Model with mathematics. 
• Use appropriate tools strategically. 
• Attend to precision. 
• Look for and make use of structure. 
• Look for and express regularity in repeated reasoning. 
• Develop fluency in basic computational skills.	

 
History/Social Science 
 
Students understand and apply historical, civic, economic, and geographical knowledge in order 
to serve as citizens in today's world of diverse cultures. 
 

• Grade Seven: World History and Geography: Medieval and Early Modern Times	
o Students in Grade 7 study the Americas and Afro-Eurasia between the years 300-

1789 CE.  After reviewing the ways in which archaeologists and historians uncover 
the past, students study the great civilizations that were developing concurrently 
throughout the world during medieval and early modern times. They examine the 
growing economic interaction among civilizations as well as the exchange of ideas, 
beliefs, technologies, and commodities. They learn about the resulting growth of the 
Scientific Revolution, the Age of Exploration, and Enlightenment.  Finally, students 
connect democratic ideas that led to the foundation of the United States government 
and continue to influence the world today. 

• Grade Eight: United States History and Geography: Growth and Conflict	
o Students in grade eight study the ideas, issues, and events from colonization to 

Industrialization. Students analyze the heritage of our nation, the writing of the 
Declaration of Independence, framing of the Constitution, and the Bill of Rights. 
They trace the development of American politics, society, culture, geography, and 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

12 

economics relating them to the emergence of major regional differences. They learn 
about the challenges facing the new nation, with an emphasis on the causes, course, 
and consequences of Westward Expansion, Civil War, Reform Movements, and 
Reconstruction. They make connections between the rise of industrialization and 
contemporary social and economic conditions.	

 
Science 
 
Glenn T. Seaborg, Chair of the Academic Standards Commission’s Science Committee, stated in 
"A Letter to a Young Scientist" that science is an organized body of knowledge and a method of 
proceeding to an extension of this knowledge by hypothesis and experiment. With this in mind, 
the science curriculum reflects a view of science as a balance between the body of knowledge, 
the practices that scientists and engineers use, and concepts that cross boundaries between 
disciplines. The curriculum provides the foundational skills and knowledge for students to learn 
core concepts, principles, and theories of science. The content standards are taught so that 
students have the opportunity to build connections that link science to technology and societal 
impacts. 
 

• Students successfully utilize scientific research and inquiry methods to understand and 
apply the major concepts underlying the life sciences and physical science. 

• The study of science in seventh grade includes the structure and properties of matter, 
chemical reactions, history of Earth, Earth’s systems, matter and energy in organisms and 
ecosystems, interdependent relationships in ecosystems, human impacts, and engineering 
design.  

• The study of science in eighth grade includes human impacts, space systems, history of 
Earth, growth, development and reproduction of organisms, natural selection and 
adaptation, waves and electromagnetic radiation, forces, interactions, energy, and 
engineering design.	

 
Independent Study 
 
The Charter School has added grades TK-6, thus forming a TK-8 Charter School, for the purpose 
of establishing an independent study program to serve home-schooling families in Sonoma 
County and adjacent Counties as determined by the District Board of Education. The 
independent study program shall meet all state standards and shall be conducted in strict 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter Schools Act, and Education Code Section 51745 et 
seq. and its implementing regulations. The Governing Board of the District shall determine the 
capacity of the program. 
 
UNIQUE ASPECTS OF THE EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM 
 
The teachers are expected to use an interdisciplinary approach in a standards-based system with 
student centered learning opportunities. 
 
The standard will be for high quality student work enhanced and enabled by excellent teaching 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

13 

within a supportive school culture. 
 
Teachers are expected to: 
 

• Possess demonstrable professional competence.	
• Provide caring emotional support for all students to develop positive educational values.	
• Maintain emotionally and physically safe learning environments.	
• Implement standards-based education in all core areas of the curriculum.	
• Use curriculum materials and assessment practices that are aligned with standards.	
• Provide content and performance standards that are clear including required academic 

performance levels, for all parents and students.	
• Provide differentiated instruction including the use of scaffolding, to assess students in 

learning to use knowledge and skills in practical ways.	
• Engage students in tasks requiring complex reasoning that are expressed in speech or 

writing or in experiments projects, artwork, models, or other appropriate means.	
• Assign relevant and demanding homework linked to content and performance standards.	
• Establish the development of foundational and academic literacy for all students as the 

highest priority in the school.	
• Use support personnel effectively, including aides, tutors, and adult volunteers.	
• Avoid classroom interruptions.	
• Facilitate student access to human services agencies or other appropriate helping 

organizations.	
• Plan, implement, and evaluate regularly school-based initiatives focused on remedial 

programs for students.	
• Inform students, parents, and the community about the basic and special efforts of the 

school to help all students meet or exceed required levels of academic proficiency.	
• Be encouraged to be innovative.	

 
The Charter School “re-engages families in the education of young adolescents by giving 
families meaningful roles in school governance, communicating with families about the school 
program and students’ progress, and offering family opportunities to support the learning process 
at home and at the school.” (Carnegie Council on Adolescent Development) 
 
The California Service-Learning Task Force has called for school districts to use service learning 
to connect youths to their communities by integrating academic facts and standards while 
providing opportunities for students to demonstrate civic responsibility. Opportunities for service 
learning are offered within the school. 
 
The Charter School is responsible for helping students become good citizens. It communicates 
the civic values of the U.S. Constitution, including the Bill of Rights. Those values include 
freedom of religion, speech, and press; equal protection; non-discrimination; and fairness and 
due process under the law. The school also promotes shared social values, such as responsibility, 
honesty, kindness, and respect for others, through a strong character education program. 
 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

14 

Learning Opportunities: 
 

• Students know how to access and use information via the use of electronic 
equipment/technology.	

• Students locate information from print, primary, and digital sources, and validate the 
quality and integrity of the content.	

• Students are provided on-line homework challenges.	
• Students participate in a well-articulated physical fitness program that will serve them 

throughout their lives. The program includes extracurricular sports opportunities.	
• Students participate in visual and performing arts opportunities both as a participant and a 

spectator to broaden student's awareness.	
• Students are given the opportunity to develop strong citizenship and leadership, and the 

ability to collaborate and work effectively with others within the TK-8 community.	
• Underlying and utilized throughout each of the core curriculum areas are additional skills 

such as: critical thinking, technology, creative expression through various forms of the 
arts, knowledge of pertinent issues of health, and the development of physical fitness.	

• Students are supported in developing the necessary skills, which will enable students to 
pursue their own path of learning throughout their adult lives.	

• Students are taught important practices for a healthy adult life, including: personal 
financial management skills, job readiness and career exploration, higher education 
possibilities.	

• Students develop a core knowledge of basic information that a person needs to be a 
successful and productive citizen of the United States.	

 
The electives program may include but may not be limited to art, drama, music, foreign 
language, ethics, and after school sports, as determined by student interest and the availability of 
qualified staffing. 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL GOALS AND ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE THE EIGHT 
STATE PRIORITIES  
 
Please see the section “Goals, Actions and Measurable Outcomes Aligned with the Eight State 
Priorities” in Element 2 of the Charter for a description of the Charter School’s annual goals to 
be achieved in the Eight State Priorities school-wide and for all pupil subgroups, as described 
in Education Code Section 52060(d), and specific annual actions to achieve those goals, in 
accordance with Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A)(ii). 
 
ENGLISH LEARNERS 
 
Of special importance to middle schools is the idea that English-language development 
instruction should continue for students at all levels of English language proficiency. The State 
ELD Standards are taught through the state English/Language Arts Common Core State 
Standards to ensure that English language learners develop proficiency in both the English 
language and the concepts and skills contained in the State standards. 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

15 

All English learners are supported with specially-designed academic instruction in English 
(SDAIE) to help develop their English skills and simultaneously address grade-level content in 
the core curriculum. Students new to US schools (known as newcomers) receive additional 
support from a classified or certificated staff member to acquire basic English language quickly. 
English learners who have not been designated as Fluent English Proficient (R-FEP) after 6 years 
of instruction are classified as Long Term English Learners (LTEL). These students receive 
intensive intervention from a certificated teacher, using instructional materials from the state-
approved list. All teachers hold an English learner authorization (CLAD or equivalent). 
 
Home Language Survey 
 
The Charter School will administer the home language survey upon a student’s initial enrollment 
into the Charter School (on enrollment forms). 
 
English Language Proficiency Testing 
 
All students who indicate that their home language is other-than-English will be administered a 
California English language proficiency test within thirty days of initial enrollment and at least 
annually thereafter re-designated as fluent English proficient.  
 
The Charter School will notify all parents of its responsibility for English language proficiency 
testing and of those test results within thirty days of receiving results from publisher. The 
California English Language Proficiency Test (CELDT) will be used through Fall 2017. 
Beginning Spring 2018 the English Language Proficiency Assessment for California (ELPAC) 
will be used to fulfill the requirements under the Every Student Succeeds Act for annual English 
proficiency testing. 
 
SPECIAL EDUCATION STUDENTS/SECTION 504/ADA 
 
Public School of the District 
 
The Charter School shall comply with all applicable State and Federal Laws in serving students 
with disabilities, including, but not limited to, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act ("Section 
504"), the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA") and the Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Improvement Act ("IDEA"). The Charter School shall be deemed a public school of 
the District pursuant to Education Code Section 4764l(b). 
 
A Charter School that is deemed to be a public school of the local educational agency that 
granted the charter shall participate in state and federal funding in the same manner as any other 
public school of the granting agency. Further, a child with disabilities attending the charter 
school shall receive special educational instruction or designated instruction and services, or 
both, in the same manner as a child with disabilities who attends another public school of that 
district. The District shall ensure that all children with disabilities enrolled in the Charter School 
receive special education and designated instruction and services in a manner that is consistent 
with their individualized education program and in compliance with the IDEA. 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

16 

Non-Discrimination 
 
The Charter School shall not deny nor discourage any student from enrollment due to a disability 
or due to the Charter School's concerns about its ability to provide appropriate services. The 
Charter School will comply with all provisions of federal law and implementing regulations 
related to the rights of students with disabilities and their parents (20 U. S.C. Chapter 33, the 
IDEA). The Charter School facility shall not present physical barriers that would limit an eligible 
student's full participation in the educational and extracurricular program offered by the Charter 
School. 
In-Service on Referral System  
 
The Charter School shall designate a representative to attend an in-service conducted by the 
District or the SELPA on the referral system and criteria. 
 
Services 
 
The Charter School will be treated as any other public school in the District with respect to the 
provision of special education services, including the allocation of duties between on-site staff 
and resources and the District staff and resources. All individuals providing services to the 
Charter School shall be appropriately credentialed under California and Federal law. 
 
The District and the School agree to allocate responsibility for the provisions of services 
(including but not limited to identification, evaluation, I.E.P. development and modification, and 
educational services) in a manner consistent with their allocation between the District and its 
local public school sites. Where particular services are generally provided by staff at the local 
school site level, the Charter School will be responsible for providing said staff and 
programming; where particular services are provided to the school by the central District office, 
those services will be made available to the Charter School in a similar fashion. 
 
The Charter School and the District intend that they will jointly ensure that all students entitled 
to services under the IDEA and California Education Code Section 56000, et seq., will receive 
those services. 
 
The District shall be responsible for providing all services under this Charter to all students of 
the Charter School regardless of their school district of residence. 
 
If needed due to limited special education staff, the District may seek out contracts with other 
school districts, or companies, or organizations to serve Charter School students. The Charter 
School shall assist the District in procuring such services. 
 
Identification and Referral 
 
The Charter School shall have the same responsibility as any other public school in the District 
to work cooperatively with the District in identifying and referring students who have or may 
have exceptional needs that qualify them to receive special education services. The Charter 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

17 

School will develop, maintain, and implement policies and procedures to ensure identification 
and referral of students who have, or may have, such exceptional needs. These policies and 
procedures will be in accordance with California law and District policy. As between the Charter 
School and the District, the Charter School is solely responsible for obtaining the cumulative 
files, prior and/or current Individualized Education Plan ("IEP") and other special education 
information on any student enrolling from a non-District school. A pupil shall be referred for 
special education instruction and services only after the resources of the regular education 
program have been considered and where appropriate utilized and exhausted. 
 
The District shall provide the Charter School with any assistance that it generally provides its 
other public schools in the identification and referral processes. The District will ensure that the 
Charter School is provided with notification and relevant files of all students transferring to the 
School from a District school, who have an existing IEP, in the same-manner that it ensures the 
forwarding of such information between District schools. All records and files will be released 
with the signed permission of the parent/guardian. 
 
Assessment 
 
The District and Charter School shall make the determination as to what assessments are 
necessary, including assessments for all referred students, annual assessments and tri-annual 
assessments, in accordance with the District's general practice and procedure and applicable law. 
The Charter School shall not conduct unilateral independent assessments without prior written 
approval of the District. 
 
Individualized Education Plan (“IEP”) 
 
Responsibility for arranging necessary IEP meetings shall be allocated in accordance with the 
District’s general practice, procedure and applicable law. The Charter School shall be 
responsible for having the designated representative of the Charter School in attendance at the 
IEP meetings in addition to representatives who are knowledgeable about the regular education 
program at the Charter School. 
 
Decisions regarding eligibility, goals/objectives, program placement and exit from special 
education shall be the decision of the IEP team. Team membership shall be in compliance with 
state and federal law and shall include the designated representative of the Charter School (or 
designee) and the designated representative of the District (or designee) (when appropriate). 
Services and placements shall be provided to all eligible Charter School students in accordance 
with the policies, procedures and requirements of the District and of the Local Plan for Special 
Education. 
 
For students who enroll in the Charter School with a current IEP, the District and the Charter 
School shall conduct an IEP meeting in accordance with applicable law. The Charter School 
shall notify the District immediately of students who may fall into this category. The District will 
provide consultative assistance to Charter School to help transition the student. 
 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

18 

To the extent that the agreed upon IEP requires educational or related services to be delivered by 
staff other than the Charter School staff, the District shall provide and/or arrange for such 
services in the same manner that it would be legally obligated to provide to the students at its 
other District schools. District services shall include consultative services by District staff to 
Charter School staff in the same manner that District staff consults with staff at other District 
schools. 
 
Concerns/Complaints 
 
The Charter School shall instruct Parents/Guardians to raise concerns regarding special 
education services, related services and rights to the Charter School staff. The Charter School 
staff shall then in turn consult with the designated representative of the District regarding such 
concerns. The District representative in consultation with the Charter School's designated 
representative shall respond to and address the parent/guardian concerns. 
 
In consultation with the Charter School, the District shall address/respond/investigate all 
complaints received under the Uniform Complaint procedure involving special education. 
 
In consultation with the Charter School, the District may initiate a due process hearing on behalf 
of a student enrolled in the Charter School as the District determines is legally necessary to meet 
a school agency's responsibilities under federal and state law. The District and the Charter 
School shall work together to defend any due process hearing brought by a student enrolled in 
the Charter School. 
 
In the event that the District determines that legal counsel representation is needed, the District/ 
Charter School shall be jointly represented by legal counsel, unless there is a conflict of interest. 
In the case separate counsel is needed by the Charter School, the Charter School shall be 
responsible for the separate costs of its legal counsel. 
 
SELPA Representation 
 
The District Superintendent or designee shall represent the Charter School at all SELPA 
meetings as it represents the needs of all schools in the District. Reports to the Charter School 
regarding SELPA decisions, policies, etc. shall be communicated to the Charter School as they 
are to all other schools within the District. To the extent that the District and/or SELPA provide 
training opportunities and/or information regarding special education to site staff, such 
opportunities/information shall be made available to Charter School staff. To the extent that 
District site staff have the opportunity to participate in committee meetings of the SELPA as 
representatives of their district, such opportunities shall be made available to Charter School 
staff. To the extent services are offered SELPA-wide, such services will also be available to 
students at the Charter School. 
 
The Charter School agrees to adhere to the policies, procedures, and requirements of the Local 
Plan for Special Education and to District policies. 
 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

19 

Funding 
 
The parties agree that, pursuant to the division of responsibilities set forth in this Charter, the 
School has elected the status of any other public school in the District for the purposes of special 
education services and funding, and the District has agreed to provide special education services 
for the School, consistent with the services it provides at its public schools. Consistent with this 
division of responsibility, the District shall retain all state and federal special education funding 
allocated for Charter School students through the SELPA. 
 
The Charter School shall owe the District a pro-rata share of the District’s unfunded special 
education costs (“encroachment”).  
 
At the end of each fiscal year, the District shall calculate and charge the Charter School's pro-rata 
share of the Special Education District-wide contribution for that year.  All of the charter 
school’s special education costs as well as revenue shall be included in the District’s special 
education resource code (6500), unless otherwise directed by the state.  The total amount of 
unfunded expenses for all special education costs is paid for by a contribution from the general 
find.  The charter school's share of this contribution should be the total contribution divided by 
the District’s total average daily attendance (ADA), (which includes the Charter Schools ADA) 
multiplied by the Charter School ADA.   See the example below: 
  
(Contribution from general fund to resource code 6500 / Total ADA)* Charter ADA   
$4,000/3,300 = $1,212.12 *200 =$242,424. 
 
The District shall be responsible for all costs related to the service of Charter School students in 
the same manner as it is responsible for the cost of serving other students of the District on an 
annual basis. 
 
Special education funds for special education staff and services provided at the local school site 
level by the Charter School with the agreement of the District shall be allocated to the Charter 
School by the District on an annual basis. 
 
Discipline 
 
The Charter School shall follow the requirements of State and Federal Law in regard to the 
suspension or expulsion of special education students including but not limited to the 
requirement that a manifestation determination be made prior to any change of placement. 
 
Dispute Resolution 
 
The Charter School and the District agree to follow the dispute resolution procedure outlined by 
Element 14 of this charter in the case of a dispute regarding special education services or 
funding. The SELPA Director shall be included as applicable and necessary in the dispute 
resolution process. 
 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

20 

Section 504/Americans with Disabilities Act 
 
The District shall be responsible for Charter School compliance with Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act ("Section 504") and the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) with 
respect to eligible students.   
  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

21 

ELEMENT 2. 
MEASURABLE PUPIL OUTCOMES 

 
Governing Law: The measurable pupil outcomes identified for use by the charter school. “Pupil 
outcomes,” for purpose of this part, means the extent to which all pupils of the school 
demonstrate that they have attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes specified as goals in the 
school’s educational program. Pupil outcomes shall include outcomes that address increases in 
pupil academic achievement both schoolwide and for all groups of pupils served by the charter 
school, as that term is defined in subparagraph (B) of paragraph (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 
47607. The pupil outcomes shall align with the state priorities, as described in subdivision (d) of 
Section 52060, that apply for the grade levels served, or the nature of the program operated, by 
the charter school.  Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(B). 
 
It is the philosophy of the Charter School to foster high academic standards through the use of a 
rigorous application of the State content standards and identified key school standards. It is the 
goal of the school for all students, including subgroups, to achieve the green level on the 
California School Dashboard.  The Charter School is a two-year school and scores vary 
significantly from year to year due to its small number of students and 50% turnover each year, 
making it less meaningful to compare school-wide results from year to year.  Rather, the growth 
of the individual student, the class, and the cohort of students within a year is more important for 
monitoring.  In addition, it is the goal to support each student physically, socially and 
emotionally. The desired outcome is the development of a healthy middle school student who is 
on the road to becoming a lifelong learner. The purpose of educational process outlined in this 
charter will allow children to recognize and achieve their full individual potential. 
 
CHARTER OUTCOMES 
 
It is the goal of the Charter School that students achieve the following outcomes: 
 
Anticipated Outcomes 
 
Students at RVCS will demonstrate the following upon graduation: 
 

• Overall scores on the CAASPP that demonstrate annual student progress both school-
wide and for all numerically significant student subgroups served by the Charter School 
(as defined by Education Code Section 52052(a)(3)). 

• Mastery of the school's key standards. 
• Competency in state grade-level content and performance standards. 
• Strong study skills. 
• Good citizenship.	

 
 
 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

22 

Academic Content Specific Outcomes 
 
Language Arts 
 

• Students master significant literary works, as demonstrated through speaking, reading, 
and writing. 

• Students have strong written and oral presentation skills. 
• Students read at or above grade level. 
• Students demonstrate effective communication skills in writing and oral language/speech.	

 
Mathematics 
 

• Make sense of problems and persevere in solving them. 
• Reason abstractly and quantitatively. 
• Construct viable arguments and critique the reasoning of others. 
• Model with mathematics. 
• Use appropriate tools strategically. 
• Attend to precision. 
• Look for and make use of structure. 
• Look for and express regularity in repeated reasoning. 
• Develop fluency in basic computational skills.	

 
History/Social Studies 
 

• Students understand the historical context of significant events, people, and ideas in order 
to analyze modern day. 

• Students understand the role geography plays in connecting global regions.   
• Students act upon learned civic values. 
• Students connect economic concepts to the development of a culture or country.	

 
Science 
 

• Students investigate natural phenomenon using disciplinary core ideas, scientific 
practices, and cross-cutting concepts. 

• Students undertake design challenges, defining criteria and constraints, evaluating 
competing design solutions, and developing models. 

 
Visual and Performing Arts 
 

• Students produce/perform works to the best of their personal abilities. 	
• Students understand the value of the execution of visual/performing arts.	
• Students appreciate well-executed works. 	
• Students understand that art requires discipline and perseverance and leads to self-



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

23 

expression and self-knowledge. 
 
Physical Education 
 

• Students understand the value of teamwork and good sportsmanship.  	
• Students know the benefits of lifelong physical activity.	

 
Technology and Study Skills 
 

• Be empowered learners who can use technology to set goals, work toward achieving 
them, and demonstrate learning. 

• Be digital citizens who understand the rights, responsibilities, and opportunities of living, 
learning, and working in an interconnected digital world. 

• Be knowledge constructors who critically select, evaluate, and synthesize digital 
resources into a collection that reflects learning and builds knowledge. 

• Be innovative designers who solve problems by creating new and imaginative solutions 
using a variety of digital tools. 

• Be computational thinkers who identify authentic problems, work with data, and use a 
step-by-step process to automate solutions. 

• Be creative communicators who communicate effectively and express themselves 
creatively using different tools, styles, formats, and digital media. 

• Be global collaborators who strive to broaden their perspectives, understand others, and 
work effectively in teams using digital tools. 

 
The Charter School will continue to evaluate and refine its list of desired outcomes over time to 
reflect the school’s vision and mission and any changes to the state or local standards that 
support the mission. 
 
GOALS, ACTIONS AND MEASURABLE OUTCOMES ALIGNED WITH 
THE EIGHT STATE PRIORITIES  
 
Pursuant to Education Code Sections 47605(b)(5)(A)(ii) and 47605(b)(5)(B), the Charter 
School’s annual goals, actions and measurable outcomes, both schoolwide and for each subgroup 
of pupils, which address and align with the Eight State Priorities as described in Education Code 
Section 52060(d), can be found in the Charter School’s Local Control Accountability Plan 
(“LCAP”). Each of these goals addresses the unique needs of all students attending the Charter 
School, including our numerically significant student subgroups. The metrics associated with 
these goals help the Charter School to ensure that these specific subgroups are making 
satisfactory progress, and are provided with necessary additional supports made possible by 
additional funds from the Local Control Funding Formula.  
 
The current LCAP is on file with the District. The Charter School shall annually update and 
develop the LCAP in accordance with Education Code Section 47606.5 and shall use the LCAP 
template adopted by the State Board of Education. The Charter School reserves the right to 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

24 

establish additional and/or amend school-specific goals and corresponding assessments 
throughout the duration of the charter through the annual LCAP update. The Charter School shall 
submit the LCAP to the District and County Superintendent of Schools annually on or before 
July 1, as required by Education Code Section 47604.33.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

25 

ELEMENT 3. 
METHODS TO ASSESS PUPIL PROGRESS 

TOWARDS MEETING OUTCOMES 
 
Governing Law: The method by which pupil progress in meeting those pupil outcomes is to be 
measured. To the extent practicable, the method for measuring pupil outcomes for state 
priorities shall be consistent with the way information is reported on a school accountability 
report card. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(C). 
 
Student progress is based on how well students have met the measurable student outcomes 
outlined by the charter. The Charter School shall utilize the following methods of measurement 
to assess the achievement of student outcomes. 
 
Performance Based Assessment 
 
The performance assessments require students to structure and apply information learned by 
actively constructing, organizing and producing/exhibiting a specific product.  Performance 
based assessments are used to measure higher levels of student thinking and creative problem 
solving. Written products, both draft and final, and oral presentations are scored and used to 
determine progress toward mastery of standards.  Rubrics are used to assess student proficiency 
on performance tasks as a key component of a performance standard system. 
 
Formative Assessments 
 
Diagnostic assessments are integral to the instructional process. Teachers utilize assessments to 
support the diagnostic need of meeting individual student learning. Formative assessments are 
used for each of the core curriculum areas and are administered on a regularly scheduled basis 
coinciding at a minimum with the report of progress to parents and students. Formative 
assessments are used to inform instruction and adjust instruction accordingly. 
 
Benchmark Assessments 
 
Benchmark assessments based upon identified state and local performance standards provide a 
uniform basis for measuring student progress on standards at least once during the course of the 
year. The student results are used by the school as a performance indicator and as part of the data 
used in establishing a performance level for the student. Benchmark assessments are used to 
inform instruction. 
 
Summative Assessments 
 
The CAASPP is used for program analysis and public accountability. It provides trend data about 
general performance that can guide school programs. 
 
 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

26 

California School Dashboard 
 
The California School Dashboard provides the school with status and change metrics for its 
entire and subgroup populations.  The California School Dashboard provides trend data used to 
guide programmatic decisions. 
 
Annual Performance Reporting 
 
The Charter School and/or District staff will compile and provide to the Rincon Valley Union 
School District Board of Education on-going reports of performance on all indicators used for 
the District’s other charter and non-charter programs. 
 
  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

27 

ELEMENT 4. 
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE OF THE SCHOOL 

 
Governing Law: The governance structure of the charter school, including, but not limited to, 
the process to be followed by the charter school to ensure parental involvement. Education Code 
Section 47605(b)(5)(D). 
 
The Charter School is governed by the Rincon Valley Union School District Board of Education 
(“Governing Board”). The Governing Board is ultimately in charge of the Charter School’s 
operation and governance. The Site Director, appointed by the Governing Board, is responsible 
for execution of daily management duties at the Charter School on behalf of the Governing 
Board. 
 
The Charter School is non-sectarian in its programs, admissions policies, employment practices, 
and all other operations; shall not charge tuition; and shall not discriminate on the basis of the 
characteristics listed in Education Code Section 220 (actual or perceived disability, gender, 
gender expression, gender identity, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or 
any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 
422.55 of the Penal Code or association with an individual who has any of the aforementioned 
characteristics). 
 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 
The Executive Committee serves as an advisory committee. The Executive Committee consists 
ideally of two parent representatives, two teachers, and two administrators as defined by the 
Committee’s bylaws. The representatives serve two-year terms. All representatives are appointed 
by the Superintendent of the District or her or his designee. If, after the best efforts, the 
Superintendent is unable to find parents who are willing to serve as representatives, the 
Superintendent shall use professional judgment in filling member positions with representatives 
whose backgrounds, knowledge or expertise will make them an asset to the Executive 
Committee. Procedures regarding the election and membership of the Executive Committee shall 
be set forth in Executive Committee bylaws and as approved by the Executive Committee and 
the Governing Board. The District Superintendent sits in an advisory role to the Executive 
Committee. 
 
The Executive Committee may recommend any program, activity, or may otherwise act in any 
manner, which is not in conflict with, or inconsistent with, or preempted by, any law or this 
charter, and/or which is not in conflict with the purposes for which charter schools are 
established. 
 
The Executive Committee shall have the following duties: 
 

1) Annual review of the goals/objectives for grades 7 and 8 within the terms of the Charter. 
2) Annual review of assessment standards for grades 7 and 8 within the terms of the Charter. 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

28 

3) Annual review of curriculum and supporting materials within the terms of the Charter. 
4) Oversight and approval of annual assessment of Charter School program. 
5) Advise the Governing Board through the Superintendent on any matter affecting the 

Charter School. 
6) Provide Superintendent or designee with input on policies and procedures related to the 

Charter School. 
 

Staff and parents of the Charter School will be encouraged to bring proposals or concerns to the 
attention of the Executive Committee, which in turn may bring the matter to the Governing 
Board. 
 
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD 
 
All duties and operations regarding the Charter School not specifically listed as a duty of the 
Executive Committee shall be considered a duty of the Governing Board unless otherwise 
delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee or other committee as allowed by this 
charter. These duties include but are not limited to: 
 

1) Development and adoption of policies and procedures related to the Charter School. 
2) Approval of Charter School budget. 
3) Management of Charter School personnel including, but not limited to evaluation, 

discipline, hiring, collective bargaining and grievances. 
4) All special education services. 
5) Provision, management, and location of the Charter School facilities. 
6) Transportation of the Charter School students. 
7) Food services for the Charter School students. 
8) Maintenance and operations for the Charter School. 

 
The Governing Board may delegate its authority to the Executive Committee or any advisory 
committees as needed.  However, the Governing Board shall annually review the governance of 
the Executive Committee. 
 
The District shall have supervisorial oversight of the Charter School. Such duties may include, 
but are not necessarily limited to, review and renewal of the charter, review and approval of 
amendments, revocation, review of annual audits and STRS/PERS reporting. 
 
The District shall manage all day-to-day administration of the Charter School through the 
Superintendent and the Charter School Site Director. 
 
SUPERINTENDENT 
 
The Superintendent of the District shall serve as a liaison between the Charter School and the 
District and shall manage the day-to-day administration of the Charter School along with the Site 
Director. 
 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

29 

DEPUTY SUPERINTENDENT, BUSINESS 
 
The Deputy Superintendent, Business of the District shall also serve as the Chief Financial 
Officer of the Charter School. 
 
SITE DIRECTOR 
 
The Charter School Site Director will communicate directly with the District Superintendent and 
Board of Trustees as necessary. The Charter School Site Director is fully responsible for the 
daily administration of the Charter School. 
  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

30 

ELEMENT 5. 
EMPLOYEE QUALIFICATIONS 

 
Governing Law: The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the charter 
school. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(E). 
 
The Charter School retains or employs faculty who hold a Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which a teacher in other public schools 
would be required to hold in accordance with Education Code Section 47605(l). These 
documents shall be maintained on file at the Charter School and are subject to periodic 
inspection by the District. These teachers will teach the core academic classes offered by the 
Charter School. These teachers will be responsible for overseeing the students’ academic 
progress and for monitoring grading and matriculation decisions. 
 
In accordance with the flexibility granted to charter schools pursuant to Education Code Section 
47605(l), the Charter School may also employ or retain non-certificated instructional staff in any 
case where a prospective staff member has an appropriate mix of subject matter expertise, 
professional experience, and the demonstrated capacity to work successfully in an instructional 
capacity in noncore, non-college preparatory courses and activities. These teachers may be 
required to teach along with a credentialed faculty member as may be required by law. Teaching 
positions for which flexibility may be granted shall receive prior approval by the Governing 
Board. 
  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

31 

ELEMENT 6. 
HEALTH AND SAFETY PROCEDURES 

 
Governing Law: The procedures that the charter school will follow are to ensure the health and 
safety of pupils and staff. These procedures shall include the requirement that each employee of 
the charter school furnish it with a criminal record summary as described in Section 44237. 
Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(F). 
 
The Charter School complies with all health and safety policies of the District. These policies 
shall include, but not be limited to, a policy establishing that the School functions as a drug, 
alcohol, and tobacco free workplace and a requirement that each employee of the school submit 
to a criminal background check and furnish a criminal record summary as required by Education 
Code section 44237 as well as a requirement to seek a criminal background check of vendors as 
required by Education Code Section 45125.1. 
 
These policies are reviewed on an ongoing basis in the Charter School and District’s ongoing 
development efforts. 
  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

32 

ELEMENT 7. 
MEANS TO ACHIEVE RACIAL/ETHNIC BALANCE 

REFLECTIVE OF THE RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 

 
Governing Law: The means by which the school will achieve racial and ethnic balance among 
its pupils that is reflective of the general population residing within the territorial jurisdiction of 
the school district to which the charter petition is submitted. Education Code Section 
47605(b)(5)(G). 
 
The Charter School strives to achieve a racial and ethnic balance amongst its student population 
that is reflective of population of the territorial jurisdiction of the District by first, implementing 
a student recruitment strategy aimed at attracting a broad base of students, and second, by 
providing services for Charter School students that serve a broad base of students. 
 
As such, the Charter School uses a student recruitment strategy which includes, but is not 
necessarily limited to, the following elements or strategies: 
 

• An enrollment process that is scheduled and adopted to include a timeline that allows for 
a-broad-based recruiting and application process.	

• The development of promotional and informational material that appeals to all of the 
various racial and ethnic groups represented in the District.	

• The appropriate development of promotional and informational materials in languages 
other than English to appeal to limited English proficient populations.	

• Outreach meetings in several areas of the District to reach prospective students and 
parents.	

• The distribution of promotional and informational materials to a broad variety of 
community groups and agencies that serve the various racial, ethnic, and interest groups 
represented in the District.	

  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

33 

ELEMENT 8. 
ADMISSION REQUIREMENTS 

 
Governing Law: Admission requirements, if applicable. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(H) 
 
The Governing Board shall have the sole authority to determine the capacity, location, and 
facilities of the Charter School. The determination of these factors shall be based on the School's 
academic program, the School’s fiscal viability, the educational needs of currently enrolled 
students, the capacity of the School site, and the level of interest shown by students who want to 
attend the School. 
 
There shall be no admission criteria, testing, or other evaluation required of any applicant. The 
Charter School shall not charge an application fee nor shall it charge tuition. The Charter School 
shall be nonsectarian in its admission and enrollment policies and shall not discriminate against 
any student on the basis of ethnicity, national origin, gender, gender expression, gender identity, 
or disability or any other characteristic described in Education Code Section 220. 
 
The Charter School shall admit and enroll all students who wish to attend the School provided 
that the School's capacity is not exceeded. Should more students wish to enroll than space 
allows, the Charter School will hold the public random drawing in stages, according to 
enrollment preferences as follows: 
 

1) Currently enrolled RVUSD students who have a sibling who is currently or formerly 
enrolled at the Charter School. 

2) Children of RVUSD employees currently enrolled in RVUSD. 
3) Students currently enrolled in RVUSD. 
4) Students residing within the district boundaries and not enrolled in RVUSD. 
5) Students who do not reside in nor attend a school in RVUSD, but who have a sibling who 

is currently or formerly enrolled at the Charter School. 
6) Children of RVUSD employees who do not reside in nor attend school in RVUSD. 
7) All other applicants. 

 
The Charter School shall adopt a policy which shall fully delineate the application and random 
drawing process consistent with the seven above priorities. 
  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

34 

ELEMENT 9. 
FINANCIAL AUDIT 

 
Governing Law: The manner in which an annual, independent, financial audit shall be 
conducted, which shall employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the manner in 
which audit exceptions and deficiencies shall be resolved to the satisfaction of the chartering 
authority. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(I). 
 
FISCAL AUDIT 
 
The Charter School will utilize the external auditors of the District for an annual independent 
audit of the school's financial affairs if available or shall contract for the same from a third-party 
provider. 
 
The audit will verify the accuracy of the Charter School's financial statements, attendance and 
enrollment accounting practices, and review the school's internal controls. The audit will be 
conducted in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to the school. 
To the extent required under applicable federal law, the audit scope will be expanded to include 
items and processes specified in any applicable Office of Management and Budget Circulars. 
 
The annual audit will be completed and forwarded to the District, the County Superintendent of 
Schools, the State Controller, and to the CDE by the 15th of December of each year. The 
administration will review any audit exceptions or deficiencies and report to the Charter School's 
Executive Committee and the Governing Board with recommendations on how to resolve them. 
The Board, with input from the Executive Committee, shall determine the manner by which the 
exceptions and deficiencies will be resolved. Audit appeals or requests for summary review shall 
be submitted to the Education Audit Appeals Panel (“EAAP”) in accordance with applicable law. 
 
The independent financial audit of the Charter School is public record to be provided to the 
public upon request. 
 
  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

35 

ELEMENT 10. 
PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION 

 
Governing Law: The procedures by which pupils can be suspended or expelled. Education Code 
Section 47605(b)(5)(J). 

 
As a dependent charter, the Charter School follows and adheres to the RVUSD Governing Board 
adopted policy and practices that govern pupil discipline, which includes student suspension and 
expulsion.  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

36 

ELEMENT 11. 
RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

 
Governing Law: The manner by which staff members of the charter schools will be covered by 
the State Teachers' Retirement System, the Public Employees' Retirement System, or federal 
social security. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(K). 

 
The full-time non-certificated staff at the Charter School shall participate in the federal social 
security system and the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS). The certificated staff 
shall participate in the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS). The District will also make 
contributions for workers compensation insurance, unemployment insurance, and any other 
payroll obligations of public school employer. The District shall create any reports required by 
STRS or PERS for Charter School employees. The Charter School shall inform all applicants for 
positions of the District’s retirement benefits. 
  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

37 

ELEMENT 12. 
ATTENDANCE ALTERNATIVES 

 
Governing Law: The public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing within the school 
district that choose not to attend charter schools. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(L). 
 
No student may be required to attend the Charter School. Students who opt not to attend the 
Charter School may attend other schools within their school district of residence or pursue an 
inter-district transfer in accordance with existing enrollment and transfer policies of their district 
or county of residence. 
  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

38 

ELEMENT 13. 
DESCRIPTION OF EMPLOYEE RIGHTS 

 
Governing Law: The rights of an employee of the school district upon leaving the employment of 
the school district to work in a charter school and of any rights of return to the school district 
after employment at a charter school. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(M). 
 
No public school district employee shall be required to work at the Charter School. All 
employees of the Charter School shall be considered employees of the District and shall retain 
the right to return and gain seniority through the District, pursuant to any applicable collective 
bargaining agreements or District policy. 
  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

39 

ELEMENT 14. 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS 

 
Governing Law: The procedures to be followed by the charter school and the entity granting the 
charter to resolve disputes relating to provisions of the charter. Education Code Section 
47605(b)(5)(N). 
 
In the event that the Charter School Executive Committee and the Governing Board have 
disputes regarding the terms of this charter both parties agree to follow the process outlined 
below. 
 
The Site Director, at the direction of the Executive Committee and the Superintendent, or 
designee at the direction of the Board, agree to first frame the issue in written format. 
 
The Site Director and Superintendent, or designees, shall informally meet and confer in a timely 
fashion to attempt to resolve the dispute. In the event that this informal meeting fails to resolve 
the dispute, both parties shall identify two members from their respective committee board to 
meet to resolve the dispute. If this joint meeting fails to resolve the dispute, the Superintendent 
and the Site Director shall meet to jointly identify a neutral, third party mediator. The format of 
the mediation session shall be developed jointly by the Superintendent and the Site Director. 

 
 

  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

40 

ELEMENT 15. 
CLOSURE PROCEDURES 

 
Governing Law: The procedures to be used if the charter school closes. The procedures shall 
ensure a final audit of the charter school to determine the disposition of all assets and liabilities 
of the charter school, including plans for disposing of any net assets and for the maintenance 
and transfer of pupil records. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(O). 
 
Closure of the Charter School will be documented by official action of the Governing Board. The 
action will identify the reason for closure. The official action will also identify the District as the 
entity responsible for closure-related activities and will specify a person or persons at the District 
responsible. 
 
The District will promptly notify parents and students of the Charter School, the District, the 
Sonoma County Office of Education, the School's SELPA, the retirement systems in which the 
School’s employees participate (e.g., Public Employees' Retirement System, State 
Teachers' Retirement System, and federal social security), and the California Department of 
Education of the closure as well as the effective-date of the closure. This notice will-also include 
the name(s) of and contact information for the person(s) to whom reasonable inquiries may be 
made regarding the closure; the pupils' school districts of residence; and the manner in which 
parents (guardians) may obtain copies of pupil records, including specific information on 
completed courses and credits that meet graduation requirements. 
 
The District will ensure that the notification to the parents and students of the Charter School of 
the closure provides information to assist parents and students in locating suitable alternative 
programs. This notice will be provided promptly following the Board's decision to close the 
School. 
 
The District will also develop a list of pupils in each grade level and the classes they have 
completed, together with information on the pupils' districts of residence, which they will 
provide to the entity responsible for closure-related activities. 
 
As applicable, the District will provide parents, students and the District with copies of all 
appropriate student records and will otherwise assist students in transferring to their next school. 
All transfers of student records will be made in compliance with the Family Educational Rights 
and Privacy Act ("FERPA") 20 U.S.C. § 1232g. The District will store original records of 
Charter School students. All records of the School shall be transferred to the District upon 
School closure. 
 
All state assessment results, special education records, and personnel records will be transferred 
to and maintained by the District in accordance with applicable law. 
 
As soon as reasonably practical, the District will prepare final financial records for the School. 
The District will also have an independent audit completed within six months after School 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

41 

closure. The District will pay for the final audit out of the School reserve funds. The audit will be 
prepared by a qualified Certified Public Accountant selected by the District and will be provided 
to the District promptly upon its completion. The final audit will include an accounting of all 
financial assets, including cash and accounts receivable and an inventory of property, equipment, 
and other items of material value, an accounting of the liabilities, including accounts payable and 
any reduction in apportionments as a result of audit findings or other investigations, loans, and 
unpaid staff compensation, and an assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds received 
by or due to the charter school. 
 
The District will complete and file any annual reports required pursuant to Education Code 
section 47604.33. 
 
On closure of the Charter School, all assets of the Charter School, including but not limited to all 
leaseholds, personal property, intellectual property and all ADA apportionments and other 
revenues generated by students attending the School, shall be retained by the District. In 
addition, any assets acquired from the District or District property will be promptly returned 
upon School closure to the District. The distribution shall include return of any grant funds and 
restricted categorical funds to their source in accordance with the terms of the grant or state and 
federal law, as appropriate, which may include submission of final expenditure reports for 
entitlement grants and the filing of any required Final Expenditure Reports and Final 
Performance Reports, as well as the return of any donated materials and property in accordance 
with any conditions established when the donation of such materials or property was accepted. 
 
The District will utilize the reserve fund to undertake any expenses associated with the closure 
procedures identified above. 
  



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

42 

MISCELLANEOUS CLAUSES 
 
RENEWAL TERM 
 
The term of this charter shall begin on December 11, 2017 and expire on December 11, 2022. 
 
AMENDMENTS 
 
Any amendments to this charter shall be made by the mutual agreement of the Charter School 
and the District. Material revisions and amendments shall be made pursuant to the standards, 
criteria, and timelines in Education Code Sections 47605 and 47607. 
 
RENEWAL 
 
The Charter School may submit its charter for renewal to the District any time during the final 
year of its five-year term. 
 
Renewals shall be governed by the standards and criteria in Education Code Sections 47605 and 
47607. Any renewal shall be for a five (5) year term. 
 
POTENTIAL CIVIL LIABILITY EFFECTS 
 
Governing Law: Potential civil liability effects, if any, upon the school and upon the school 
district. Education Code Section 47605(g). 
 
The Charter School shall work diligently to assist the District in meeting any and all oversight 
obligations under the law, including monthly meetings, reporting, or other District-requested 
protocol to minimize any risk of liability to the District for the operation of the Charter School. 
 
The District will institute appropriate risk management practices and shall maintain appropriate 
insurance policies for the operational of the Charter School. 
 
FACILITIES 
 
Governing Law: The facilities to be utilized by the school. The description of the facilities to be 
used by the charter school shall specify where the school intends to locate. Education Code 
Section 47605(g). 
 
The Charter School shall utilize District facilities during the term of the charter. Locations are at 
5305 Dupont Drive, Santa Rosa, CA 95409 and 1687 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95045, 
subject to change. 
 
 
 



 
	

								RVCS	Charter	Renewal	2017-2022	
	

	 	
 

43 

BUDGET 
 
Governing Law: The petitioner or petitioners shall also be required to provide financial 
statements that include a proposed first year operational budget, including startup costs, and 
cash flow and financial projections for the first three years of operation. Education Code Section 
47605(g). 
 
The Charter School's operational budget, cash flow and financial projections are attached as an 
Appendix. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
 
Governing Law: The manner in which administrative services of the school are to be provided. 
Education Code Section 47605(g). 
 
The Charter School shall use all centralized services of the District unless otherwise approved by 
the Governing Board. 


	Board Agenda 11-14-17
	Board Minutes 10-19-17
	Public Self Insurers
	Rincon Valley USD District Office Termination Letter 20170927 (1)
	Rincon Valley USD Village ES Termination Letter 20170927
	Bank Accounts Signers 2017-18
	Child Care Accounts Signers 2017-18
	Business Office Strategic Plan
	CustodialStartegic Plan Objectives
	Food Service Plan Objectives
	Maintenance Strategic Plan
	Technology Department Strategic Plan
	Transportation Department Strategic Plan
	Purchase Orders
	Warrants
	Ms. Linda
	Mr tayler
	Bus Drivers
	Info. Item 12.1 School Connected Org
	Austin Creek SCO
	Binkley SCO
	Madrone SCO
	Sequoia SCO
	Spring Creek Mtz SCO
	Village SCO
	Whited SCO
	RVCS SCO
	Info. Item 12.2 CAASPP Results
	CAASPP 2017 State County District compare
	Info. Item 12.3 Student Services
	Info. Item 12.4 Facility Plan 2018
	Construction Schedule
	Info. Item 12.5 CA Dashboard Local Indicators
	Local Indicators Performance Standards
	Info. Item 12.6 Post Fire Update
	Enrollment Numbers
	Facility Remediation Plan 10-17
	Info. Item 12.7 Board Policy Review
	10-17 Guidesheet
	10-17 Packet w-o notes
	Action Item 13.1 Developer Fees
	Annual Developer Fee Resolution
	devoperfeeaccounting.throughFY17
	Action Item 13.2 COC Member
	Joe Ruppe Application
	Action Item 13.3 Lease Lease-back best value criteria
	Board Resolution Adopting Best Value Methodology (11.2.17)_3183738_1(DMS)
	Action Item 13.4 Res Personal Necessity Leave
	Res PN Leave
	Action Item 13.5 MOU Personal Necessity Leave
	MOU Personal Necessity Leave
	Action Item 13.6 School Connected Org
	Action Item 13.7 RVCS Renewal
	RVCS Renewal_11-14-17_Final
	Personnel

